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PART |

This Report contains statements which constitute@dod-looking statements within the meaning of BecP7A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934s€&lstatements appear in a number of places iRémgert and include all statements
regarding the intent, belief or current expectatiohthe Company, its directors or its officershwigéspect to, among other things: (i) the
Company's financing plans; (ii) trends affecting tbompany's financial condition or results of ogierss; (iii) the Company's growth strategy
and operating strategy; and (iv) the declaratich gayment of dividends. Investors are cautionetidhg such forwardeoking statements a
not guarantees of future performance and involslesrand uncertainties, and that actual resultsdiffgr materially from those projected in
the forwardlooking statements as a result of various fact@sussed herein and those factors discussed iil ietize Company's filings wit
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
General

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") wasripo@ated on June 23, 1995 to serve as a bank Igotdimpany for The First, A
National Banking Association ("The First") locatedHattiesburg, Mississippi. The First began ogeret on August 5, 1996 from its me
office in the Oak Grove community, which was on thiskirts of Hattiesburg but now is included ie tity of Hattiesburg. The First
currently operates its main office and two brandhedattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Purvis, anPicayune, one in Pascagoula, one in
St. Louis, one in Wiggins and four in Gulfport, dneBiloxi, one in Long Beach and one in Diamondihddississippi, as well as one branch
in Bogalusa, Louisiana. See Note C of Notes to Glithested Financial Statements for information reliyag branch acquisition. The Company
and its subsidiary bank engage in a general coniat@ntd retail banking business characterized bggralized service and local decision-
making, emphasizing the banking needs of smallediom-sized businesses, professional concernsnaindduals. The First is a wholly-
owned subsidiary bank of the Company.

Location and Service Area

The First serves the cities of Hattiesburg, Laurekyvis, PicayuneRascagoula, Bay St. Louis, Wiggins, Gulfport, BiJa&ong Beact
Diamondhead, Mississippi and Bogalusa, Louisiand,the surrounding areas of Lamar, Forrest, Jdhes| River ,Jackson, Hancock, Stone
and Harrison Counties in Mississippi and WashindRanish in Louisiana. The First has a main offaeated in the city of Hattiesburg,
Mississippi, in Lamar County. The First has a bhaoffice located on Highway 589 in the city of Pigrwlississippi, also in Lamar County, a
third office located at the intersection of Lincéwead and South 28th Avenue in Hattiesburg, a lfolaation at 110 S. 40 Ave. in
Hattiesburg, a fifth location on Hwy 15 North inural, a sixth location on Hwy 43 South in Picayumegventh location on Jackson Avenue
in Pascagoula, an eighth location on Hwy 90 in BayLouis, a ninth location on Border Ave. in Wiggia tenth location at Hwy 49 and
O’Neal Rd in Gulfport, Mississippi, and eleventizdtion and a motorbank on ¥Ave in Gulfport, Mississippi, a twelfth location on
Courthouse Road in Gulfport, MS, a thirteenth lmoabn Hwy 49 in Gulfport, Mississippi, a fourtebribcation on Pass Road in Biloxi,
Mississippi, a fifteenth location on Klondyke RaadBiloxi, Mississippi, a sixteenth location on l&al Drive in Diamondhead, Mississippi,
and a seventeenth location on Columbia Street gaBBa, Louisiana.




The main office primarily serves the area in armliad the northern portion of Lamar County. The Ruoifice primarily serves the
area in and around Purvis, Mississippi, which ithim east central part of Lamar County and is thety seat. Lamar County is located in the
southeastern section of Mississippi. Hattiesbung, of the largest cities in Mississippi, is locatedrorrest and Lamar Counties. The Laurel
office serves the city of Laurel and the surrougdinea of Jones County, Mississippi. The Picaydfieegprimarily serves the area in and
around Picayune, Mississippi, including areas afmblancock County and Pearl River, LA and SlidefA, Picayune is located in the
southern part of Pearl River County. Pearl Riveufity is located in the southern section of MispigsiThe Pascagoula office primarily
serves the area in and around Pascagoula, Migsiissipluding areas of Jackson County. Hattiestmang be reached via U.S. Highways 98
and 49 and Interstate 59. Major employers locaigtié Lamar and Forrest County areas include RFo@eseral Hospital, the University of
Southern Mississippi, Wesley Medical Center, Carell$y, the Hattiesburg Public Schools, the HattiegtClinic, the City of Hattiesburg,
and Marshall Durbin Poultry. The principal compotsenf the economy of the Lamar and Forrest Courggsinclude service industries,
wholesale and retail trade, manufacturing, andspartation and public utilities. The Laurel brangtocated at 1945 Highway 15 North,
Laurel, MS, with the majority of its retail busireesoming from the local area and the remainingri®ss coming from other areas of Jones
County, as well as portions of Jasper County, Wa&oenty, Smith County, and Covington County. Maarployers in the Jones County ¢
include Howard Industries, Sanderson Farms, Imgl,%outh Central Regional Medical Center. Major lmiygrs in the Pearl River County
area include Stennis Space Center, Chevron, Teraizmna Chemical, American Crescent Elevator City of Picayune, Crosby Memorial
Hospital and the public schools. The principal comgnts of the economy of the Pearl River Countg arelude timber, service industries,
wholesale and retail trade, manufacturing, andsfrartation and public utilities. Major employerstire Jackson County area include Nortt
Grumman, Singing River Hospital, and Shell Oil Camyp. The Bay St. Louis and Diamondhead officeses#re city of Bay St. Louis,
Diamondhead and the surrounding area of Hancocki@pMississippi. Bay St. Louis and Diamondhead lbameached via U.S. Highway !
Major employers in the Hancock area include thg GitBay St. Louis, Hancock County, and Stennisc@p@enter. The Wiggins office sen
the city of Wiggins and the surrounding area ofnf8t€ounty, Mississippi. Stone County is south af&st County and north of Harrison
County. Wiggins can be reached via U. S. HighwayT4® Gulfport, Biloxi, and Long Beach offices setthe city of Gulfport and the
surrounding area of Harrison County, Mississippilf@ort can be reached via U.S. Highway 49. Majoptoyers in the Harrison County area
include Keesler Air Force Base and a vast arragasinos. The Bogalusa office serves the city ofdbega and the surrounding area of
Washington Parish, Louisiana. The major employeithé Washington Parish area include Temple-InltelBogalusa School System, and
LSU-Washington/St. Tammany Regional Medical Center.

Banking Services

The Company strives to provide its customers withlireadth of products and services comparabletetoffered by large regional
banks, while maintaining the quick response andgrel service of a locally owned and managed blarkddition to offering a full range of
deposit services and commercial and personal |ddresFirst offers products such as mortgage logginations. The following is a
description of the products and services offereplanned to be offered by the Bank.

! Deposit ServicesThe Bank offers a full range of deposit services Hre typically available in most banks and sawviaigd loan
associations, including checking accounts, NOW ants) savings accounts, and other time depositaridus types, ranging from
daily money market accounts to longer-term ce#tfis of deposit. The transaction accounts anddertdicates are tailored to the
Bank's principal market area at rates competitivihose offered by other banks in the area. Intahgithe Bank offers certain
retirement account services, such as Individuar&uaent Accounts (IRAs). All deposit accounts arguired by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") up to the maximamount allowed by law. The Bank solicits theseoaats from individuals,
businesses, associations and organizations, aretrgoental authoritie:

! Loan ProductsThe Bank offers a full range of commercial and peed loans. Commercial loans include both secunedumsecure
loans for working capital (including loans secubgdinventory and accounts receivable), businesamsipn (including acquisition «
real estate and improvements), and purchase opeguit and machinery. Consumer loans include etjoig of credit and secured
and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, hiompeovements, education, and personal investm&hes Bank also makes real
estate construction and acquisition loans. The Bdehkding activities are subject to a varietyefiding limits imposed by federal
law. While differing limits apply in certain circustances based on the type of loan or the natuteediorrower (including the
borrower's relationship to the bank), in generalBank is subject to a loans-to-one-borrower limhian amount equal to 15% of the
Bank's unimpaired capital and surplus. The Bank n@ymake any loans to any director, executiveceffior 10% shareholder
unless the loan is approved by the Board of Dimsabd the Bank and is made on terms not more fédlert® such a person than
would be available to a person not affiliated vifie Bank.




! Mortgage Loan DivisionsThe Bank has mortgage loan divisions which origgnaans to purchase existing or construct new homes
and to refinance existing mortgag

! Other ServicesOther bank services include on-line internet baglgervices, voice response telephone inquiry seregiemmercial
sweep accounts, cash management services, safgitdepcaes, travelers checks, direct deposit of phgnd social security checks,
and automatic drafts for various accounts. The Bamlssociated with the Interlink, Plus, Pulser,Stad Community Cash networks
of automated teller machines that may be used ®B#nk’s customers throughout Mississippi and otegions. The Bank also
offers VISA and MasterCard credit card servicesuigh a correspondent bai

Competition

The Bank generally competes with other financiatitotions through the selection of banking prodwtd services offered, the
pricing of services, the level of service provideés convenience and availability of services, tiieddegree of expertise and the personal
manner in which services are offered. Mississippi permits statewide branching by banks and sawngggutions, and many financial
institutions in the state have branch networks.gegnently, commercial banking in Mississippi ishtygcompetitive. Many large banking
organizations currently operate in the Company'sketarea, several of which are controlled by dustate ownership. In addition,
competition between commercial banks and thriftitusons (savings institutions and credit uniohay been intensified significantly by the
elimination of many previous distinctions betwekea various types of financial institutions and #x@anded powers and increased activity of
thrift institutions in areas of banking which prewusly had been the sole domain of commercial bdfdderal legislation, together with other
regulatory changes by the primary regulators ofvlr@ous financial institutions, has resulted ia #imost total elimination of practical
distinctions between a commercial bank and a timsfitution. Consequently, competition among ficiahinstitutions of all types is largely
unlimited with respect to legal ability and authpitio provide most financial services.

The Company faces increased competition from bexdlerfally-chartered and state-chartered financidlthnift institutions, as well as
credit unions, consumer finance companies, inseranmpanies, and other institutions in the Compamgrket area. Some of these
competitors are not subject to the same degreegodation and restriction imposed upon the Compktany of these competitors also have
broader geographic markets and substantially greaseurces and lending limits than the Companyadfed certain services such as trust
banking that the Company does not currently pravid@ddition, many of these competitors have namebranch offices located throughout
the extended market areas of the Company that mwayde these competitors with an advantage in ggagc convenience that the Company
does not have at present.

Currently there are numerous other commercial hagdsngs institutions, and credit unions operatmghe First's primary service
area.

Employees
As of March 22, 2012 the Company had 204 full-teneployees and 8 part-time employees.
SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The Company and its bank are subject to stateeetdl banking laws and regulations which imposeifip requirements or
restrictions on and provide for general regulatorgrsight with respect to virtually all aspectpgrations. These laws and regulations are
generally intended to protect depositors, not dt@ders. To the extent that the following summaggatibes statutory or regulatory
provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by reémce to the particular statutory and regulatogyisions. Any change in applicable laws or
regulations may have a material effect on the lmssimnd prospects of the Company. Beginning wétetractment of the Financial
Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act@89 ("FIRREA") and following with the Federal pasit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA"), and now mostemntly the sweeping Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refond @onsumer Protection Act of
2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), numerous additionajukatory requirements have been placed on the bgrikdustry in the past several years,
and additional changes have been proposed. Thatapes of the Company and the Bank may be affdayddgislative changes and the
policies of various regulatory authorities. The Qamy is unable to predict the nature or the exdétite effect on its business and earnings
that fiscal or monetary policies, economic contoolnew federal or state legislation may have afthure.




Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Addressdncial and Economic Crises

The Congress, Treasury Department and the fedeniig regulators, including the FDIC, have takesal action since early
September, 2008 to address volatility in the Ughiking system.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008: TtedAsset Relief Prograrm October 2008, the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”) was enacted. TBESA authorized the Treasury Department to puefrasn financial institutions and
their holding companies up to $700 billion in megg loans, mortgage-related securities and cesther financial instruments, including
debt and equity securities issued by financiaitusbns and their holding companies in a trouldsdet relief program (“TARP”). The
purpose of TARP is to restore confidence and stald the U.S. banking system and to encouraganfifal institutions to increase their
lending to customers and to each other. The Trgd3epartment allocated $250 billion towards theRIFACapital Purchase Program
(“CPP"), pursuant to which the Treasury Departnpmrthased debt or equity securities from partidgigginstitutions. The TARP also
includes the Community Development Capital Initiat(*CDCI"), which was made available only to cBeiil Community Development
Financial Institutions (“CDFIs”) and imposed a laveividend or interest rate, as applicable, thanGPP funding. Participants in the TARP
are subject to executive compensation limits aedeacouraged to expand their lending and mortgzage hodifications.

On February 6, 2009, as part of the CPP, the Comeatered into a Letter Agreement and Securitigsiise Agreement
(collectively, the “Purchase Agreement”) with theed@sury Department, pursuant to which the Compalay/(§ 5,000 shares of the
Company'’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual PrefeBtedk, Series UST (the “CPP Preferred Stock”) @ha warrant (the “Warrant”) to
purchase 54,705 shares of the Company’s Commotk 8pan exercise price of $13.71 per share. Orie®elper 29, 2010, after successfully
obtaining CDFI certification, the Company exiteé tBPP by refinancing its CPP funding into lowert&@BCI funding and also accepted
additional CDCI funding. In connection with thisisaction, the Company retired its CPP PreferreckStnd issued to the Treasury
Department 17,123 shares of the Company’s Fixed Ramulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Seriest@®“CDCI Preferred Stock”).
Including refinanced funding and newly obtaineddimg, the Company’s total CDCI funding is $17,1Z80

The CDCI Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 cagital, provided that the Company maintains its C8ligibility and certification,
is entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate of @& annum until 2018, and 9% per annum theredfter.Warrant has a 10-year term and is
immediately exercisable upon its issuance, anexigscise price is subject to anti-dilution adjustise

In order to benefit from the lower dividend rats@sated with the CDCI Preferred Stock, the Compamgquired to maintain
compliance with the eligibility requirements of t8®FI Program. These eligibility requirements irguthe following:

The Company must have a primary mission of prongotiommunity development, based on criteria sebfortl2 C.F.R. 1805.201

(b)(2);

The Company must provide Financial Products, Dearakent Services, and/or other similar financing aseslominant business
activity in arn’ s-length transactions, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1IB0Kb)(2);

The Company must serve a Target Market by servirggos more Investment Areas and/or Targeted Papuoktsubstantially in the
manner set forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)




The Company must provide Development Services muetion with its Financial Products, either ditgcthrough an Affiliate, or
through a contract with a th-party provider, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.20#(b

The Company must maintain accountability to redislefithe applicable Investment Area(s) and/or &g Population(s) through
representation on its governing Board of Directarstherwise, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.205hXnd

The Company must remain a non-governmental entifiglnis not an agency or instrumentality of thetgdiStates of America, or
any State or political subdivision thereof, as dibgd in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)(6) and within theamiag of any supplemental
regulations or interpretations of 12 C.F.R. 180%(B)(6) or such supplemental regulations publigethe Fund

As used in the discussion above, the terms “Affilja“Financial Products,” “Development Service$Target Market,” “Investment Area(s),”
and “Targeted Population(s)” have the meaningstaestito such terms in 12 C.F.R. 1805.104.

EESA also temporarily increased FDIC deposit insaeaon most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000wender, with the passage
of the Dodd-Frank Act, this increase in the basizecage limit has been made permanent.

Following a systemic risk determination, the FDKZablished a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee ProgfarhGP”) on October 14,
2008. The TLGP included the Transaction Accoundi@ntee Program (“TAGP”), which provided unlimieposit insurance coverage for
noninterest-bearing transaction accounts (typidaliginess checking accounts) and certain fundstanepnoninterest-bearing savings
accounts. Institutions participating in the TAG&doa 10 basis points fee (annualized) on the balaheach covered account in excess of
$250,000 while the extra deposit insurance wadaogy The TAGP was set to expire on December 310 28owever, with the passage of
Dodd-Frank Act, the insurance coverage provideckutfte Transaction Account Guarantee Program haffént been extended until
December 31, 2012, with some changes. Perhapsdbkesignificant differences between the currensieer of the Transaction Account
Guarantee Program and the Dodd-Frank extensidmegbtogram are (i) that all banks are requiredaiigipate in the new coverage, with no
opt-out available, and (i) that interest-bearin@W accounts will no longer benefit from the unliedtinsurance coverage beginning January
1, 2011 (although IOLTA accounts will continue tenlefit from the unlimited coverage).

American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 200%-ebruary 17, 2009, President Obama signedamidie America
Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009 (“ARRA”"). ARRontained expansive new restrictions on executamapensation for financial
institutions and other companies participatinghi@ TARP. These restrictions apply to us and athéndetailed in implementing regulations
found at 31 CFR Part 30. (Any reference to “ARRATtIn includes a reference to the implementing legguns.)

ARRA prohibits bonus and similar payments to theshighly compensated employee of the Company.prbleibition does not
apply to bonuses payable pursuant to “employmergeagents” in effect prior to February 11, 2009. figeterm” restricted stock is excluded
from ARRA’s bonus prohibition, but only to the emtéhe value of the stock does not exceed one-tiitde total amount of annual
compensation of the employee receiving the stdekstock does not “fully vest” until after all TARBlated obligations have been satisfied,
and any other conditions which the Treasury magi§pbave been met.

ARRA prohibits any payment to the principal execetofficer, the principal financial officer, andyaaf the next eight most highly
compensated employees upon departure from the Gonipaany reason for as long as any TARP-relatd@jations remain outstanding.




Under ARRA TARP-participating companies are reqiiit@recover any bonus or other incentive paymaitt fo the principal
executive officer, the principal financial offican any of the next 23 most highly compensated eyga@s on the basis of materially inaccu
financial or other performance criteria.

ARRA prohibits TARP participants from implementiagy compensation plan that would encourage martipualaf the reported
earnings of the Company in order to enhance thepeosation of any of its employees.

ARRA requires the Chief Executive Officer and theie€ Financial Officer of any publicly-traded TAR#ticipating company to
provide a written certification of compliance withe executive compensation restrictions in ARRAh® company’s annual filings with the
SEC beginning in 2010.

ARRA requires each TARP-participating company tplement a company-wide policy regarding excessiMenairy expenditures,
including excessive expenditures on entertainmeevents, office and facility renovations, aviatimnother transportation services.

ARRA directs the Treasury to review bonuses, ré@erdwards, and other compensation paid to thef@xiecutive Officer and the
next four other highest paid executive officerlaf Company and the next 20 most highly compensatgrdoyees of each company receiving
TARP assistance before ARRA was enacted, and &k“senegotiate” with the TARP recipient and afeetemployees for reimbursement if
it finds any such payments were inconsistent witRIP or otherwise in conflict with the public intste

AARA also prohibits the payment of tax gross-ugsjuired disclosures related to perquisite paymemisthe engagement, if any, by
the TARP participant of a compensation consultantt prohibits the deduction for tax purposes otatiee compensation in excess of
$500,000 for each applicable senior executive.

These standards could change based on subsequidsricgiissued by the Treasury or the Internal Rex&ervice. As long as the
Treasury continues to hold equity interests inGloenpany issued under the TARP, the Company willitooits compensation arrangements
and modify such compensation arrangements, agi@ait@nd limit its compensation deductions, aakle such other actions as may be
necessary to comply with the standards discussedkals they may be modified from time to time. Tmwnpany does not anticipate that
material changes to its existing executive comptasatructure will be required to comply with teeecutive compensation standards
included in the TARP.

Dodd-Frank Act The recent enactment during 2010 of the Dodd4Y&all Street Reform and Consumer Protection Aot (tDodd-
Frank Act”) will likely result in increased reguian of the financial services industry. Provisidikely to affect the activities of the Company
and the Bank include, without limitation, the fallimg:

Asse-based deposit insurance assessmeRBIC deposit insurance premium assessments witldsed on bank assets rather than
domestic deposit:

Deposit insurance limit increas. The deposit insurance coverage limit has beemgeently increased from $100,000 to $250,000.

Extension of Transaction Account Guarantee Prog. Unlimited deposit insurance coverage is exterfdedon-interest-bearing
transaction accounts and certain other accountsvioiears. This applies to all banks; there i®pt-in or op-out requirement

Establishment of the Bureau of Consumer Financiatéttion (BCFP,. The BCFP will be housed within the Federal Resemd, ir
consultation with the Federal banking agencied,médke rules relating to consumer protection. TI&B has the authority, shoulc
wish to do so, to rewrite virtually all of the camser protection regulations governing banks, inicigdhose implementing the Truth
in Lending Act, the Real Estate Settlement Prooesiidct (or RESPA), the Truth in Savings Act, thedilonic Funds Transfer Act,
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Home Mortg&jeclosure Act, the S.A.F.E. Mortgage Licensing,Ake Fair Credit
Reporting Act (except Sections 615(e) and 628)Fdie Debt Collection Practices Act, and the Graimeach-Bliley Act (sections
502 through 509 relating to privacy), among oth




Risk-retention rule. Banks originating loans for sale on the secondaayket or securitization must retain 5 percerdrof loan they
sell or securitize, except for mortgages that nme-risk standards to be developed by regulai

Limitation on federal preemptic. Limitations have been imposed on the ability aianal bank regulators to preempt state law.
Formerly, the national bank and federal thrift degrs possessed preemption powers with regamémnsactions, operating
subsidiaries and attorney general civil enforcenaemiority. These preemption requirements have bewted by the Dodd-Frank
Act, which will likely impact state banks by affaay activities previously permitted through panitith national banks

Changes to regulation of bank holding companigader Dodd-Frank, bank holding companies mustvéié-capitalized and well-
managed to engage in interstate transactionselpdkt, only the subsidiary banks were requireddet those standards. The Federal
Reserve Board’s “source of strength doctrine” has been codified, mandating that bank holding comgsmsuch as the Company
serve as a source of strength for their subsidianks, meaning that the bank holding company masibdte to provide financial
assistance in the event the subsidiary bank experiefinancial distres

Executive compensation limitatio. The Dodd-Frank Act codified executive compensatimitations similar to those previously
imposed on TARP recipient

This new legislation contains 16 different titlespver 800 pages long, and calls for the compietiodozens of studies and reports
and hundreds of new regulations. The informatiavigled herein regarding the effect of the Dodd-kraat is intended merely for
illustration and is not exhaustive, as the full aopof the legislation on banks and bank holdingeanies is still being studied and in any
event cannot be fully known until the completiorhoihdreds of new federal agency rulemakings oven#xt few years. Interested
shareholders should refer directly to the Dodd-kract itself for additional information.

The DoddFrank Act is one of a number of legislative initias that have been proposed in recent monthsadileetongoing nation:
and global financial crisis. It is not possiblept@dict whether any other similar legislation mayaulopted that would significantly affect the
operations and performance of the Company and ém.B

SummaryThe foregoing is a brief summary of certain statutales and regulations affecting the Companythadank. It is not
intended to be an exhaustive discussion of alsthtites and regulations having an impact on tleeatipns of such entities. Additional bills
may be introduced in the future in the United St&engress and state legislatures to alter thetstr) regulation and competitive
relationships of financial institutions. It canrm predicted whether and what form any of thespgwals will be adopted or the extent to
which the business of the Company and the Bankheagffected thereby.

The Company

Because it owns the outstanding capital stock @Bank, the Company is a bank holding company withé meaning of the Federal
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the "BHCA").

The BHCAUnder the BHCA, the Company is subject to peri@kiamination by the Federal Reserve and is reqtiréite periodic
reports of its operations and such additional imf@tion as the Federal Reserve may require. The @oygand the Bank’s activities are
limited to banking, managing or controlling banksnishing services to or performing services tersubsidiaries, and engaging in other
activities that the Federal Reserve determine® tedclosely related to banking or managing orredlivtg banks as to be a proper incident
thereto.




The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetmn Act (discussed in more detail below undezc¢ént Developments”)
has removed many limitations on the Federal Reseoagd’s authority to make examinations of banlka #re subsidiaries of bank holding
companies. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the FederabRe Board will generally be permitted to exantiaek holding companies and their
subsidiaries, provided that the Federal ReservedBBwmaist rely on reports submitted directly by thstitution and examination reports of the
appropriate regulators (such as the OCC) to tHeduéxtent possible; must provide reasonable adticand consult with, the appropriate
regulators before commencing an examination ofrk b@lding company subsidiary; and, to the fullegient possible, must avoid duplicat
of examination activities, reporting requiremeatsg requests for information.

Investments, Control, and Activitiad/ith certain limited exceptions, the BHCA requimgery bank holding company to obtain the
prior approval of the Federal Reserve before @uaing substantially all the assets of any baika¢quiring direct or indirect ownership or
control of any voting shares of any bank if aftects acquisition it would own or control more th& 6f the voting shares of such bank
(unless it already owns or controls the majoritgoéh shares), or (iii) merging or consolidatinghwanother bank holding company.

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions,BRECA and the Change in Bank Control Act, togetivéh regulations thereunder,
require Federal Reserve approval (or, dependinfp@eircumstances, no notice of disapproval) goany person or company acquiring
"control" of a bank holding company, such as then@any. Control is conclusively presumed to existrifindividual or company acquires
25% or more of any class of voting securities eflblank holding company. Control is rebuttably pnesd to exist if a person acquires 10%
more but less than 25% of any class of voting séesiand either the Company has registered sézsutinder Section 12 of the Exchange
(which the Company has done) or no other persors@\greater percentage of that class of votingrgesuimmediately after the transaction.
The regulations provide a procedure for challerfg@®rebuttable control presumption.

Under the BHCA, a bank holding company is genenaibthibited from engaging in, or acquiring directirdirect control of more
than 5% of the voting shares of any company engagednbanking activities, unless the Federal ResBioard, by order or regulation, has
found those activities to be so closely relateddanking or managing or controlling banks as to peoper incident thereto. Some of the
activities that the Federal Reserve Board has héted by regulation to be proper incidents to thsifess of a bank holding company
include making or servicing loans and certain typileases, engaging in certain insurance and digdarokerage activities, performing
certain data processing services, acting in cediatumstances as a fiduciary or investment ot adviser, owning savings associations,
and making investments in certain corporationsrojegts designed primarily to promote community faved.

The Federal Reserve Board has imposed certairatagiuirements on the Company under the BHCAuificlg a minimum
leverage ratio and a minimum ratio of "qualifyinggpital to risk-weighted assets. These requirenemetslescribed below under "Capital
Regulations." Subject to its capital requirememis eertain other restrictions, the Company maydwmoney to make a capital contribution
to the Banks, and such loans may be repaid fromdelinds paid from the Bank to the Company (althaihghability of the Bank to pay
dividends is subject to regulatory restrictionglascribed below in "The Bank - Dividends"). The Qamy is also able to raise capital for
contribution to the Bank by issuing securities withhaving to receive regulatory approval, subjeaompliance with federal and state
securities laws.

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantéeaccordance with Federal Reserve Board policy Gbmpany is expected to act as a sour
financial strength to the Bank and to commit researto support the Bank in circumstances in whiehGompany might not otherwise do so.
Under the BHCA, the Federal Reserve Board may requbank holding company to terminate any actioityelinquish control of a nonbank
subsidiary (other than a nonbank subsidiary ofr&papon the Federal Reserve Board's determin#timinsuch activity or control constitutes
a serious risk to the financial soundness or staloif any subsidiary depository institution of thank holding company. Further, federal bank
regulatory authorities have additional discretiomequire a bank holding company to divest itséHrmy bank or nonbank subsidiary if the
agency determines that divestiture may aid the slepg institution's financial condition.




The Bank

The Bank operates as a national banking associatonporated under the laws of the United Statessaibject to examination by
the Office of Comptroller of the Currency ("OCCDeposits in the Bank are insured by the FDIC ug teaximum amount (generally
$250,000 per depositor, subject to aggregatiorsyulene OCC and the FDIC regulate or monitor viijuall areas of the Bank’s operations,
including security devices and procedures, adeguofcgpitalization and loan loss reserves, loamsestments, borrowings, deposits, merc
issuances of securities, payment of dividendsrestaates payable on deposits, interest ratesesrdhargeable on loans, establishment of
branches, corporate reorganizations, maintenanbeals and records, and adequacy of staff traitur@arry on safe lending and deposit
gathering practices. The OCC requires the Bankamtain certain capital ratios and imposes limitasi on the Bank’s aggregate investment
in real estate, bank premises, and furniture artdriés. The Bank is required by the OCC to prepaaaterly reports on their financial
condition and to conduct an annual audit of thieiricial affairs in compliance with minimum stangimand procedures prescribed by the
OCC.

Under FDICIA, all insured institutions must undemggular on-site examinations by their appropristeking agency. The cost of
examinations of insured depository institutions ang affiliates may be assessed by the appro@mggacy against each institution or affiliate
as it deems necessary or appropriate. Insuredutistis are required to submit annual reports ¢oRPIC and the appropriate agency (and
state supervisor when applicable). FDICIA alsoatigd¢he FDIC to develop with other appropriate aigsha method for insured depository
institutions to provide supplemental disclosur¢hef estimated fair market value of assets andilialsi to the extent feasible and practicable,
in any balance sheet, financial statement, redarbodition, or any other report of any insured a@gfory institution. FDICIA also requires t
federal banking regulatory agencies to prescripeebulation, standards for all insured depositosfitutions and depository institution
holding companies relating, among other things(i}anternal controls, information systems, andliagystems; (ii) loan documentation; (iii)
credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposuand (v) asset quality.

National banks and their holding companies whickehazeen chartered or registered or undergone aeharcontrol within the past
two years or which have been deemed by the OCBedFéderal Reserve Board, respectively, to be kedubstitutions must give the OCC
the Federal Reserve Board, respectively, thirtysgajor notice of the appointment of any seniorcettiee officer or director. Within the thir
day period, the OCC or the Federal Reserve Boartheacase may be, may approve or disapprove afyagppointment.

Deposit InsuranceThe FDIC establishes rates for the payment of premaiby federally insured banks and thrifts for dsfpo
insurance. A Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF") is ntaiimed for commercial banks and thrifts, with irewre premiums from the industry used
to offset losses from insurance payouts when ban#shrifts fail. Since 1993, insured depositorstitutions like the Bank have paid for
deposit insurance under a risk-based premium system

The Dodd-Frank Act has changed the method of catioul for FDIC insurance assessments. Under threrusystem, the
assessment base is domestic deposits minus altemable exclusions, such as pass-through resetaedss. Under the Dodd-Frank Act,
assessments are to be calculated based on thatdgposstitution’s average consolidated total dsskess its average amount of tangible
equity. On February 9, 2011, the FDIC publishedlfregulations implementing these changes. In axidio providing for the required
change in assessment base, the FDIC has modifiglthunated the assessment adjustments based eoured debt, secured liabilities, and
brokered deposits; added a new adjustment for ingldhsecured debt issued by another insured deppsistitution; and lowered the initial
base assessment rate schedule in order to catlpaixdamately the same amount of revenue under ¢lnebase as under the old base, among
other changes. Due to the expanded assessmerthbasaw initial base assessment rates have beemddvirom prior levels. These final
regulations will be effective April 1, 2011.

Transactions With Affiliates and Insidefie Bank is subject to Section 23A of the FederddRve Act, which places limits on the
amount of loans to, and certain other transactritis affiliates, as well as on the amount of acieto third parties collateralized by the
securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggregof all covered transactions is limited in antpas to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Ba
capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates camedi to 20% of the Bank's capital and surplus.Heumore, within the foregoing limitations as
to amount, each covered transaction must meetfsggecbllateral requirements.




The Bank is also subject to Section 23B of the Fadeeserve Act, which prohibits an institutionrfr@ngaging in certain
transactions with affiliates unless the transactiare on terms substantially the same, or at &safgtvorable to such institution, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactiweith nonaffiliated companies. The Bank is subjectértain restrictions on extensions of
credit to executive officers, directors, certaimpipal shareholders, and their related inter&atish extensions of credit (i) must be made on
substantially the same terms, including interetgtsrand collateral, as those prevailing at the foneomparable transactions with third par
and (ii) must not involve more than the normal dlkepayment or present other unfavorable features

Dividends.A national bank may not pay dividends from its talpiAll dividends must be paid out of undivideafits then on hand,
after deducting expenses, including reserves fade and bad debts. In addition, a national bapkotsibited from declaring a dividend on its
shares of common stock until its surplus equalstéted capital, unless the bank has transferredrfdus no less than one-tenth of its net
profits of the preceding two consecutive half-ypariods (in the case of an annual dividend). ThEr@ml of the OCC is required if the total
of all dividends declared by a national bank in aalendar year exceeds the total of its net préditshat year combined with its retained net
profits for the preceding two years, less any remftransfers to surplus. In addition, under FDIQe banks may not pay a dividend if, after
paying the dividend, the bank would be undercapidl See "Capital Regulations" below.

Branching.National banks are required by the National Banktd@dhere to branch office banking laws applieablstate banks in
the states in which they are located. Under cuivississippi law, banks may open branches throughtississippi with the prior approval of
the OCC. In addition, with prior regulatory apprbJaanks are able to acquire existing banking dpera in Mississippi. Furthermore, federal
legislation has recently been passed which peiintigstate branching. The new law permits out afesacquisitions by bank holding
companies (subject to veto by new state law), stdée branching by banks if allowed by state Iateristate merging by banks, and de novo
branching by national banks if allowed by state.|®e&e "Recent Legislative Developments."”

Community Reinvestment A€he Community Reinvestment Act requires that, innection with examinations of financial
institutions within their respective jurisdictiorthe Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the OCC, or the®#tf Thrift Supervision shall evaluate the
record of the financial institutions in meeting tiredit needs of their local communities, includiogy and moderate income neighborhoods,
consistent with the safe and sound operation afgliastitutions. These factors are also consid@restaluating mergers, acquisitions, and
applications to open a branch or facility.

Other Regulationdnterest and certain other charges collected otracted for by the Banks are subject to state usuvg and
certain federal laws concerning interest rates. Béwek's loan operations are subject to certainr@daws applicable to credit transactions,
such as the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governiiiggclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowtbessHome Mortgage Disclosure Act of
1975, requiring financial institutions to providdarmation to enable the public and public offisitd determine whether a financial institut
is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the hougi needs community it serves; the Equal Credit @ppday Act, prohibiting discrimination on
the basis of creed or other prohibited factorsxiereding credit; the Fair Credit Reporting Act &7B, governing the use and provision of
information to credit reporting agencies; the @bt Collection Act, concerning the manner in whicimsumer debts may be collected by
collection agencies; and the rules and regulatidrise various federal agencies charged with tepamsibility of implementing such federal
laws. The deposit operations of the Bank also alpgest to the Right to Financial Privacy Act, whiaposes a duty to maintain
confidentiality of consumer financial records amdgeribes procedures for complying with administeasubpoenas of financial records, and
the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulatidadied by the Federal Reserve Board to implemantbt, which governs automatic
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accountsaistomers' rights and liabilities arising frdme use of automated teller machines and
other electronic banking services.
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Capital RegulationsThe federal bank regulatory authorities have adbptk-based capital guidelines for banks and beoidling
companies that are designed to make regulatoryatapguirements more sensitive to differencessik profile among banks and bank
holding companies, account for off-balance shepbsure, and minimize disincentives for holding itjassets. The resulting capital ratios
represent qualifying capital as a percentage af tigk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet it@ims guidelines are minimums, and the
federal regulators have noted that banks and baldkny companies contemplating significant expamgimgrams should not allow
expansion to diminish their capital ratios and dtionaintain ratios well in excess of the minimumke current guidelines require all bank
holding companies and federally-regulated bankadmtain a minimum risk-based total capital ratip& to 8%, of which at least 4% must
be Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 capital includes commbargholders' equity, qualifying perpetual prefersamtk, and minority interests in equity
accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, but exclgdesiwill and most other intangibles and excludhesallowance for loan and lease losses.
Tier 2 capital includes the excess of any prefestedk not included in Tier 1 capital, mandatorpwertible securities, hybrid capital
instruments, subordinated debt and intermediate-fgeferred stock, and general reserves for loanease losses up to 1.25% of risk-
weighted assets.

Under the guidelines, banks' and bank holding canigsaassets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 80&6100%. In addition,
certain off-balance sheet items are given creditrecsion factors to convert them to asset equitaprounts to which an appropriate risk-
weight will apply. These computations result in thial risk-weighted assets. Most loans are asdigméhe 100% risk category, except for
first mortgage loans fully secured by residentragerty and, under certain circumstances, residecinstruction loans, both of which carr
50% rating. Most investment securities are assigoede 20% category, except for municipal or stateenue bonds, which have a 50%
rating, and direct obligations of or obligationsaganteed by the United States Treasury or UnitateSiGovernment agencies, which have a
0% rating.

The federal bank regulatory authorities have algglémented a leverage ratio, which is Tier 1 chpidaa percentage of average total
assets less intangibles, to be used as a supplé¢onthet risk-based guidelines. The principal oljecof the leverage ratio is to place a
constraint on the maximum degree to which a bandiig company may leverage its equity capital base minimum required leverage
ratio for top-rated institutions is 3%, but mosdtitutions are required to maintain an additionadhion of at least 100 to 200 basis points.

FDICIA established a capital-based regulatory sehdesigned to promote early intervention for tredibanks and requires the
FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution okbailures. The capital-based regulatory framewawhtains five categories of compliance
with regulatory capital requirements, including hweapitalized," "adequately capitalized," "undepitalized," "significantly
undercapitalized," and "critically undercapitalize®io qualify as a "well capitalized" institutioa,bank must have a leverage ratio of no less
than 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based ratio of no less ®f#n and a total risk-based capital ratio of no thas 10%, and the Bank must not be under
any order or directive from the appropriate regquiatagency to meet and maintain a specific cafgtadl. As of December 31, 2010, the
Company and The First, were qualified as "well tadzied."

Under the FDICIA regulations, the applicable agecay treat an institution as if it were in the nlexter category if the agency
determines (after notice and an opportunity forrimga that the institution is in an unsafe or unseondition or is engaging in an unsafe or
unsound practice. The degree of regulatory scrugfrgyfinancial institution will increase, and thermissible activities of the institution will
decrease, as it moves downward through the cagitafjories. Institutions that fall into one of theee undercapitalized categories may be
required to (i) submit a capital restoration pléi);raise additional capital; (iii) restrict thegrowth, deposit interest rates, and other actisjti
(iv) improve their management; (v) eliminate mamaget fees; or (vi) divest themselves of all or mditheir operations. Bank holding
companies controlling financial institutions candadled upon to boost the institutions' capital emgartially guarantee the institutions'
performance under their capital restoration plans.

These capital guidelines can affect the Comparsgweral ways. If the Company continues to growrafpé pace, a premature
"squeeze" on capital could occur making a capitfaision necessary. The requirements could impac€Cimpany's ability to pay dividends.
The Company's present capital levels are moreddaguate; however, rapid growth, poor loan podfpkrformance, or poor earnings
performance could change the Company's capitatiposn a relatively short period of time.
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Failure to meet these capital requirements wouldmibkat a bank would be required to develop aedifiblan with its primary
federal banking regulator describing the meansaaschedule for achieving the minimum capital regmients. In addition, such a bank would
generally not receive regulatory approval of anplaption that requires the consideration of cdgitlequacy, such as a branch or merger
application, unless the Bank could demonstratesomable plan to meet the capital requirement wihieasonable period of time.

Enforcement PowersFIRREA expanded and increased civil and crimpeaialties available for use by the federal regwyato
agencies against depository institutions and aeftastitution-affiliated parties" (primarily inctlling management, employees, and agents of
financial institution, independent contractors sashattorneys and accountants, and others wheipatt in the conduct of the financial
institution's affairs). These practices can incltlefailure of an institution to timely file reqed reports; the filing of false or misleading
information; or the submission of inaccurate repo@ivil penalties may be as high as $1,000,008yafar such violations. Criminal penalties
for some financial institution crimes have beenréased to twenty years. In addition, regulatorpaogided with greater flexibility to
commence enforcement actions against institutiodsrastitution-affiliated parties. Possible enfarant actions include the termination of
deposit insurance. Furthermore, FIRREA expandedpipeopriate banking agencies' power to issue aaadelesist orders that may, among
other things, require affirmative action to corranty harm resulting from a violation or practiagluding restitution, reimbursement,
indemnifications, or guarantees against loss. Arfaial institution may also be ordered to resttgcgrowth, dispose of certain assets, rescind
agreements or contracts, or take other actionst@srdined by the ordering agency to be appropriate.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Polici@$e earnings of the Bank are affected by domesto@mic conditions and the monetary
and fiscal policies of the United States governnaemt its agencies. The Federal Reserve Board'stargrmolicies have had, and are likely to
continue to have, an important impact on the opeyaesults of commercial banks through its poweiniplement national monetary policy
order, among other things, to curb inflation or tatna recession. The monetary policies of the Fddaserve Board have major effects u
the levels of bank loans, investments, and deptisitsigh its open market operations in United Stgtavernment securities and through its
regulation of the discount rate on borrowings ofmber banks and the reserve requirements againsberdrmank deposits. It is not possible
predict the nature or impact of future changes ametary and fiscal policies.

Significant Legislative Developmen@®n September 29, 1994, the federal government ethdioe RiegleNeal Interstate Banking al
Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the "Interstatariking Act"). This Act became effective on Septentfs 1995, and permits eligible bank
holding companies in any state, with regulatoryrapgl, to acquire banking organizations in any p#tate. Since June 1, 1997, the Interstate
Banking Act has allowed banks with different hortegess to merge, unless a particular state optefahe statute. In addition, beginning June
1, 1997, the Interstate Banking Act has permitteiiomal and state banks to establish de novo bemnichanother state if there is a law in that
state which applies equally to all banks and exglygsermits all out-of-state banks to establismdeo branches.

On November 12, 1999, the Gramm- Le&lltey Act of 1999 (the "Financial Services Moderaiion Act") was signed into law. T
Financial Services Modernization Act repeals the affiliation provisions of the Glass-Steagall ABection 20, which restricted the
affiliation of Federal Reserve Member Banks witln "engaged principally" in specified securitietiaties; and Section 32, which restricts
officer, director, or employee interlocks betweemember bank and any company or person "primaniggaged” in specified securities
activities. In addition, the Financial Services Matization Act also contains provisions that exgiepreempt any state law restricting the
establishment of financial affiliations, primariiglated to insurance. The general effect of theitatw establish a comprehensive framewo
permit affiliations among commercial banks, ins@w@nompanies, securities firms, and other finarsgalice providers by revising and
expanding the BHCA framework to permit a holdingnp@ny system to engage in a full range of finaradilvities through a new entity
known as a Financial Holding Company. "Financidivities" is broadly defined to include not onlyrilang, insurance, and securities
activities, but also merchant banking and additiac#vities that the Federal Reserve, in consioitatvith the Secretary of the Treasury,
determines to be financial in nature, incidentaduoh financial activities, or complementary ac¢i@g that do not pose a substantial risk to the
safety and soundness of depository institutionth@ffinancial system generally.
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Generally, the Financial Services Modernization: Act

! Repeals historical restrictions on, and elimisateany federal and state law barriers to, affdiasiamong banks, securities
firms, insurance companies, and other financialiserproviders

! Provides a uniform framework for the functionaulation of the activities of banks, savings sibns, and their holding
companies

! Broadens the activities that may be conducteddtional banks, banking subsidiaries of bank hgidiompanies, and their
financial subsidiaries

! Provides an enhanced framework for protecting thepy of consumer informatiol

! Adopts a number of provisions related to the tajiation, membership, corporate governance, dneraneasures designed
to modernize the Federal Home Loan Bank sys

! Modifies the laws governing the implementationte Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA"); a

! Addresses a variety of other legal and regulatssyes affecting both day-to-day operations ang-kerm activities of
financial institutions

In order for a bank holding company to take advgataf the ability to affiliate with other financiaérvices providers, that company
must become a "Financial Holding Company" as peeaitinder an amendment to the BHCA. To become anEial Holding Company, the
company would file a declaration with the Federab&ve, electing to engage in activities permisditnl Financial Holding Companies and
certifying that it is eligible to do so becausedidlits insured depository institution subsidiaréee well-capitalized and well-managed. In
addition, the Federal Reserve must also deterrhiteciach insured depository institution subsid@rthe Company has at least a
"satisfactory” CRA rating.

The Financial Services Modernization Act also pégsmational banks to engage in expanded actiutiesigh the formation of
financial subsidiaries. A national bank may hawibsidiary engaged in any activity authorized fational banks directly or any financial
activity, except for insurance underwriting, insura investments, real estate investment or devedapror merchant banking, which may
only be conducted through a subsidiary of a Firartdolding Company. Financial activities includéadtivities permitted under new sectit
of the BHCA or permitted by regulation.

A national bank seeking to have a financial subsidiand each of its depository institution affiis, must be "well-capitalized" and
"well-managed." The total assets of all financighsidiaries may not exceed the lesser of 45% a@ink'b total assets, or $50 billion. A
national bank must exclude from its assets andealliequity investments, including retained eags, in a financial subsidiary. The assets
of the subsidiary may not be consolidated withlitaek's assets. The bank must also have policiepraegdures to assess financial subsic
risk and protect the bank from such risks and gatklabilities.

The Financial Services Modernization Act also idelsia new section of the Federal Deposit InsuraActgoverning subsidiaries of
state banks that engage in "activities as prindipeti would only be permissible” for a national bam conduct in a financial subsidiary. It
expressly preserves the ability of a state banfktin all existing subsidiaries. Because Missggaermits commercial banks chartered by
state to engage in any activity permissible foramatl banks, the state bank competitors of The Riiltbe permitted to form subsidiaries to
engage in the activities authorized by the Findri&gavices Modernization Act, to the same exterflaes First. In order to form a financial
subsidiary, a state bank must be well-capitalized, the state bank would be subject to the sanitatdpduction, risk management and
affiliate transaction rules as applicable to naidranks.
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The Company and the Bank do not believe that tharfgial Services Modernization Act will have a miateadverse effect on
operations in the near-term. However, to the exteattit permits banks, securities firms, and iasge companies to affiliate, the financial
services industry may experience further consabdafThe Financial Services Modernization Act iteimded to grant to community banks
certain powers as a matter of right that largetitutgons have accumulated on an ad hoc basis. fifeless, this act may have the result of
increasing the amount of competition that the Camgend the Bank face from larger institutions atiteotypes of companies offering
financial products, many of which may have sub&é#iptmore financial resources than the CompanythedBank.

In 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America bgvitling Appropriate Tools Required to Interceptl@bstruct Terrorism Act of
2001 (USA Patriot Act) was signed into law. The UB&triot Act broadened the application of anti-mola@indering regulations to apply to
additional types of financial institutions, suchtmsker-dealers, and strengthened the ability @fUts. Government to detect and prosecute
international money laundering and the financingeoforism. The principal provisions of Title 1If the USA Patriot Act require that
regulated financial institutions, including statember banks: (i) establish an anti-money laundgsiegram that includes training and audit
components; (i) comply with regulations regardihg verification of the identity of any person segkto open an account; (iii) take
additional required precautions with non-U.S. owaedounts; and (iv) perform certain verificatiomdarrtification of money laundering risk
for their foreign correspondent banking relatiopshiThe USA Patriot Act also expanded the conditiomder which funds in a U.S. interbank
account may be subject to forfeiture and incredlsegbenalties for violation of anti-money laundgriegulations. Failure of a financial
institution to comply with the USA Patriot Act'sqeirements could have serious legal and reputdt@mresequences for the institution. The
Bank has adopted policies, procedures and corit@ddress compliance with the requirements ofX84 Patriot Act under the existing
regulations and will continue to revise and updteolicies, procedures and controls to reflearaes required by the USA Patriot Act and
implementing regulations.

In July 2002, Congress enacted the Sarb&hdsy Act of 2002, which addresses, among oth@eisscorporate governance, audi
and accounting, executive compensation, and entdanwdtimely disclosure of corporate informatioact®on 404 of the Sarban€<ley Act,
and regulations adopted by the SEC require the @amio include in its Annual Report, a report sigtinanagement’s responsibility to
establish and maintain adequate internal contnads financial reporting and management’s conclusiorthe effectiveness of the internal
controls at year end. Additionally, the Companydépendent registered public accounting firm isimegl to attest to and report on
management’s evaluation of internal control oveaficial reporting.

From time to time, various bills are introducedhe United States Congress with respect to thdaggun of financial institutions.
Certain of these proposals, if adopted, could figantly change the regulation of banks
and the financial services industry. The Compamnoapredict whether any of these proposals wilhtepted or, if adopted, how these
proposals would affect the Company.

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives talfsds Financial and Economic Crise3he Congress, Treasury Department and
the federal banking regulators have taken broadrasince early September, 2008 to address viaitilithe U.S. banking system, including
the passage of legislation, the provision of otliezct and indirect assistance to financial insititus, assistance by the banking authorities in
arranging acquisitions of weakened banks and brdketers, implementation of programs by the Fedeeakrve Board to provide liquidity
the commercial paper markets and expansion of ddpsarance coverage. See “Legislative and Regoldhitiatives to Address Financial
and Economic Crises” above.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Making or continuing an investment in securitiegluding the Company’s Common Stock, involves dentizks that you should
carefully consider. The risks and uncertaintiexdbed below are not the only risks that may haweagerial adverse effect on the Company.
Additional risks and uncertainties also could adegr affect the Company’s business and resultpefaiions. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial conditiomesults of operations could be affected, the mtgpkice for your securities could decline,
and you could lose all or a part of your investmé&ntther, to the extent that any of the informatontained in this Annual Report on Form
10-K constitutes forward-looking statements, tls& factors set forth below also are cautionaryestants identifying important factors that
could cause the Company’s actual results to diffaterially from those expressed in any forward-logkstatements made by or on behalf of
the Company.
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We may be vulnerable to certain sectors of the @wgn

A portion of the loan portfolio is secured by reatate. If the economy deteriorated and depressg@state values beyond a certain
point, that collateral value of the portfolio arétrevenue stream from those loans could come whaess and possibly require additional
loan loss accruals. Our ability to dispose of fayeed real estate at prices above the respectivgirngvalues could also be impinged, cau:
additional losses.

Difficult market conditions have adversely affedfeel industry in which we operas

The capital and credit markets have been experignalatility and disruption for more than two ysacausing volatility and
disruption to reach unprecedented levels. Dranuidines in the housing market over the past yeigin, falling home prices and increasing
foreclosures, unemployment and under-employmenrt hagatively impacted the credit performance oftgage loans and resulted in
significant write-downs of asset values by finahuiatitutions, including government-sponsored tiedias well as major commercial and
investment banks. Reflecting concern about theldtabf the financial markets generally and theesigth of counterparties, many lenders
have reduced or ceased providing funding to borrewiecluding to other financial institutions. Thigarket turmoil and tightening of credit
have led to an increased level of commercial am$wmer delinquencies, lack of consumer confidendenadespread reduction of business
activity generally. A worsening of these conditiamsuld likely exacerbate the adverse effects of¢hdifficult market conditions on us and
others in the financial institution industry. Algbe economic downturn could exacerbate our exgosucredit risk, particularly in our real
estate markets, as lower home prices and incrdasatlosures may result in higher charge-offs aglthdquencies.

General economic conditions in the areas whereaparations or loans are concentrated may adveraffct our customers’ ability to meet
their obligations

A sudden or severe downturn in the economy in #agoaphic markets we serve in the state of Miggissnay affect the ability of
our customers to meet loan payments obligations timely basis. The local economic conditions iesaareas have a significant impact on
our commercial, real estate, and construction loduesability of borrowers to repay these loans tuedvalue of the collateral securing such
loans. Changes resulting in adverse economic dondibf our market areas could negatively impaetfthancial results of the Company’s
banking operations and its profitability.

Additionally, adverse economic changes may caustomers to withdraw deposit balances, thereby ngusistrain on our liquidity.
We are subject to a risk of rapid and significanainges in market interest rates

Our assets and liabilities are primarily monetarypature, and as a result we are subject to sigmifirisks tied to changes in interest
rates. Our ability to operate profitably is largelgpendent upon net interest income. Unexpecteedment in interest rates markedly
changing the slope of the current yield curve caaldse net interest margins to decrease, subséqdenteasing net interest income. In
addition, such changes could adversely affect éheation of our assets and liabilities.

At present the Company’s one-year interest ratsiteity position is slightly asset sensitive, lzugradual increase in interest rates
during the next twelve months should not have aiigant impact on net interest income during thatiod. However, as with most financial
institutions, the Company’s results of operatioresatfected by changes in interest rates and timep@ay’s ability to manage this risk. The
difference between interest rates charged on sit@a@ning assets and interest rates paid on sttbearing liabilities may be affected by
changes in market interest rates, changes inoakttips between interest rate indices, and/or @saimgthe relationships between long-term
and short-term market interest rates. A changbigndifference might result in an increase in iegtexpense relative to interest income, or a
decrease in the Company’s interest rate spread.
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Certain changes in interest rates, inflation, oe financial markets could affect demand for ourdarcts and our ability to deliver products
efficiently

Loan originations, and potentially loan revenuesild be adversely impacted by sharply rising irgerates. Conversely, sharply
falling rates could increase prepayments withingeaurities portfolio lowering interest earningsnfr those investments. An unanticipated
increase in inflation could cause operating cositsted to salaries and benefits, technology, apgl®s to increase at a faster pace than
revenues.

The fair market value of the securities portfolimahe investment income from these securitiesfalstuate depending on general
economic and market conditions. In addition, actlinvestment income and/or cash flows from itmests that carry prepayment risk,
such as mortgage-backed and other asset-backettiescmay differ from those anticipated at thradiof investment as a result of interest
rate fluctuations.

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities atiter government action could adversely affecfifability

The results of operations of the Company are afteby credit policies of monetary authorities, jgaifarly the Federal Reserve
Board. The instruments of monetary policy emploggdhe Federal Reserve Board include open markatatipns in U.S. government
securities, changes in the discount rate or theréddunds rate on bank borrowings and changesserve requirements against bank deposits
In view of changing conditions in the national ecoty and in the money markets, particularly in lighthe continuing threat of terrorist
attacks and the current military operations inNtiddle East, we cannot predict possible future ¢fesnin interest rates, deposit levels, loan
demand or the Company’s business and earningshédfarore, the actions of the United States govermaueh other governments in
responding to such terrorist attacks or the miligwerations in the Middle East may result in cocsefluctuations, exchange controls, market
disruption and other adverse effects.

Natural disasters could affect our ability to optr

Our market areas are susceptible to natural disastieh as hurricanes. Natural disasters can dispgvations, result in damage to
properties and negatively affect the local econsrmeavhich we operate. The Company cannot predigther or to what extent damage
caused by future hurricanes will affect operationthe economies in our market areas, but suchhseavents could cause a decline in loan
originations, a decline in the value or destructibproperties securing the loans and an increatigeirisk of delinquencies, foreclosures or
loan losses.

Greater loan losses than expected may adversedgtadfir earnings

The Company as lender is exposed to the risk thatistomers will be unable to repay their loansdoordance with their terms and
that any collateral securing the payment of thednk may not be sufficient to assure repaymentiosses are inherent in the business of
making loans and could have a material adverseteffeoperating results. Credit risk with respedts real estate and construction loan
portfolio will relate principally to the creditwdriness of corporations and the value of the redateserving as security for the repayment of
loans. Credit risk with respect to its commerciad @onsumer loan portfolio will relate principatty the general creditworthiness of
businesses and individuals within our local markets

The Company makes various assumptions and judgrabotg the collectibility of its loan portfolio amtovides an allowance for
estimated loan losses based on a number of fadioesCompany believes that its current allowancddan losses is adequate. However, if
our assumptions or judgments prove to be incortketallowance for loan losses may not be suffidiertover actual loan losses. We may
have to increase the allowance in the future ipaase to the request of one of its primary bankagulators, to adjust for changing
conditions and assumptions, or as a result of atgribration in the quality of the loan portfolibhe actual amount of future provisions for
loan losses cannot be determined at this time andvary from the amounts of past provisions.
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The Company may need to rely on the financial markeprovide needed capital

The First Bancshares’ Common Stock is listed aadetil on the NASDAQ stock market. Although the Comypanticipates that its
capital resources will be adequate for the fordsledature to meet its capital requirements, aesmve may depend on the liquidity of the
NASDAQ stock market to raise equity capital. If tharket should fail to operate, or if conditiondlie capital markets are adverse, F
Bancshares may be constrained in raising capitaluld these risks materialize, the ability to fertiexpand its operations through internal
growth may be limited.

We are subject to regulation by various Federal &talte entities

The Company is subject to the regulations of theues and Exchange Commission (“SEC"), the Fald@eserve Board, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the Q& regulations issued by these agencies may selyaffect First Bancshares’ ability
to carry on its business activities. First Bancebas subject to various Federal and state lawsaridin changes in these laws and regula
may adversely affect operations.

The Company is also subject to the accounting raheksregulations of the SEC and the Financial Aotiag Standards Board.
Changes in accounting rules could adversely affecteported financial statements or results ofatmmns of First Bancshares and may also
require extraordinary efforts or additional costsnmiplement. Any of these laws or regulations mayrwndified or changed from time to time,
and we cannot be assured that such modificationhamges will not adversely affect the Company.

We engage in acquisitions of other businesses firmmto time

On occasion, the Company will engage in acquisitiohother businesses. Acquisitions may resulustamer and employee
turnover, thus increasing the cost of operatingide businesses. The acquired companies may aleddgal contingencies, beyond those
that First Bancshares is aware of, that could tésuinexpected costs.

We are subject to industry competition which mayehan impact upon its success

The profitability of the Company depends on itdigbto compete successfully. We operate in a higldmpetitive financial services
environment. Certain competitors are larger and hzase more resources than we do. We face competitiour regional market areas from
other commercial banks, savings and loan assosg@tayedit unions, internet banks, finance comgamwitual funds, insurance companies,
brokerage and investment banking firms, and otin@ntial intermediaries that offer similar servicBeme of the nonbank competitors are
subject to the same extensive regulations thatrgate Company or the Bank and may have greatebfligy in competing for business.

Another competitive factor is that the financiahsees market, including banking services, is ugderg rapid changes with freque
introductions of new technology-driven products aedvices. Our future success may depend, inqaur ability to use technology
competitively to provide products and services firavzide convenience to customers and create additefficiencies in operations.

Future issuances of additional securities coulcdutem dilution of shareholde’ ownership

The Company may determine from time to time toésadditional securities to raise additional capgapport growth, or to make
acquisitions. Further, the Company may issue stqptlons or other stock grants to retain and mogivatr employees. Such issuances of
Company securities will dilute the ownership insgseof the Company’s shareholders.

Anti-takeover laws and certain agreements and chantevipions may adversely affect share value

Certain provisions of state and federal law and@bmpany’s articles of incorporation may make itrendifficult for someone to
acquire control of the Company. Under federal lsmbject to certain exemptions, a person, entitgroup must notify the federal banking
agencies before acquiring 10% or more of the ondiiey voting stock of a bank holding company, idiéhg The First Bancshares’ shares.
Banking agencies review the acquisition to deteenifiiit will result in a change of control. The lidmg agencies have 60 days to act on the
notice, and take into account several factorsuuhiolg the resources of the acquiror and the astigtfects of the acquisition. There also are
Mississippi statutory provisions and provisionshie Company’s articles of incorporation that mayubed to delay or block a takeover
attempt. As a result, these statutory provisiors@ovisions in the Company’s articles of incorgima could result in the Company being
less attractive to a potential acquiror.
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Securities issued by the Company, including thegamyls Common Stock, are not FDIC insured

Securities issued by the Company, including the gamg’s Common Stock, are not savings or deposiwats or other obligations
of any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, thed3# Insurance Fund, or any other governmentai@ger instrumentality, or any private
insurer, and are subject to investment risk, inclgdhe possible loss of principal.

There can be no assurance that recently enacteasldgign will stabilize the U.S. financial system

On October 3, 2008, President Bush signed intatfes\EESA. The legislation was the result of a psapby the Treasury in
response to the financial crises affecting the bankystem and financial markets and threats testment banks and other financial
institutions. Pursuant to the EESA, the Treasury gigen the authority to, among other things, pasehup to $700 billion of mortgages,
mortgage-backed securities and certain other fiahimstruments from financial institutions for tperpose of stabilizing and providing
liquidity to the U.S. financial markets. In 2008etTreasury announced the Capital Purchase Prograich was followed by the Community
Development Capital Initiative in 2010. In 2008 thDIC adopted a Final rule with respect to its Penary Liquidity Guarantee Program
pursuant to which the FDIC guaranteed certain “gasdued unsecured debt” of banks and certain hgldompanies and also temporarily
guaranteed, on an unlimited basis, noninterestiigaank transaction accounts; the unlimited guaeof noninterest-bearing transaction
accounts has now been extended through 2012 Hydtd-Frank Act. On February 17, 2009, Presidentr@baigned into law the ARRA.
The purposes of the legislation are to preservecagate jobs, to assist those most impacted byettession, to provide investments to
increase economic efficiency in health servicegnvest in transportation, environmental protectom other infrastructure, and to stabilize
local and state governments.

Each of these programs was implemented to heljligeabur economy and financial system. There camd assurance, however, as
to the actual impact that the EESA and its impletingrregulations, the Capital Purchase ProgramFDC programs, or any other
governmental program will have on the financial keds. The failure of the EESA, the ARRA or the WgBvernment to stabilize the financ
markets and a continuation or worsening of curfieaincial market conditions could materially and/exbely affect the Company’s business,
financial condition, and results of operations,emscto credit or the trading price of the Compaggisimon stock.

The failure of other financial institutions couldwersely affect the Company

The Company’s ability to engage in routine fundiransactions could be adversely affected by thermetnd potential failures of
other financial institutions. Financial institut®are interrelated as a result of trading, cleaitognterparty and other relationships. As a
result, defaults by, or even rumors or concernsiglume or more financial institutions or the final services industry generally have led to
market-wide liquidity problems and could lead tedes or defaults by the Company or by other iniita.

Concern by customers over deposit insurance magecaulecrease in deposits and changes in the nfisnding sources available to the
Comparny

With recent increased concerns about bank failuestomers increasingly are concerned about thenetd which their deposits are
insured by the FDIC. Customers may withdraw depagitin effort to ensure that the amount they lwavdeposit with their bank is fully
insured and some may seek deposit products or b#imdr savings and investment products that arateséllized. Decreases in deposits and
changes in the mix of funding sources may advers##ct the Company'’s funding costs and net income.
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Evaluation of investment securities for o-than-temporary impairment involves subjective dateations and could materially impact the
Company’s results of operations and financial ctiodi

The evaluation of impairments is a quantitative gudlitative process, which is subject to risks andertainties, and is intended to
determine whether declines in the fair value okstment should be recognized in current periodiegsnThe risks and uncertainties include
changes in general economic conditions, the issfieagicial condition or future recovery prospedtse effects of changes in interest rates or
credit spreads and the expected recovery peridon&iing future cash flows involves incorporatimjarmation received from third-party
sources and making internal assumptions and judggmegarding the future performance of the undegdyiollateral and assessing the
probability that an adverse change in future cashs has occurred. The determination of the amoftinther-than-temporary impairments is
based upon the Company’s quarterly evaluation aadssment of known and inherent risks associatihdima respective asset class. Such
evaluations and assessments are revised as cosditiange and new information becomes available.

Additionally, the Company management considers a wide range of factorg #fssecurity issuer and uses its reasonable jedt
in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estidah fair value of the security and in assessiagtiospects for recovery. Inherent in
management’s evaluation of the security are assangpand estimates about the operations of thelismd its future earnings potential.
Impairments to the carrying value of our investnmeaturities may need to be taken in the futureclvhiould have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial conditio

The Company may be required to pay additional iasoe premiums to the FDIC, which could negativeigact earnings

Recent insured institution failures, as well agdetation in banking and economic conditions, hsigaificantly increased FDIC
loss provisions, resulting in a decline in the deated reserve ratio to historical lows. The FD¥Pexts a higher rate of insured institution
failures in the next few years compared to receaty, thus, the reserve ratio may continue to weclh addition, pursuant to the Dodd-Frank
Act, the limit on FDIC coverage has been permagentreased to $250,000. These developments hageddhe premiums assessed to the
Company by the FDIC to increase.

Further, depending upon any future losses thaFBM€ insurance fund may suffer, there can be narasse that there will not be
additional premium increases in order to repletti€hfund. The FDIC may need to set a higher baseschedule or impose special
assessments due to future financial institutiolufas and updated failure and loss projectionseiilly higher FDIC assessment rates than
those currently projected could have an adversedngn the Company’s results of operations.

The Company participates in the U.S. Treasury’subted Asset Relief Program

The Company received $5,000,000 in funding undeGhapital Purchase Program (“CPP”) in exchangerfeferred stock and
common stock warrants during 2009, which funding wefinanced into lower-cost Community Developm@apital Initiative
(“CDCI") funding on September 29, 2010. In additiom September 29, 2010, the Company also acc&ad23,000 in additional
CDCI funding, for a total of $17,123,000 in CDChfling. Participation in this program constrains @mpany’s ability to raise
dividends and also places certain constraints eswive compensation arrangements. The increaselinfy provides assurance that
the Company can maintain its minimum regulatoryitedypatios in the face of future large real estaiated losses. The Company
will have to repay these funds, possibly by raisiagital within the next seven to eight years tegkits dividend costs from
increasing to 9% per annui

Both the CPP and the CDCI are part of the Troublgskt Relief Program (“TARP”). The rules that gavére TARP include
restrictions on certain compensation to executffieays and a number of others in the Company. Agnatter things, these rules
include a prohibition on golden parachute paymemfsohibition on providing tax gross-ups, a boalasv-back provision, and a
prohibition on paying any bonus payment to the Canys most highly compensated employees. It isiplesthat compensation
restrictions imposed on TARP participants couldeaip our ability to attract and retain qualified @xéve officers.
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Our participation in the TARP limits our annual idiend payments to no more than $.15 per shareafility to repurchase our
common stock would also be restricted in the ettettwe failed to make our dividend payme

Since the TARP was part of legislation that hasrépaitation of being passed as a bailout of thenfiral industry, participation in tl
program could also create some reputational rikks fleputation of the program could impede the Camyfs ability to attract
business in competition with other financial ingiibns that did not participate. This reputatiomsi could also impede the
Compan’s ability to attract and retain qualified executoféicers.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s main office, which is the holding gamy headquarters, is located at 6480 U.S. Hwy 88t\vi Hattiesburg,
Mississippi. The Company operates 17 full serviaeking and financial services offices and one mbé#ak facility. Management ensui
that all properties, whether owned or leased, aimtained in suitable condition.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company and/or the Bank maypémed as defendants in various lawsuits arisimgfothe normal course
businessOn October 8, 2007, The First Bancshares, Inc. (@®npany") and its subsidiary, The First, A NabBanking Associatic
(the "Bank") were formally named as defendants semded with a First Amended Complaint in litigatistyled Nick D. Welch v. Oz
Grove Land Company, Inc., Fred McMurry, David Ehdson, J. Douglas Seidenburg, The First, a NatiBaaking Association, The Fil
Bancshares, Inc., and John Does 1 through 10, Satibn No. 2006-236:V4, pending in the Circuit Court of Jones Couldyssissippi
Second Judicial District (the "First Amended Conmi§.

The allegations by Welch against the Company aedB#nk include counts of 1) Intentional Misrepréagan and Omission;
Negligent Misrepresentation and/or Omission; 3)aBteof Fiduciary Duty; 4) Breach of Duty of GoodtRand Fair Dealing; and 5) Ci
Conspiracy. The First Amended Complaint servedMelch on October 8, 2007 added the Company am@#nk as defendants in t
ongoing litigation. The Plaintiff seeks damagesnfrall the defendants, including $2,957,385, anuliatiends for the year 2006 in !
amount of $.30 per share, punitive damages, andhatfs' fees and costs, and is more fully desciiib&drm 8K filed by the Company ¢
October 10, 2007. The Company and the Bank batly day liability to Welch, and they intend to deflerigorously against this lawsuit.

The Defendants removed the case to the UnitedsSEastrict Court for the Southern District of Missippi, Hattiesburg Division,
March 12, 2008, based upon the Court's federaltiquegirisdiction. On April 11, 2008, the Plairitffled a Motion to Remand the case
the Circuit Court of Jones County, Mississippi.eTHotion to Remand was granted, and the case iertly pending in the Circuit Cot
of Jones County, Mississippi, Second Judicial istr

On January 29, 2010, the Circuit Court of the Sdctudicial District of Jones County, Mississipptered an Agreed Order grant
Plaintiff’s motion to amend his complaint to assert a declargudgment action against Kansas Bankers Sueiypany on the questi
of insurance coverage.

On March 7, 2011 an Agreed Order of Dismissal wasred in the litigation as previously disclosedtiy Company on Form 8-K
filed on March 8, 2011.
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ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

In response to this Item, the information containagage 73 of the Company's Annual Report to Sindders for the year ended
December 31, 2011, is incorporated herein by rafare

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In response to this Item, the information containegages 7 and 8 of Management's Discussion amdy8is for the year ended
December 31, 2011, is incorporated herein by rafare

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In response to this Item, the information containacgages 6 through 27 of the Company's Annual Rép&hareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2011, is incorporatedrhbseieference

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagages 29 through 72 of the Company's AnnuabRép Shareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated hbyeiaference

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
The Company'’s principal executive officer and pifrat financial officer have concluded, based ugwgirtevaluation of the
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2011 that the Compangisclosure controls and procedures were effec

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, noggshave occurred in the Company’s internal cowivel financial reporting that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to enelly affect the Company’s internal control o¥iancial reporting.

The First Bancshares, Inc.
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of The First Bancshares, Inc. and sialogifthe “Company”) is responsible for establighand maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. Interrc@ntrol over financial reporting is a process dgest to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.
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Under the supervision and with the participatioomainagement, including the principal executiveceffiand principal financial
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation ofetifiectiveness of internal control over financigporting based on the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuedisy@ommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of thedway Commission. Based on this
evaluation, management of the Company has conclide@ompany maintained effective internal contnadr financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1884des 12a-15(f), as of December 31, 2011.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiabmiap objectives because of its
inherent limitations. Internal control over finaakieporting is a process that involves human élilige and compliance and is subject to lapses
in judgment and breakdowns resulting from humalurfas. Internal control over financial reportinqicso be circumvented by collusion or
improper management override. Because of suchdiioits, there is a risk that material misstatemeratg not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis by internal control over financial ogting. These inherent limitations, however, arewn features of the financial reporting
process. It is possible, therefore, to design héoprocess safeguards to reduce, though not aimithis risk.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company’s independent registeredipaaicounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. The Caanp'’s registered public accounting firm was notuieed to issue an attestation report on
internal controls over financial reporting pursutmtemporary rules of the Securities and Exchabgmmission.

/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J /s| Dee Dee Lower
CEO and Presidel Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
March 22, 201: March 22, 201:

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

In response to this Item, the information containeder the captions, “Election of Directors” anddtitional Information
Concerning Directors and Officers” of the Comparrexy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shardad to be held on May 24, 2012, is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

The Company's Board of Directors has adopted a GbEt¢hics that applies to the Company's princgadcutive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, persons performing similar functions. A copy ast@ode of Ethics can be found at the
Company's internet website at www.thefirstbank.cdrhe Company intends to disclose any amendmerits @pde of Ethics, and any war
from a provision of the Code of Ethics grantedh® €ompany's principal executive officer, princifi@ancial officer, principal accounting
officer, or persons performing similar functions, the Company's internet website within five busidays following such amendment or
waiver. The information contained on or connectethe Company's internet website is not incorparatereference into this Form 10-K and
should not be considered part of this or any otbport that we file with or furnish to the SEC.

Audit Committet

The information contained under the caption “Conteei$ of the Board of Directors” of the CompanysxyrStatement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May2B4 2, is incorporated herein by reference. Thar8of Directors has determined that
there is at least one independent audit commiitem€ial expert, J. Douglas Seidenburg, servintherAudit Committee, as the terms
independent and audit committee financial expertused in pertinent NASDAQ listing standards ancuBiges and Exchange Commission
regulations.
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Corporate Governance

The information contained under the caption “Aduiitil Information Concerning Directors and Officeo§'the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsetdeld on May 24, 2012, is incorporated hereingigrence.

As a TARP recipient the Company is required to hav&xcessive Expenditure Policy. Such a policy adopted by the Comparsy’
Board of Directors on July 23, 2009, and is postedhe Bank’s website at www.thefirstbank.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Compensation Discussion andyaisl of the Company's
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareéiddo be held on May 24, 2012, is incorporate@ihdsy reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Security Ownership of Certaengficial Owners and
Management” of the Company's Proxy Statement f@rthnual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on R#y2012, is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Certain Relationships and Reldransactions” of the

Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetin§lwireholders to be held on May 24, 2012, is irm@ated herein by reference.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Principal Accountant Fees aewviSes” of the Company’s
Proxy Statement for the Annual meeting of Sharedrsido be held on May 24, 2012, is incorporate@indsy reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following exhibits are furnished (or incorpaatby reference):

Exhibit Number

Description

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.5

10.6

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorponafincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 te @ompany's
Registration Statement No.-94288 on Form -1).

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Extt? to the Company's Registration Statement 1894888 on Form S-
1).

Articles of Amendment Containing Certifieaif Designations for the Fixed Rate CumulativepBrral Preferred
Stock, Series CI

Provisions in the Company's Articles ofdmmoration and Bylaws defining the rights of hoklef the Company's
Common Stock (incorporated by reference to ExHilditto the Company's Registration Statement N®4288 on
Form &-1).

Form of Certificate of Common Stock (inamr@ted by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the CompaRggistration
Statement No. 94288 on Form -1).

Exchange Letter Agreement dated Septe@the2010 between The First Bancshares and thed)Siates
Department of the Treasury, including the Standamans, with respect to the exchange of the PredeBieares

Purchase Letter Agreement dated Septe2®$h@010 between The First Bancshares and the dUSisges
Department of the Treasury, including the Standamans, with respect to the issuance of the CDEfePred
Shares

Employment Agreement dated May 31, 20&fween The First, A National Banking Association &h Ray Cole,
Jr.

First Bancshares, Inc. 1997 Stock Optiam Bs of March 18, 1997 (incorporated by refergndexhibit 10.7 of the
Company's Form -KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, IF0. 3:-94288).
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10.7 Agreement to Repurchase Stock by and ambagd-irst Bancshares, Inc., Nick Welch and Dawidnon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to tlmmpany's Registration Statement No.-102908 on Form-2).

10.8 The First Bancshares, Inc. 2007 Stockritiee Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhib® # the Company’s
Registration Statement No. 171996 on FoI-8)

13 The Company's 2011 Annual Rep

21 Subsidiaries of the Compal

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

31 Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢-14(a) Certification:

32 Section 1350 Certificatior
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99.2 EESA Certification of CFC

25




SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjeaAct, the registrant caused this report to geexd on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC

Date: March 22, 2012 By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J
M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 22, 2012 By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial and Principal Accounting
Officer)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiieen signed below by the following persons oralietf the registrant and in tt
capacities and on the dates indicated.
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/sl E. Ricky Gibsol Director and Chairman of the Board March 222
/sl Charles R. Lightse Director March 22, 2012
/sl J. Douglas Seidenbu Director March 22, 2012
/s/ Andy Stetelma Director March 22,2012
/s/ David W. Bomboy Director March 22, 2012
/s/ Ted E. Parke Director March 22,2012
/s/ Michael W. Chancellc Director March 22, 2012
/s/ Fred McMurry Director March 22, 2012
/s/ Dennis L. Pierc Director March 22, 2012
/sl Gregory Mitchel Director March 22, 2012
/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J CEO, President and Director March 22, 2012

(Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Dee Dee Lower Executive VP & Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer) March 22, 201:
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EXHIBIT 13
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2011 ANNUAL REPORT




The First Bancshares, Inc.
Selected Financial Data

(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Earnings:
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse

Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Net income

Net income applicable to common stockholc

Per common share da
Basic net income per she

Diluted net income per sha
Per share dati
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Selected Year End Balanct

Total asset

Securities

Loans, net of allowanc
Deposits

Stockholder' equity

December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
19,07¢ 16,33¢ % 14,39( 16,10¢ 16,87(
1,46¢ 98¢ 1,20¢ 2,20¢ 1,321
4,59¢ 3,89¢ 4,391 4,631 4,57¢
18,87( 15,84: 15,32: 15,99¢ 14,82
2,871 2,54¢ 1,745 1,84¢ 3,82%
2,52¢ 2,23 1,461 1,84¢ 3,82:
.83 74 % A48 .62 1.2¢
.82 .74 A48 .61 1.2t
.94 84 % .58 .62 1.2¢
.93 .84 .58 .61 1.2
681,41 503,04 $ 477,55: 474,82 496,05t
221,17¢ 107,13¢ 114,61¢ 102,30: 87,05:
383,41¢ 327,95t 314,03 318,30( 367,00:
573,39 396,47¢ 383,75¢ 378,07¢ 386,16¢
60,42¢ 57,09¢ 43,61% 36,56¢ 36,28!




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Purpose

The purpose of management's discussion and an@&ytsignake the reader aware of the significantpaments, events, and chan
in the consolidated financial condition and resoft®perations of the Company and its subsidiamnduthe year ended December 31, 2
when compared to the years 2010 and 2009. The Qoyispeonsolidated financial statements and relatées should also be considered.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the preparation of the Company's consolidatedrfcial statements, certain significant amountsbased upon judgment &
estimates. The most critical of these is the actingrpolicy related to the allowance for loan lass€he allowance is based in large mee
upon management's evaluation of borrowers' akilitte make loan payments, local and national econ@mnditions, and other subject
factors. If any of these factors were to determratanagement would update its estimates and juttgménich may require additional I
provisions.

Companies are required to perform periodic reviefvsndividual securities in their investment pofifg to determine wheth
decline in the value of a security is other thamgerary. A review of other-tharemporary impairment requires companies to makeic
judgments regarding the materiality of the declite effect on the financial statements and thébabdlity, extent and timing of a valuati
recovery and the comparsyintent and ability to hold the security. Pursuanthese requirements, Management assesses valdeitlines t
determine the extent to which such changes aribw@tble to fundamental factors specific to thaiégss such as financial condition, busir
prospects or other factors or markefated factors, such as interest rates. Declingbe fair value of securities below their costtthe
deemed to be other-than-temporary are recordedrimirgs as realized losses.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment both annuatlg ehen events or circumstances occur that makeie likely than not th.
impairment has occurred. As part of its testing, @ompany first assesses qualitative factors teragte whether it is more likely than |
that the fair value of a reporting unit is lessrtlita carrying amount. If the Company determinesftir value of a reporting unit is less thai
carrying amount using these qualitative factorg, @ompany then compares the fair value of goodmith its carrying amount, and th
measures impaired loss by comparing the implied alue of goodwill with the carrying amount of thgoodwill. No impairment we
indicated when the annual test was performed ir1201

Overview

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) was iraratpd on June 23, 1995, and serves as a bankbadmpany for The First,
National Banking Associatior“The First”), located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First begaerations on August 5, 1996, from its n
office in the Oak Grove community, which is on thestern side of Hattiesburg. The First currentlgrapes its main office and two branc
in Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Purvis, am®icayune, one in Pascagoula, one in Bay St. Louis in Wiggins and four in Gulfport, ¢
in Biloxi, one in Long Beach, and one in Diamondiellississippi, as well as one branch in Bogallsayisiana. See Note C of Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements for informatiegarding branch acquisitions. The Company anduitsidiary bank engage in a gen
commercial and retail banking business charactéri®e personalized service and local decigimaking, emphasizing the banking need
small to medium-sized businesses, professionalezoscand individuals. The First is a wholly-owrsedbsidiary of the Company.




The Companys primary source of revenue is interest income faed, which it earns by lending and investing tineds which ar
held on deposit. Because loans generally earn higties of interest than investments, the Compaeksto employ as much of its dep
funds as possible in the form of loans to individudusinesses, and other organizations. To ersmuffieient liquidity, the Company al
maintains a portion of its deposits in cash, gowent securities, deposits with other financial itn§bns, and overnight loans of exc
reserves (known as “Federal Funds Sold"correspondent banks. The revenue which the Coynparns (prior to deducting its overh
expenses) is essentially a function of the amofithe Company’s loans and deposits, as well aptbft margin (“interest spread’@nd fe:
income which can be generated on these amounts.

The Company increased from approximately $503.0aniiin total assets, and $396.5 million in deposit December 31, 2010
approximately $681.4 million in total assets, afi¥ %4 million in deposits at December 31, 2011.rsaet of allowance for loan los
increased from $328.0 million at December 31, 2@il@pproximately $383.4 at December 31, 2011. Thmg@any increased from $5'
million in shareholderséquity at December 31, 2010 to approximately $&0illon at December 31, 2011. The First reportetlineome o
$3,496,000 and $3,016,000 for the years ended Deeedi, 2011, and 2010, respectively. For the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2
the Company reported consolidated net income adpkcto common stockholders of $2,529,000 and $02®, respectively. The followil
discussion should be read in conjunction with ti8elécted Consolidated Financial Datafid the Company's Consolidated Finar
Statements and the Notes thereto and the othercigladata included elsewhere.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Earnings:
Net interest incom $ 19,07¢ $ 16,33¢  $ 14,39C $ 16,108 $ 16,87(
Provision for loan losse 1,46¢ 982 1,20¢ 2,20t 1,321
Noninterest incom 4,59¢ 3,89% 4,397 4,631 4,57%
Noninterest expens 18,87( 15,84: 15,32 15,99¢ 14,82
Net income 2,871 2,54¢ 1,74z 1,84¢ 3,82
Net income applicable to common stockholc 2,52¢ 2,23: 1,461 1,84¢ 3,82
Per common share da
Basic net income per she $ 83 % 74 $ 48 8 62 $ 1.2¢
Diluted net income per sha .82 .74 49 .61 1.2
Per share dati
Basic net income per she $ 9 3 84 3 58 $ 62 $ 1.2¢
Diluted net income per sha .93 .84 .58 .61 1.2t
Selected Year End Balanct
Total assets $ 681,41 $ 503,04 $ 477,55: $ 474,82: $ 496,05¢
Securities 221,17¢ 107,13¢ 114,61¢ 102,30¢ 87,05z
Loans, net of allowance 383,41¢ 327,95¢ 314,03¢ 318,30( 367,00:
Deposits 573,39: 396,47¢ 383,75¢ 378,07¢ 386,16¢
Stockholders’ equity 60,42t 57,09¢ 43,611 36,56¢ 36,28!




Results of Operations

The following is a summary of the results of opiera by The First for the years ended Decembe2@11 and 2010.

2011 2010
(In thousands
Interest incom $ 24,46¢ $ 23,45:
Interest expense 5,20¢ 6,93:
Net interest incom 19,26: 16,52(
Provision for loan losses 1,46¢ 982
Net interest income after provision for loan los 17,79: 15,531
Other income 4,59¢ 3,89¢
Other expens 17,73¢ 15,40¢
Income tax expense 1,15¢ 1,01(
Net income $ 349 $  3,01¢




The following reconciles the above table to the ante reflected in the consolidated financial staets of the Company at
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(In thousands

Net interest income
Net interest income of subsidiary bz 19,26. $ 16,52(
Intercompany eliminations (182) (18€)
$ 19,07¢ $ 16,33¢

&

Net income:
Net income of subsidiary bai $ 3,49 $  3,01¢
Net loss of the Company, excluding intercompanyants (967) (7839

©

2,52¢ $ 2,23¢

Consolidated Net Income

The Company reported consolidated net income agigicto common stockholders of approximately $2,8@9 for the year end
December 31, 2011, compared to a consolidatechnetrie of $2,233,000 for the year ended Decembe2(@0. The increase in income \
attributable to an increase in net interest incaf$2.7 million or 16.8%, and an increase of $700,0r 18.0% in other income which w
offset by an increase in other expenses of $3.llomibr 19.1%.

Consolidated Net Interest Income

The largest component of net income for the Compamet interest income, which is the differenceseen the income earned
assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowisgesd to support such assets. Net interest incerdetermined by the rates earned or
Company’s interest-earning assets and the ratab guaiits interest-bearing liabilities, the relatimmounts of interesarning assets a
interest-bearing liabilities, and the degree ofmasch and the maturity and repricing charactesstitits interest-earning assets and interest
bearing liabilities.

Consolidated net interest income was approxim&i#8,079,000 for the year ended December 31, 2Gldompared to $16,334,C
for the year ended December 31, 2010. This incressethe direct result of increased loan volumes @ecreased rates paid on interest-
bearing liabilities during 2011 as compared to 20A0Gerage interedbearing liabilities for the year 2011 were $445,898 compared
$395,956,000 for the year 2010. At December 311201e net interest spread, the difference betweryield on earning assets and the |
paid on interesbearing liabilities, was 3.71% compared to 3.38%atember 31, 2010. The net interest margin (wlsiafet interest incon
divided by average earning assets) was 3.84% éoyd¢lar 2011 compared to 3.60% for the year 201tsRzaid on average interdsaring
liabilities decreased from 1.80% for the year 2840.21% for the year 2011. Interest earned ontassel interest accrued on liabilitie:
significantly influenced by market factors, spemlly interest rates as set by Federal agenciesrage loans comprised 71.3% of ave
earning assets for the year 2011 compared to 7f68%e year 2010.




Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rakbs following tables depict, for the periods watied, certain informatic
related to the average balance sheet and averelgis pin assets and average costs of liabilitiesh $ields are derived by dividing income

expense by the average balance of the correspoads®js or liabilities. Average balances have beerned from daily averages.

Assets

Earning Asset
Loans (1)(2
Securities
Federal funds sol
Other
Total earning assets

Cash and due from ban
Premises and equipme
Other asset

Allowance for loan losses

Total assets

Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Demand deposits (-
Other liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

Net interest sprea

Net yield on interest-earning

assets

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates

Years Ended December &

2011 2010 2009
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense: Rate Balance Expense: Rate Balance Expense: Rate
(Dollars in thousands
$ 35429¢ $ 20,97! 592% $ 328,95( $  20,28¢ 6.1% $ 320,49¢ $ 20,67« 6.45%
134,81! 3,36( 2.4% 106,89: 3,121 2.92% 109,42: 3,861 3.5%%
5,48¢ 72 1.31% 16,47: 21 13% 17,331 28 .16%
2,53( 72 2.85% 85¢ 22 2.5€% 1,991 66 3.31%
497,12t 24,47¢ 4.92% 453,17: 23,45! 5.1¢% 449,23¢ 24,62¢ 5.4&%
47,63: 16,68¢ 9,172
17,40: 14,49( 14,67¢
21,61: 18,46¢ 13,62(
(4,340 (4,519 (5,069
$ 579,43. $ 498,30! $ 481,64:
$ 44589 $ 5,39¢ 121% $ 39595t $ 7,11¢ 18(% $ 384,74 $  10,23¢ 2.6€%
65,83( 49,20 48,85t
18,757 9,43¢ 6,36¢
48,95: 43,71: 41,675
$ 579,43. $ 498,30! $ 481,64:
3.71% 3.3% 2.82%
$  19,07¢ 3.84% $ 16,33 3.6(% $ 14,39 3.2(%

(1) All loans and deposits were made to borrowerséndhited States. Includes nonaccrual loans of $5,%2,212, and $4,367, respectivt
during the periods presented. Loans include helddte loans
(2) Includes loan fees of $418, $400, and $477, resmbet




Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Incom€he following table presents the consolidatedadohmount of changes in inter
income and interest expense attributable to chailgeslume and to changes in rate. The combinedcefi both volume and rate wh
cannot be separately identified has been allogatggortionately to the change due to volume andtduate.

Analysis of Changes in Consolidated Net Interest ktome

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2011 versus 201 2010 versus 200

Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollars in thousands)
Earning Assets

Loans $ 1,56 $ (882) $ 68z $ 54t $ (930 $ (38%)
Securities 81t (57¢) 23¢ (89) (651) (740)
Federal funds sol (14 65 51 2 (5) @)
Other short-term investmer 43 7 50 (37) (7 (44)
Total interest income 2,40¢ (1,386) 1,022 417 (1,599 (1,17¢)

Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interest-bearing transactior

accounts 39t (1,199 (79¢) 99z (1,369 (377)
Money market accoun 152 (20¢) (54) (50) (32 (82)
Savings deposil 18 (32 (14 5) (8) (13
Time depositt (190 (487) (677) (671) (2,590 (2,267)
Borrowed funds (58) (122) (180 (172) (21€) (388
Total interest expense 317 (2,040 (1,727) 94 (3,219 (3,120
Net interest income $ 2091 % 654 $§ 2,74t $ 322 $ 1621 $ 1,94

Interest Sensitivity The Company monitors and manages the pricingnaatdrity of its assets and liabilities in orderdiminish the
potential adverse impact that changes in inteegssrcould have on its net interest income. A nooinig technique employed by the Comp
is the measurement of the Company's interest sétysiigap,” which is the positive or negative duolildifference between assets and liabil
that are subject to interest rate repricing withigiven period of time. The Company also perforssetliability modeling to assess the im|
varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assomspwill have on net interest income. Interesg Isensitivity can be managed by reprii
assets or liabilities, selling securities availatoesale, replacing an asset or liability at maturity adjusting the interest rate during the lif
an asset or liability. Managing the amount of assetd liabilities repricing in the same time intdriielps to hedge the risk and minimize
impact on net interest income of rising or fallimgerest rates. The Company evaluates interesttsétysisk and then formulates guidelir
regarding asset generation and repricing, fundogces and pricing, and dfalance sheet commitments in order to decreaseestteat
sensitivity risk.




The following tables illustrate the Company's cditkstied interest rate sensitivity and consolidatesnulative gap position
December 31, 2009, 2010, and 2011.

December 31, 2009

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 63,217 $ 55,41¢ $ 118,63t $ 200,15¢ % 318,79!
Securities (2 12,09¢ 15,05¢ 27,15¢ 87,46( 114,61¢
Funds sold and other 7,57¢ 29¢€ 7,871 - 7,871
Total earning assets 82,89 70,77¢ 153,66! 287,61¢ 441,28«
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounty(1) $ - $ 122,36: $ 122,36: $ - 122,36
Money market accoun 25,11( - 25,11( - 25,11(
Savings deposits (: - 15,71: 15,71: - 15,71:
Time deposits 59,19: 95,29: 154,48 17,55¢ 172,04:
Total interes-bearing deposit 84,30: 233,36t 317,66¢ 17,55¢ 335,22
Borrowed funds (3) 26 10,40¢ 10,43( 21,607 32,035
Total interest-bearing liabilities 84,32¢ 243,77! 328,09¢ 39,16¢ 367,26
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (1,437 $ (172,99) $ (174,43) $ 248,45, $ 74,02(
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2009 $ (1,437 $ (174,43) $ (174,43) $ 74,020 % 74,02(
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning ass
at December 31, 20( (.3)% (39.5% (39.5% 16.8%
December 31, 2010
After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 62,43¢ $ 62,09t $ 124,53: $ 208,03¢ $ 332,57:
Securities (2 12,01: 7,592 19,60: 87,53: 107,13¢
Funds sold and other 9,08: 12,44 21,52¢ - 21,52¢
Total earning assets 83,53: 82,13( 165,66: 295,57: 461,23!
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounts (1 $ - 8 149,55 $ 149,55 $ - $ 149,55:
Money market accoun 18,85: - 18,85: - 18,85:¢
Savings deposits (: - 14,04: 14,04: - 14,04:
Time deposits 34,43’ 72,88¢ 107,32 58,39¢ 165,72:
Total interes-bearing deposit 53,29( 236,48( 289,77( 58,39¢ 348,16¢
Borrowed funds (3) - 3,07t 3,07¢ 27,03: 30,10%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 53,29( 239,55! 292,84! 85,43( 378,27!
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ 30,247 $ (157,42H % (127,18) $ 210,14: $ 82,96(
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2010 $ 30,24: $ (127,18) $ (127,18) $ 82,96( $ 82,96(
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning ass
at December 31, 20! 6.€% (27.6% (27.6% 18.(%




December 31, 201.

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 72,117 % 74,83. $ 146,94¢ $ 240,98( $ 387,92
Securities (2 9,981 12,94t 22,93: 198,24 221,17¢
Funds sold and other 241 12,78¢ 13,02¢ - 13,02¢
Total earning assets 82,34: 100,56! 182,91( 439,22: 622,13:
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounts (1 $ - $ 20021¢ $ 20021 % - $  200,21(
Money market accoun 43,29¢ - 43,29¢ - 43,29¢
Savings deposits (: - 45,644 45,64+ - 45,644
Time deposits 39,41 87,25¢ 126,67( 50,44 177,11!
Total interes-bearing deposit 82,70" 333,118 415,82( 50,44: 466,26!
Borrowed funds (3) 231 12,99( 13,22; 13,81: 27,03:
Total interest-bearing liabilities 82,93¢ 346,10: 429,04: 64,25¢ 493,29
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (59%) $ (24553) $ (246,13) $ 374,96¢ $ 128,83
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2011 $ (599 $ (246,13) $ (246,13) % 128,83 $ 128,83
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets at
December 31, 201 (.09)% (39.0% (39.6% 20.7%

(1) NOW and savings accounts are subject to immedidtelsawal and repricing. These deposits do not terichmediately react to chang
in interest rates and the Company believes thepesits are a stable and predictable funding sourberefore, these deposits
included in the repricing period that managemetiebes most closely matches the periods in whidy thre likely to reprice rather tr
the period in which the funds can be withdrawn caxttially.

(2) Securities include mortgage backed and other ingtalt paying obligations based upon stated matdatgs

(3) Does not include subordinated debentures of $10080C

The Company generally would benefit from increasimayket rates of interest when it has an assasitive gap and generally fr
decreasing market rates of interest when it iglitgtsensitive. The Company currently is liabilisensitive within the ongear time frame
However, the Company's gap analysis is not a greédicator of its interest sensitivity positiorhd analysis presents only a static view o
timing of maturities and repricing opportunitiesitiut taking into consideration that changes iteriest rates do not affect all assets
liabilities equally. For example, rates paid onubstantial portion of core deposits may changeractially within a relatively short tin
frame, but those rates are viewed by managemesigagicantly less interest-sensitive than markasdd rates such as those paid on cume-
deposits. Accordingly, management believes a ligbdlensitive-position within one year would not &g indicative of the Comparsytrue
interest sensitivity as it would be for an orgaticma which depends to a greater extent on purchéseds to support earning assets.
interest income is also affected by other significkactors, including changes in the volume and ofixarning assets and interéstaring
liabilities.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has developed policies and procedwesValuating the overall quality of its credit golio and the timel

identification of potential problem loans. Manageitg judgment as to the adequacy of the allowancassdupon a number of assumpt

about future events which it believes to be realsiendut which may not prove to be accurate. Tthese can be no assurance that chaffge-
in future periods will not exceed the allowancelf@n losses or that additional increases in tha loss allowance will not be required.




The Companys allowance consists of two parts. The first paudétermined in accordance with authoritative gutgaissued by ti
FASB regarding the allowancéfThe Companys determination of this part of the allowance isdshupon quantitative and qualitative fact
A loan loss history based upon the prior four yesanstilized in determining the appropriate allowanHistorical loss factors are determi
by graded and ungraded loans by loan type. Theseritial loss factors are applied to the loans dgnltype to determine an indica
allowance. The loss factors of peer groups areidered in the determination of the allowance arewsed to assist in the establishment
longterm loss history for areas in which this datansvailable and incorporated into the qualitativetdes to be considered. The histor
loss factors may also be modified based upon abaelitative factors including but not limited tockl and national economic conditic
trends of delinquent loans, changes in lendingcsdiand underwriting standards, concentrationd,rmanagemend’ knowledge of the lo:
portfolio. These factors require judgment uponhe of management and are based upon state andalaconomic reports received fr
various institutions and agencies including thedfaldReserve Bank, United States Bureau of Econémadysis, Bureau of Labor Statisti
meetings with the Company’s loan officers and loammittees, and data and guidance received orrautdiom the Compang’regulator
authorities.

The second part of the allowance is determined¢ao@ance with guidance issued by the FASB reggrifinpaired loanslmpairec
loans are determined based upon a review by ift&yaa review and senior loan officers. Impairedres are loans for which the bank ¢
not expect to receive contractual interest andforcipal by the due date. A specific allowance $signed to each loan determined t
impaired based upon the value of the loan’s undeglgollateral. Appraisals are used by managentedétermine the value of the collateral.

The sum of the two parts constitutes manageradigst estimate of an appropriate allowance fan loases. When the estima
allowance is determined, it is presented to the @omy’'s audit committee for review and approval ajuarterly basis.

Our allowance for loan losses model is focused sialdishing a loss history within the bank and iredyon specific impairment
determine credits that the bank feels the ultimapayment source will be liquidation of the subjealiateral. Our model takes into accc
many other factors as well such as local and natienonomic factors, portfolio trends, non perfarghasset, charge off, and delinque
trends as well as underwriting standards and tiperéence of branch management and lending stafiese trends are measured in
following ways:

Local Trends: ( Updated quarterly usually the mdotlowing quarter end )

Local Unemployment Rate

Insurance issues (Windpool areas)
Bankruptcy Rates (increasing/declining)
Local Commercial R/E Vacancy rates
Established market/new market
Hurricane threat
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National Trends: Updated quarterly usually the month following qeasnd )
Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
Home Sales
Consumer Price Index (CPI)
Interest Rate Environment (increasing/steady/dexgin
Single Family construction starts
Inflation Rate
Retail Sales

Portfolio Trends: ( Updated monthly as the ALLLceculated )
Second Mortgages
Single Pay Loans
Non-Recourse Loans
Limited Guaranty Loans
Loan to Value Exceptions
Secured by Non-Owner Occupied property
Raw Land Loans
Unsecured Loans

Measurable Bank Trends: ( Updated quarterly)
Delinquency Trends
Non-Accrual Trends
Net Charge Offs
Loan Volume Trends
Non-Performing Assets
Underwriting Standards/Lending Policies
Experience/Depth of Bank Lending
Management

Our model takes into account many local and nakiesanomic factors as well as portfolio trends.céloand national econon
trends are measured quarterly, typically in the tmdollowing quarter end to facilitate the releasfeeconomic data from the report
agencies. These factors are allocated a basis yalire ranging from25 to +25 basis points and directly affect the antoaserved for ea
branch. As of December 31, 2011, most economicéors both local and national pointed to a weeinemy thus most factors w
assigned a positive basis point value. This ine@g@dke amount of the allowance that was indicateHistorical loss factors. Portfolio trer
are measured monthly on a per branch basis tordieierthe percentage of loans in each branch tleabaimk has determined as having r
risk. Portfolio risk is defined as areas in thelda loan portfolio in which there is additional risk/olved in the loan type or some other
in which the bank has identified as having moré&.riEach area is tracked on bank-wide as well as tnanchwide basis. Branches i
analyzed based on the gross percentage of contensraf the bank as a whole. Portfolio risk isedmined by analyzing concentration:
the areas outlined by determining the percentagmoii brancls total portfolio that is made up of the particdtzan type and then compar
that concentration to the bank as a whole. BranulitBsconcentrations in these areas are gradedsoala from 25 basis points to + 25 ba
points. Second mortgages, single pay loans, loacisrad by raw land, unsecured loans and loansestiyrnon owner occupied property
considered to be of higher risk than those of argetand amortizing basis. LTV exceptions placebiuek at risk in the event of reposses
or foreclosure.
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Measurable Bank Wide Trends are measured on aegjlyaoasis as well. This consists of data tracked dank wide basis in whi
we have identified areas of additional risk or tleed for additional allocation to the allowancelf@n loss. Data is updated quarterly, «
area is assigned a basis point value fr@B basis points to + 25 basis points based on teml area measures to the previous time pe
Net charge offs, loan volume trends and non peifugnassets have all trended upwards therefore asarg the need for increased fu
reserved for loan losses. Underwriting standdealing standards as well as experience/ deptlak lkending management is evaluated
per branch level.

Loans are reviewed for impairment when, in the bampinion, the ultimate source of repayment willthe liquidation of collater
through foreclosure or repossession. Once idedtiipdated collateral values are attained on tleses and impairment worksheets
prepared to determine if impairment exists. Thisthnd takes into account any expected expense®deia the disposal of the subj
collateral. Specific allowances for these loares dwne on a per loan basis as each loan is revi@werhpairment. Updated appraisals
ordered on real estate loans and updated valuaiensrdered on non real estate loans to deteracitual market value.

At December 31, 2011, the consolidated allowancddan losses amounted to approximately $4,511,000,16% of outstandir
loans or 1.31% of loans excluding those bookediatvilue due to business combination. At Decer3fie2010, the allowance for loan los
amounted to approximately $4,617,000, which wa9%.®f outstanding loans. The Compaprovision for loan losses was $1,468,00(
the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to (K3B8r the year ended December 31, 2010.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuindormation and events, it is probable that treerpany will be unable to colle
the scheduled payments of principal or interestrwtiee according to the contractual terms of the lagreement. Factors considerec
management in determining impairment include payns¢atus, collateral value, and the probabilitycoflecting scheduled principal a
interest payments when due. Loans that experiensignificant payment delays and payment shortfgbiserally are not classified
impaired. Management determines the significangeagment delays and payment shortfalls on a casmbg basis, taking into considera
all of the circumstances surrounding the loan &edbbrrower, including the length of the delay, tbasons for the delay, the borrovegptiol
payment record, and the amount of the shortfalelation to the principal and interest owed. ImpaEnt is measured on a loan by loan b
Impaired loans not deemed collateral dependensiaaéyzed according to the ultimate repayment souvbether that is cash flow from 1
borrower, guarantor or some other source of repayntmpaired loans are deemed collateral deperifiémthe banks opinion the ultimal
source of repayment will be generated from theidigtion of collateral.
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The Company discontinues accrual of interest omdowhen management believes, after consideringoesicnand busine
conditions and collection efforts, that a borrowdihancial condition is such that the collectidnirierest is doubtful. Generally, the Comp
will place a delinquent loan in nonaccrual statdewthe loan becomes 90 days or more past dudeAtrhe a loan is placed in nonacc
status, all interest which has been accrued orotire but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted &arnings as a reduction of repo
interest income. No additional interest is accroadthe loan balance until the collection of botingipal and interest becomes reason

certain.

The following tables illustrate the Company’s pdis¢ and nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2011 Gi@l 2

Real Estat-constructior
Real Estat-mortgage
Real Estai-non farm nonresidenti
Commercial
Consumer
Total

Real Estai-constructior
Real Estat-mortgage
Real Estat-non farm nonresidenti;
Commercial
Consumer
Total

December 31, 201

Past Due 30 t

(In thousands)

Past Due 90 days or

89 Days more and still accruir Non-Accrual

$ 70 $ 22 $ 94t
2,18¢ 311 984

1,662 144 2,871

13€ 19 24¢€

214 - 73

$ 427 $ 49€ $ 5,12¢

December 31, 201I

Past Due 30 t

(In thousands)

Past Due 90 days or

89 Days more and still accruir Non-Accrual

$ 59 $ 1% 1,43¢
3,67: 153 89:

43¢ 737 1,452

74C 144 38¢

262 36 48

$ 5,70¢ $ 1,071 $ 4,21

Total nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2011 amduot&5.1 million which was an increase of $.9 iwill over the December
2010 amount of $4.2 million. Management believesséhrelationships were adequately reserved at Omare®i, 2011 Restructured loal

not reported as past due or nonaccrual at Decegih@011 amounted to $4.2 million.

A potential problem loan is one in which managente# serious doubts about the borrowéuture performance under the term
the loan contract. These loans are current asitigipal and interest and, accordingly, they areinoiuded in nonperforming asset catego
The level of potential problem loans is one factsed in the determination of the adequacy of thtmvaince for loan losses. At December
2011 and December 31, 2010, the subsidiary bankbtehtial problem loans of $25,687,000 and $30BI® respectively. This represen

decrease of $4,613,000.
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Consolidated Allowance For Loan Losses

Years Ended December

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Average loans outstanding $ 35429 $ 32895 $ 320,49 $ 34957. $  338,36¢
Loans outstanding at year end $ 387,92¢ $ 332570 $ 318,79% $ 323,08 $ 371,22
Total nonaccrual loans $ 512t § 421z $ 4367 $ 3,34C $ 2,42¢
Beginning balance of allowan: $ 4617 $ 4,76z $ 4,78t $ 4,221 $ 3,79%
Loans charged-off (1,987%) (1,370 (1,396 (1,789 (950)
Total loans charged-off (1,987 (1,370 (1,396 (1,784 (950
Total recoveries 413 242 167 142 57
Net loans charge-off (1,579 (1,12¢) (1,229 (1,64 (899)
Acquisition - - - - -
Provision for loan losses 1,46¢ 982 1,20¢ 2,20¢ 1,321
Balance at year end $ 4511 $ 4617 $ 4,762 $ 4,78 $ 4,221
Net charg-offs to average loar Ad% .34% .38% A% .2€%
Allowance as percent of total loa 1.16% 1.3%% 1.4<% 1.4% 1.14%
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total It 1.32% 1.27% 1.37% 1.05% .65%
Allowance as a multiple of nonaccrual loz .8eX 1.1X 1.1X 1.4X 1.7X

At December 31, 2011, the components of the alleedar loan losses consisted of the following:

Allocated:
Impaired loan:
Graded loans

Allowance
(In thousands

$ 73€
3,77¢
$ 4,511

Graded loans are those loans or pools of loangrasdia grade by internal loan review.
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The following table represents the activity of tilewance for loan losses for the years 2011 arid20
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losse
Years Ended December 3.

2011 201(
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of ye $ 4617 $ 4,762
Charge-offs:
Real Estat-constructior (330 (312
Real Estat-mortgage (799 (460)
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidenti (440 (43
Commercia (327 (367)
Consumer (97) (18¢)
Total (1,987) (1,370
Recoveries
Real Estat-constructior - 14
Real Estat-mortgage 96 51
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii 21¢F -
Commercia 29 71
Consumer 73 10€
Total 413 242
Net Charg-offs (1,579 (1,129
Provision for Loan Losses 1,46¢ 983
Balance at end of year $ 4511 $ 4,617

The following tables represent how the allowangddan losses is allocated to a particular loaretgp well as the percentage of the
category to total loans at December 31, 2011 ad®.20

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losse:

December 31, 201.
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans
in each catego
Amount to total loans

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 397 16.5%
Commercial Real Esta 3,35¢ 63.€%
Consumer Real Esta 68C 15.7%
Consume 78 4.2%
Unallocated - -
Total $ 4,511 10(%
December 31, 201!
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans
in each catego
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 757 15.%
Commercial Real Esta 2,817 62.2%
Consumer Real Esta 902 18.(%
Consume 14C 2.2%
Unallocated 1 1.C%
Total $ 4,617 10(%
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Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest Income The Companyg primary source of noninterest income is servitarges on deposit accounts. Other sourc
noninterest income include bankcard fees, comnrissim check sales, safe deposit box rent, wiresteariees, official check fees and b
owned life insurance income.

Noninterest income experienced an increase of $003pr 18.0% as compared to $3,895,000 for the geded December 31, 20
to $4,598,000 for the year ended December 31, Z0A4.deposit activity fees were $2,704,000 for 26atpared to $2,374,000 for 20
Other service charges decreased by $44,000 or 2a#6$1,697,000 for the year ended December 310 2@1$1,653,000 for the year en
December 31, 2011. Impairment losses on investsemirities were $4,000 for 2011 as compared to $80Xor 2010.

Noninterest expense increased from $15.8 millionthe year ended December 31, 2010 to $18.9 milfamthe year ends
December 31, 2011. The Company experienced slghéases in most expense categories. The larggease was in salaries and emplt
benefits, which increased by $986,000 in 2011 aspeoed to 2010. These increases were due in ptretaddition of the Whitney brancl
and associated staff.

The following table sets forth the primary compatsest noninterest expense for the periods indicated

Noninterest Expense
Years ended December 3:
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Salaries and employee bene $ 9,67¢ $ 8,69. $ 8,401
Occupancy 1,35¢ 1,052 1,071
Equipment 1,114 97€ 90C
Marketing and public relatior 353 31z 32¢
Data processin 46 12 30
Supplies and printin 41€ 284 27¢
Telephone 34¢€ 271 24¢
Correspondent servic 10t 11¢€ 11C
Deposit and other insuran 86% 1,11¢ 1,01¢
Professional and consulting fe 1,82t 924 83C
Postage 23€ 14¢€ 173
ATM fees 31C 22¢ 217
Other 2,21¢ 1,71C 1,71¢€

Total $ 18,87C $ 15,84: $ 15,32¢

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense consists of two components fif$tes the current tax expense which represdmseixpected income tax to

paid to taxing authorities. The Company also recamdeferred tax for future deductible amountsite® from differences in the financ
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
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Analysis of Financial Condition
Earning Assets

Loans.Loans typically provide higher yields than the othypes of earning assets, and thus one of the @oypgoals is for loans
be the largest category of the Company's earnisgtesAt December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectiagigrage loans accounted for 71%
73% of earning assets. Management attempts toatamd counterbalance the inherent credit and ditirisks associated with the higl
loan yields without sacrificing asset quality thewve its asset mix goals. Loans averaged $354l®mduring 2011, as compared to $32
million during 2010, and $320.5 million during 2009

The following table shows the composition of tharigortfolio by category:
Composition of Loan Portfolio

December 31
2011 2010 2009
Percent Percent Percent
Amount Of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans held for sa $ 2,90¢ 0.7% $ 2,93¢ 05% $ 3,692 1.2%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 48,38t 12.5% 48,42" 14.€% 43,22¢ 13.€%
Real Estate!
Mortgage--commercia 138,94 35.8% 109,07: 32.&% 87,49 27.2%
Mortgageresidential 117,69: 30.2% 102,42! 30.8% 102,73t 32.2%
Constructior 63,35 16.2% 58,96: 17.7% 68,69t 21.5%
Consumer and oth 16,64¢ 4.4% 10,74¢ 3.2% 12,94¢ 4.1%
Total loans 387,92¢ 10C% 332,57 10C% 318,79! 10C%
Allowance for loan losses (4,51) (4,617 (4,762)
Net loans $ 38341 $  327,95¢ $ 314,03

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatatgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thamdofor construction purpos
secured by real estate, regardless of the purpbsieecloan. The Company follows the common practédinancial institutions in tr
Companys market area of obtaining a security interesteial estate whenever possible, in addition to aimgroavailable collateral. Tt
collateral is taken to reinforce the likelihoodth& ultimate repayment of the loan and tends toeame the magnitude of the real estate
portfolio component. Generally, the Company limits loan-tovalue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to maintainonservativ
philosophy regarding its underwriting guidelinesddmelieves it will reduce the risk elements of lidan portfolio through strategies t
diversify the lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the bank and sold into the secondary matkenmitments from investc
to purchase the loans are obtained upon origination
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The following table sets forth the Company's conuiarand construction real estate loans maturingpiwispecified intervals
December 31, 2011.

Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changesn Interest Rates

December 31, 201,
Over One Yeal
One Year Through Over Five
Type or Less Five Years Years Total
(In thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultut $ 27,95 $ 18,04: $ 2,38¢ $ 48,38t
Real estate — construction 63,35’ - - 63,355

$ 9131 $ 18,04: $ 2,38t $§ 111,74
Loans maturing after one year wi $ 17,73
Fixed interest rates 2,69¢
Floating interest rates $ 20,43(

The information presented in the above table ietham the contractual maturities of the individieains, including loans which m
be subject to renewal at their contractual matuRgnewal of such loans is subject to review amrdlitrapproval, as well as modification
terms upon their maturity.

Investment Securitie§.he investment securities portfolio is a signific@emponent of the Company's total earning asSettal
securities averaged $134.8 million in 2011, as canegh to $106.9 million in 2010 and $109.4 million2009. This represents 27.1%, 23.
and 24.4% of the average earning assets for thes yaaled December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, résglgctAt December 31, 201
investment securities were $221.2 million and repnted 35.6% of earning assets. The Company ateilmphaintain a portfolio of hig
quality, highly liquid investments with returns cpatitive with shortterm U.S. Treasury or agency obligations. This cibje is particularl
important as the Company focuses on growing its leartfolio. The Company primarily invests in satias of U.S. Government agenci
municipals, and corporate obligations with matastup to five years.

The following table summarizes the book value clusiies for the dates indicated.
Securities Portfolio

December 31
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale

U. S. Government agenci $ 103,000 $ 41,17: $ 59,51¢
States and municipal subdivisic 94,25¢ 54,67 41,98:
Corporate obligation 14,29: 7,70z 9,77
Mutual finds 974 98€ 95¢
Total available-for-sale 212,52¢ 104,53 112,23:
Held-to-maturity
U.S. Government agenci 2 3 3
States and municipal subdivisions 6,00( - -
Total held-to-maturity 6,00z 3 3
Total $ 21853 $ 10453 $ 112,23
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The following table shows, at carrying value, tbbeduled maturities and average yields of secaiitedd at December 31, 2011.

Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yields (1)

(Dollars in thousands

Held-to-maturity:

U.S. Government agencies |

States and municipal subdivisions

Total investment securities held-to-maturity
Available-for-sale:

U.S. Government agencies |

States and municipal subdivisic

Corporate obligations and other

Total investment securities available-for-sale

December 31, 201

After One But After Five But

Within One Yeal Within Five Years  Within Ten Years After Ten Years

Amount  Yield Amouni  Yield Amount  Yield Amouni  Yield
$ - - $ - - 3 - - $ - -
- - - - - - 6,00( .67%
$ - $ - $ - $ 6,00(
2,00¢ 5% 33,81¢ 1.06% 7,852 3.6(% - -
10,13: 3.0% 39,30¢ 3.06% 30,48¢ 418 14,33¢ 5.2%
1,847 5.0% 10,22¢ 1.96% - - 2,221 1.8%
$13,98: $83,34¢ $38,331 $16,557

(1) Investments with a call feature are shown as ottractual maturity dat
(2) Excludes mortgac-backed securities totaling $2 thousand with a yigld.34%.
(3) Excludes mortga¢-backed securities totaling $59.3 million with alglief 2.59% and mutual funds of $1.0 millic

Short-Term InvestmentShortterm investments, consisting of Federal Funds Smldraged $5.5 million in 2011, $16.5 millior
2010, and $17.9 million in 2009. At December 31120and December 31, 2010, shiemm investments totaled $241,000 and $9,083
respectively. These funds are a primary sourcé@fQompany's liquidity and are generally investedrn earning capacity on an overn

basis.

Deposits

Deposits Average total deposits increased $18.0 millior4.6€6 in 2010. Average total deposits increased368llion, or 16.9% ii
2011. At December 31, 2011, total deposits were3®billion, compared to $396.5 million a year @arlan increase of $176.9 million,

44.6%.

The following table sets forth the deposits of @@mpany by category for the period indicated.

(Dollars in thousand:s

Noninteres-bearing account

NOW account:

Money market accoun

Savings accoun

Time deposits less than $100,(

Time deposits of $100,000 or over
Total deposits

Deposits

December 31
2011 2010 2009
Percent Percent Percent
of of of
Amount Depositt  Amount Depositt  Amount Deposit:

$107,12¢ 18.7% $ 48,31: 12.2%% $ 48,52 12.€%
200,21( 34.%% 149,55: 37.1% 122,36: 31.%
43,29¢ 7.6% 18,85 4.8% 25,11( 6.5%
45,64« 8.C% 14,04 3.5% 15,71 4.1%
77,56¢ 13.2% 65,39! 16.5% 82,11¢ 21.4%
99,54¢ 17.2% 100,32t 25.5%  89,92¢ 23.5%
$573,39: 10C% $396,47¢ 10C% $383,75¢ 10C%
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The Company’s loan-to-deposit ratio was 67% at Ddimr 31, 2011 and 83% at December 31, 2010. Thethedeposit rati
averaged 75.1% during 2011. Core deposits, whictudr time deposits of $100,000 or more, providelatively stable funding source
the Company's loan portfolio and other earning tas§he Company's core deposits were $473.8 milliioBecember 31, 2011 and $2¢
million at December 31, 2010. Management anticp#tat a stable base of deposits will be the Cogipamimary source of funding to m
both its short-term and lontgrm liquidity needs in the future. The Company paschased brokered deposits from time to timeelp func
loan growth. Brokered deposits and jumbo certiisabtf deposit generally carry a higher interest than traditional core deposits. Furt
brokered deposit customers typically do not hawamn lor other relationships with the Company. The @gamy has adopted a policy no
permit brokered deposits to represent more than diod# of the Company’s deposits.

The maturity distribution of the Company's certiies of deposit of $100,000 or more at Decembe81], is shown in tt
following table. The Company did not have any offiree deposits of $100,000 or more.

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit
of $100,000 or More

After Three
Within Three Through After Twelve
(In thousands) Months Twelve Months Months Total
December 31, 201 $ 21,85: $ 52,09¢ $ 25,59¢ $ 99,54¢

Borrowed Funds

Borrowed funds consists of advances from the Fédtsme Loan Bank of Dallas, federal funds purchased reverse repurch:
agreements. At December 31, 2011, advances fronkktd8 totaled $12.0 million compared to $15.1 noilliat December 31, 2010. 1
advances are collateralized by a blanket lien erfitst mortgage loans in the amount of the outlitemborrowings, FHLB capital stock, &
amounts on deposit with the FHLB. There were neffabdfunds purchased at December 31, 2011 and Dmredd, 2010.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of thre@&GB@D agreements. These agreements are secusedunjties with a fair valt
of $19,460,231 at December 31, 2011 and $18,193:00December 31, 2010. The maturity dates are fAargust 22, 2012 throu
September 26, 2017, with rates between 3.81% &idsl.

Subordinated Debentures

In 2006, the Company issued subordinated debentir$d,124,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Stagutrust 2 (Trust 2). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the T2ughe Trust 2 issued $4,000,000 of preferredsiées to investors. The Company ms
interest payments and will make principal paymemtshe debentures to the Trust 2. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemableatime beginning in 2011 and thereafter, and neaini2036. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.
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In 2007, the Company issued subordinated debentir$6,186,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Stagutrust 3 (Trust 3). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the T8ud he Trust 3 issued $6,000,000 of preferredsiées to investors. The Company ms
interest payments and will make principal paymemtshe debentures to the Trust 3. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemableatime beginning in 2012 and thereafter, and neaitni2037. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.

Capital

Total shareholdergquity as of December 31, 2011, was $60.4 millnincrease of $3.3 million or approximately 5.8%mpare
with shareholders' equity of $57.1 million as ofdember 31, 2010.

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory &gerexquire bank holding companies and financistitintions to maintain capit
at adequate levels based on a percentage of asgketsdfbalance sheet exposures, adjusted for risk werghiging from 0% to 100%. Unc
the riskbased standard, capital is classified into twastigier 1 capital consists of common sharehold®ysity, excluding the unrealized g
(loss) on available-fosale securities, minus certain intangible asse&s. I capital consists of the general reserve danllosses, subject
certain limitations. An institution’s total risk-bad capital for purposes of its ribsed capital ratio consists of the sum of its Tiand Tier
capital. The risk-based regulatory minimum requigeis are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total risk-baseylital.

Bank holding companies and banks are also requir@daintain capital at a minimum level based oaltassets, which is known
the leverage ratio. The minimum requirement for ltherage ratio is 4%. All but the highest ratestitations are required to maintain ra
100 to 200 basis points above the minimum. The Gommnd the subsidiary bank exceeded their minimegulatory capital ratios as
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Analysis of Capital

Adequately Well The Compan Subsidiary Banl
Capital Ratios Capitalizec  Capitalizec December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2011 2010
Leverage 4.0% 5.C% 8.5% 13.1% 8.2% 10.7%
Risk-based capita
Tier 1 4.0% 6.C% 12.€% 18.4% 12.4% 15.(%
Total 8.C% 10.(% 13.€% 19.€% 13.2% 16.2%
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Ratios

2011 2010 2009

Return on assets (net income applicable to comnumkisolders

divided by average total asse Ad% A% .3C%
Return on equity (net income applicable to comntooldolders

divided by average equit' 5.2% 5.1% 3.5%
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per share dividbgchet income

per common shar¢ 18.2% 20.2% -
Equity to asset ratio (average equity divided ‘grage total

assets 8.4% 8.8% 8.7%

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Comygansources and uses of funds in order to meeddjstoday cash flo\
requirements while maximizing profits. Liquiditymesents the ability of a company to convert assétscash or cash equivalents witk
significant loss and to raise additional funds hgréasing liabilities. Liquidity management is madere complicated because diffel
balance sheet components are subject to varyingeeggf management control. For example, the tinmhgaturities of the investme
portfolio is very predictable and subject to a hiffyree of control at the time investment decisamesmade; however, net deposit inflows
outflows are far less predictable and are not stlifethe same degree of control. Asset liquidétyprovided by cash and assets whict
readily marketable, which can be pledged, or whigh mature in the near future. Liability liquiditis provided by access to core func
sources, principally the ability to generate custogeposits in the Company’s market area.

The Company's Federal Funds Sold position, whidlggecally its primary source of liquidity, averay5.5 million during the ye
ended December 31, 2011 and totaled $241,000 ariteer 31, 2011. Also, the Company has availablaraks from the Federal Ho
Loan Bank. Advances available are generally bagesh uhe amount of qualified first mortgage loansahcan be used for collateral.
December 31, 2011, advances available totaled appately $160.3 million of which $12.0 million hazken drawn, or used for letters
credit.

Management regularly reviews the liquidity positmithe Company and has implemented internal pedigihich establish guidelir
for sources of asset-based liquidity and limit i@l amount of purchased funds used to supporbdfence sheet and funding from noore
sources.

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on axasiunts from $100,000 to $250,000. However, withpassage of the Dodd-
Frank Act, this increase in the basic coveraget liras been made permanent.
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Following a systemic risk determination, the FDISablished a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Prog¢arhGP”) on October 1«
2008. The TLGP included the Transaction Accounti@ntee Program (“TAGP”\Wwhich provided unlimited deposit insurance cove
through June 30, 2010 for noninterbs@ring transaction accounts (typically businessckimg accounts) and certain funds swept
noninteresbearing savings accounts. Institutions particigatin the TAGP pay a 10 basis points fee (annudjiom the balance of ec
covered account in excess of $250,000, while tiiaaeposit insurance is in place. The Companwgitigpating in the TAGP.

The Company elected to participate in the Trea3lw@ Program that provides an FDIC guarantee fosatlior unsecured debt, w
stated maturities in excess of 30 days, issueddmtvDctober 14, 2008 and June 30, 2009. The geasamtill expire no later than June
2012. The Company did not issue any debt undeiptioigram.

Subprime Assets
The Bank does not engage in subprime lending #esviargeted towards borrowers in high risk catiego

Accounting Matters

Information on new accounting matters is set fantlrootnote B to the Consolidated Financial Stat@smécluded at Item 8 in tt
report. This information is incorporated hereinrbference.

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets aatiliies of financial institutions such as the Gmany are primarily monetary
nature. Therefore, interest rates have a morefgignt effect on the Company's performance thathdceffects of changes in the general
of inflation and change in prices. In addition girgst rates do not necessarily move in the saraetidin or in the same magnitude as the p
of goods and services. As discussed previously agement seeks to manage the relationships betwtsest sensitive assets and liabil
in order to protect against wide interest ratetfiations, including those resulting from inflation.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 10,152,33 $ 12,450,29
Interes-bearing deposits with ban 12,787,61 12,443,41
Federal funds sold 241,00( 9,083,001
Total cash and cash equivale 23,180,95 33,976,70
Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of $6,002,399 012 and $2,763 in 201! 6,002,27 2,64(
Available-for-sale securitie 212,528,38 104,534,24
Other securities 2,645,25I 2,598,95I
Total securitie: 221,175,91 107,135,83
Loans held for sal 2,906,43: 2,937,83.
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,538& 2011 and $4,617,080 in 20 380,511,38 325,017,84
Interest receivabl 2,771,67 2,022,85:
Premises and equipme 22,990,44 14,993,92
Cash surrender value of life insurar 6,270,19: 6,083,56
Goodwill 9,362,49 702,21¢
Other assets 12,243,75 10,174,00
Total assets $ 681,413,24 $ 503,044,77
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits;
Noninteres-bearing $ 107,129,47 $ 48,312,23
Interest-bearing 466,264,70 348,167,18
Total deposit: 573,394,17 396,479,41
Interest payabl 307,75: 410,91¢
Borrowed funds 27,031,83 30,106,89
Subordinated debentur 10,310,00 10,310,00
Other liabilities 9,944,201 8,639,45
Total liabilities 620,987,96 445,946,69
Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, $1,000 per shaugdidion, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 17,:
shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 20}k atreely 16,938,57 16,938,57
Common stock, par value $1 per share: 10,000,08stauthorized; 3,092,566 and 3,058,71
shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 204fiectvely 3,092,561 3,058,711
Additional paic-in capital 23,504,23 23,418,76
Retained earning 16,791,56 14,722,49
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I 561,99 (576,819
Treasury stock, at cost (463,645 (463,645
Total stockholders’ equity 60,425,28 57,098,08
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 68141324 $  503,044,77

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.

24




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loa $ 20,971,200 $ 20,289,15
Interest and dividends on securiti
Taxable interest and dividen 1,892,62: 1,891,32:
Tax-exempt interes 1,467,39. 1,230,02.
Interest on federal funds sc 72,36¢ 21,33¢
Interest on deposits in banks 71,13¢ 21,57
Total interest income 24,474,71 23,453,41
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or 1,443,57! 1,814,20:
Interest on other depos 2,757,32 3,930,02
Interest on borrowed funds 1,194,63 1,375,06
Total interest expense 5,395,53! 7,119,29;
Net interest incom 19,079,18 16,334,12:
Provision for loan losses 1,468,35! 982,66:
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17,610,82 15,351,45
OTHER INCOME
Service charges on deposit accol 2,704,14! 2,373,68
Other service charges and ft 1,653,27! 1,697,12.
Bank owned life insurance incor 186,62- 226,49:
Loss on sale of other real est (78,845 (20,07%)
Other 136,78: 89,94¢
Impairment loss on securitie
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment los (140,359 (1,713,52)
Less: Portion of loss recognized in other compnsive income 136,07 1,241,71.
Net impairment loss recognized in earnings (4,27%) (471,81)
Total other income 4,597,69 3,895,36:
OTHER EXPENSE
Salaries 8,166,47! 7,268,97.
Employee benefit 1,512,60! 1,423,633
Occupancy 1,355,76! 1,051,53
Furniture and equipme 1,113,62. 975,79
Supplies and printin 415,95 284,35
Professional and consulting fe 1,825,23. 923,62t
Marketing and public relatior 353,14! 311,53¢
FDIC and OCC assessme 811,14 1,066,96.
Other 3,316,22! 2,536,47.
Total other expense 18,870,18 15,842,87.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Continued: 2011 2010
Income before income tax 3,338,33! 3,403,94;
Income taxes 466,90( 855,19¢
Net income 2,871,43i 2,548,74.
Preferred dividends and stock accretion 342,46( 316,19(

Net income applicable to common stockholders $ 2,528,970 $ 2,232,55
Net income per shar

Basic $ 94 $ .84

Diluted .93 .84
Net income applicable to common stockhold

Basic $ 83 $ .74

Diluted .82 .74

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Accum-
ulated
Other
Compre-
Compre- Additional hensive
hensive Common Preferred Stock Paid-in Retained Income Treasury
Income Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total
Balance
January 1, 201 $ 3,046,36: $ 4,773,010 $ 283,73t $23,134,76 $12,94354 $ (101,100 $ (463,64} $43,616,66
Comprehensiv:
Income:
Net income 201l $ 2,548,74. — — — — 2,548,74. — — 2,548,74.
Non-credit related
impairment loss on
investment securities, n
of tax (819,529 — — — — — (819,529 — (819,52%)
Net change in unrealized
gain on available- fosale
securities, net of ta 335,31 — — — — — 335,31: — 335,31:
Net change in unrealized
loss on loans held for
sale, net of tax 8,501 — — — — — 8,501 — 8,501
Comprehensive Income $ 2,073,03
Issuance of preferred sto — 12,123,00! — — — — — 12,123,00
Accretion of preferred stock
discount — 42,56! — — (42,56) — — —
Dividends on preferred stot — — — — (273,629 — — (273,629
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Accum-
ulated
Other
Compre-
Compre- Additional hensive
hensive Common Preferred Stock Paid-in Retained Income Treasury
Continued: Income Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total
Cash dividend declared, $.15 p
common shar — — — — (453,599) — — (453,599)
Grant of restricted Stoc 12,35 — — (12,357 — — — —
Compensation cost on restricte
stock — — — 12,61( — — — 12,61(
Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 3,058,711 $16,938,57 $ 283,73t $23,135,02 $14,72249 $ (576,819 $ (463,64) $57,098,08
Comprehensivi
Income:
Net income 201 $ 2,871,430 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —  $ 287143 $ — 3 — $ 2,871,43

Non-credit related

impairment loss on

investment securities, n

of tax (118,20¢) — — — — — (118,20¢) — (118,20¢)
Net change in unrealized

gain on available- fosale

securities, net of ta 1,238,66! — — — — — 1,238,66! — 1,238,66!
Net change in unrealized

loss on loans held for

sale, net of tax 18,357 — — — — — 18,357 — 18,357
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Accum-
ulated
Other
Compre-
Compre- Additional hensive
hensive Common Preferred Stock Paid-in Retained Income  Treasury
Continued: Income Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total
Comprehensive Income $ 4,010,24!
Dividends on preferred stoc — — — — (342,46() — — (342,46()
Cash dividend declared, $.15 per common s — — — — (459,91)) — — (459,91
Grant of restricted stoc 33,85( — — (33,85() — — — —
Compensation cost on restricted stock — — — 119,32( — — — 119,32(
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 3,092,561 $ 16,938,57 $ 283,73t $ 23,220,49 $ 16,791,56 $ 561,99 $ (463,649 $ 60,425,28

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
FHLB Stock dividend:
Provision for loan losse
Impairment loss on securiti

Loss (Gain) on sale/call of securiti

Deferred income taxe
Restricted stock expen

Increase in cash value of life insural

Amortization and accretion, n

Loss on sale/writedown of other real es

Changes in
Loans held for sal
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Interest payabl
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie

Purchases of other securit

Purchase of he-to-maturity securitie:

Proceeds from maturities and calls of avail-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale

Proceeds from redemption of other securi

Increase in loan

Net additions to premises and equipmr
Net cash received from acquisition
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in depo
Proceeds from borrowed fun
Repayment of borrowed fun
Dividends paid on common sto
Dividends paid on preferred sto

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and wiarra
Net cash provided by (used in) financing actigitie

2011 2010
$ 2,871,43 $ 2,548,74.
1,159,741 869,73¢
(3,700) (4,100)
1,468,35! 982,66
4,27¢ 471,81
31¢ (50,715
163,74 (84,60%)
119,32( 12,61(
(186,62 (226,497)
213,53 271,20
394,91 351,39:
59,21¢ 767,37(
(662,19:) 295,35
2,111,33; 2,640,43!
(176,00%) (261,430)
(405,18:) 1,464,75:
7,132,49 10,048,73
(162,035,57) (51,246,71)
(315,00() (595,50()
(6,000,001 —
48,350,27 56,508,88
7,144,271 1,009,00!
272,40 384,30(
(13,972,40) (18,956,15)
(1,373,85) (1,370,24)
116,143,03 —

(11,786,85) (14,266,43)
(2,270,88) 12,725,51
31,675,00 8,500,00!
(34,750,06) (10,430,18)
(452,98:) (452,98()
(342,46() (261,81

— 12,123,00
(6,141,39) 22,203,53

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Continued: 2011 2010

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (10,795,75) 17,985,83
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 33,976,70 15,990,87
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 23,180,95 $ 33,976,70

Supplemental disclosure

Cash paid during the year for

Interest $ 5,498,70. $ 7,380,72!

Income taxe: 862,85! 1,366,85.
Non-cash activities:

Transfers of loans to other real esf 3,128,50: 3,296,14.

Issuance of restricted stock gra 33,85( 12,35:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - NATURE OF BUSINESS
The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) is a baslking company whose business is primarily coneldidby its whollyewnec
subsidiary, The First, A National Banking Assoa@atithe Bank). The Bank provides a full range afkiag services in its primary marl
area of South Mississippi and Bogalusa, Louisidie Company is regulated by the Federal Reservé&.Bensubsidiary bank is subj
to the regulation of the Office of the Comptroltdrthe Currency (OCC).

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company and the Bank follow accounting prirespgenerally accepted in the United States of Agadricluding, where applicab
general practices within the banking industry.

1. Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of the Company and its whotiyned subsidiary. All significant intercompe
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

2. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptedthe United States of Ameri
requires management to make estimates and assmshiat affect the reported amounts of assets iabdities and disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date ef fihancial statements and the reported amountewnues and expenses during
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates. Material estimates that are péatlg susceptible to significant char
in the near term relate to the determination ofalh@vance for loan losses and the valuation oédefl tax assets.

3. Cash and Due From Bank

Included in cash and due from banks are legal vesequirements which must be maintained on anageebasis in the form of cash
balances due from the Federal Reserve. The rebataace varies depending upon the types and amotintsposits. At December !
2011, the required reserve balance on depositthethrederal Reserve Bank was approximately $4,002,0

4. Securities

Investments in securities are accounted for asvial]

Available-for-Sale Securities

Securities classified as available-fale are those securities that are intended t@lokeftr an indefinite period of time, but not nesagly
to maturity. Any decision to sell a security cléiesl as available-fosale would be based on various factors, includimyements i

interest rates, liquidity needs, security risk assgents, changes in the mix of assets and liagsilitind other similar factors. Th
securities are carried at their estimated fair #aknd the net unrealized gain or loss is repartestockholders' equity, net of tax, u

realized. Premiums and discounts are recogniz@tdénest income using the interest method. Gailsl@sses on the sale of available-for-

sale securities are determined using the adjustsidof the specific security sold.
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Securities to be Held-to-Maturity

Securities classified as held+eaturity are those securities for which there ipoaitive intent and ability to hold to maturity. 83t
securities are carried at cost adjusted for anatitin of premiums and accretion of discounts, caegbiby the interest method.

Trading Account Securities

Trading account securities are those securitiestwhie held for the purpose of selling them atdifprThere were no trading acco
securities on hand at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Other Securities

Other securities are carried at cost and are cestirin marketability. Other securities consistirofestments in the Federal Home L
Bank (FHLB), Federal Reserve Bank and First Nafiddenkers’ Bankshares, Inc. Management reviews for impairniesed on tt
ultimate recoverability of the cost basis.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment

Management evaluates investment securities forr-dti@atemporary impairment on a quarterly basis. A declin the fair value «
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitiEdow cost that is deemed other-thtemporary is charged to earnings for a declir
value deemed to be credit related and a new cast bar the security is established. The declingalue attributed to nooredit relate
factors is recognized in other comprehensive income

5. Loans held for sale

The Company originates fixed rate single familysidential first mortgage loans on a presold babiee Company issues a rate |
commitment to a customer and concurrently “lockswiith a secondary market investor under a best tsffdelivery mechanism. St
loans are sold without the servicing retained by @ompany. The terms of the loan are dictated bys#condary investors and
transferred within several weeks of the Companijailhy funding the loan. The Company recognizedaiarorigination fees and serv
release fees upon the sale, which are includedharancome on loans in the consolidated statemehiacome. Between the init
funding of the loans by the Company and the suls#qourchase by the investor, the Company cate$otans held for sale at the loy
of cost or fair value in the aggregate as deterchimethe outstanding commitments from investors.

6. Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstapdiet of the allowance for loan losses. Inteiresime on loans is recognized base
the principal balance outstanding and the statexafathe loan. Loan origination fees and certared origination costs are deferred
recognized as an adjustment of the related lodd y&ng the interest method.

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance whth impairment accounting guidance Accounting Stedgl€odification (ASC) Sectic
310-10-35,Receivables, Subsequent Measurememltien--based upon current events and informafiois-probable that the schedu
payments of principal and interest will not be eotkd in accordance with the contractual termé&iefldan agreement. Factors consid
by management in determining impairment includenpeyt status, collateral values, and the probabilitgollecting scheduled payme
of principal and interest when due. Generally, impant is measured on a loan by loan basis usiegfdir value of the supportil
collateral.
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Loans are generally placed on a nonaccrual stales\principal or interest is past due ninety daywloen specifically determined to
impaired. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual statierest accrued but not received is generalensed against interest income
collectibility is in doubt, cash receipts on nonad loans are used to reduce principal rather tkapnrded in interest income. Past
status is determined based upon contractual terms.

7. Allowance for Loan Losse

For financial reporting purposes, the provisionl@n losses charged to operations is based upoageaent's estimations of the am
necessary to maintain the allowance at an adedgzdé Allowances for any impaired loans are geledetermined based on collate
values. Loans are charged against the allowandedarlosses when management believes the colldgtidif the principal is unlikely.

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowfandéean losses on a regular basis. These evahstoe based upon a periodic re\
of the collectibility considering historical expenice, the nature and value of the loan portfoli@eunlying collateral values, internal ¢
independent loan reviews, and prevailing econoroieditions. In addition, the OCC, as a part of tegutatory examination proce
reviews the loan portfolio and the allowance farldosses and may require changes in the allowaamed upon information available
the time of the examination. The allowance congiftsvo components: allocated and unallocated. ddmeponents represent an estime
done pursuant to either ASC Topic 4%tpntingencies or ASC Subtopic 3100. The allocated component of the allowance rt
expected losses resulting from an analysis devdltp®ugh specific credit allocations for individdeans, including any impaired loa
and historical loan loss history. The analysisdgfgrmed quarterly and loss factors are updatedia€ey.

The unallocated portion of the allowance reflecemagemens estimate of probable inherent but undetecteesossthin the portfolio du
to uncertainties in economic conditions, changesoiftateral values, unfavorable information aboutoarowers financial condition, ar
other risk factors that have not yet manifestednadves. In addition, the unallocated allowancduthes a component that explic
accounts for the inherent imprecision in the lazgslanalysis.

8. Premises and Equipmer

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lessnatated depreciation. The depreciation policyoigptovide for depreciation over f
estimated useful lives of the assets using thégbtrine method. Repairs and maintenance expendituessharged to operating expen
major expenditures for renewals and bettermentsapéalized and depreciated over their estimasedull lives. Upon retirement, sale
other disposition of property and equipment, thet@nd accumulated depreciation are eliminated fileenaccounts, and any gain
losses are included in operations.

9. Other Real Estat¢

Other real estate, carried in other assets in dnealidated balance sheets, consists of propextiggired through foreclosure and, as
for sale property, is recorded at the lower ofdhtstanding loan balance or current appraisaldemated costs to sell. Any writkswn tc
fair value required at the time of foreclosurelisugged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsemans or losses on other real estatt
reported in other operating income or expensesDétember 31, 2011 and 2010, other real estatestbtd, 353,203 and $3,995,0
respectively.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Asse

Changes to the carrying amount of goodwill for ylears ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are prowided following table.

(Dollars in thousands) Amount

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 70z
Goodwill acquired during the year 8,66(

Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 9,36:

The goodwill acquired during the year ended Decemlfie 2011 was a result of the branch acquisitfomm Whitney National Bank ai
Hancock Bank of Louisiana. Footnote C to these alideted financial statements provides additionédrimation on the acquisition duri
2011.

The Company performed the required annual impaitrressts of goodwill as of December 1, 2011. The gany’s annual impairment te
did not indicate impairment as of the testing dated subsequent to that date, management is not aaany events or changes
circumstances since the impairment test that wimdtate that goodwill might be impaired.

The Companys purchase accounting intangible, assets whiclsw@agct to amortization, include core deposit igtales, amortized on
straight line, over a 10 year average life. Thaniteflived intangible assets had the following carryirajues at December 31, 2011
2010.

2011 2010
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulatec Carrying Carrying Accumulatec Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(Dollars in thousands
Core deposit intangibles $ 3,09t $ (439 $ 2,661 $ 69: $ (299 $ 39¢

During 2011, the Company recorded $2,402,000 ire abeposit intangible assets related to the depasitgired in the Whitne
acquisition.

The related amortization expense of purchase atioguimtangible assets is a follows:

(dollars in thousand:

Amount

Aggregate amortization expense for the year enidedember 31
2010 $ 69
2011 14C

Estimated amortization expense for the year enDiecember 31
2012 $ 30¢
2013 30¢
2014 30¢
2015 30¢
2016 29z
Thereafter 1,138
$ 2,661

35




11. Other Assets and Cash Surrender Val

Financing costs related to the issuance of junidbosdinated debentures are being amortized ovelifthef the instruments and ¢
included in other assets. The Company invests fik lbavned life insurance (BOLI). BOLI involves tharghasing of life insurance by t
Company on a chosen group of employees. The Comigatiie owner of the policies and, accordingly, tash surrender value of
policies is reported as an asset, and increasessinsurrender values are reported as income.

12. Stock Options

The Company accounts for stock based compensaticacéordance with ASC Topic 71&ompensation - Stock Compensation
Compensation cost is recognized for all stock aystigranted based on the weighted average fair gabek price at the grant date.

13. Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects efttAnsactions reported in the financial statemantsconsist of taxes currently pay:
plus deferred taxes related primarily to differentetween the bases of assets and liabilities asurned by income tax laws and tl
bases as reported in the financial statements. delierred tax assets and liabilities represent tharé tax consequences of th
differences, which will either be taxable or dedhietwhen the assets and liabilities are recovereskttled.

The Company and its subsidiary file consolidatezbine tax returns. The subsidiary provides for inedaxes on a separate return t
and remits to the Company amounts determined fmaipable.

ASC Topic 740/ncome Taxesprovides guidance on financial statement recogmiind measurement of tax positions taken, or egg
to be taken, in tax returns. ASC Topic 740 requane®valuation of tax positions to determine if téve positions will more likely than n
be sustainable upon examination by the approptéadeg authority. The Company at December 31, 28id 2010, had no uncertain
positions that qualify for either recognition osdosure in the financial statements.

14. Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed in the period irctvlthey are incurred. Advertising expense for tharg ended December 31, 2011
2010, was $307,514 and $261,727, respectively.

15. Statements of Cash Flow

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egslvalents include cash, amounts due from banterestbearing deposits with bar
and federal funds sold. Generally, federal fundssatd for a one to seven day period.

16. Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instrument
In the ordinary course of business, the subsidimmk enters into offbalance sheet financial instruments consistingoofimitments t

extend credit, credit card lines and standby Isttdrcredit. Such financial instruments are recdritethe financial statements when t
are exercised.
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17. Earnings Applicable to Common Stockholde

Per share amounts are presented in accordanceA®EhTopic 260Earnings Per ShardJnder ASC Topic 260, two per share amo
are considered and presented, if applicable. Bamicshare data is calculated based on the weigiteidige number of common shi
outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted pkare data includes any dilution from potentiaimon stock, such as outstanc

stock options .

The following table discloses the reconciliationtbé numerators and denominators of the basic dattd computations applicable
common stockholders:

For the Year Ende For the Year Ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Net Net
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator)  (Denominator Amount (Numerator)  (Denominator Amount
Basic per common Share $ 2,528,97 3,063,25. $ 83 $ 2,232,55 3,019,86¢ $ 74
Effect of dilutive shares
Restricted Stock 10,43¢ 2,05¢
$ 2,528,97: 3,073,688 $ .82 $ 2,232,55 3,021,992 $ 74

The diluted per share amounts were computed byimgpthe treasury stock method.

18. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to thed Fifancial statements to conform with the clasaffions used in 2011. The
reclassifications did not impact the Company's obdated financial condition or results of operaso

19. Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010‘28closure of Supplementary Pro Forma InformationBusiness Combinations.
This guidance provides clarification regarding #eguisition date that should be used for reportheg pro forma financial informatis
disclosures required by Topic 805 when compardtnencial statements are presented. The amendrime ASU 201029 specify that if
public entity presents comparative financial staets, the entity should disclose revenue and egsrofithe combined entity as though
business combination that occurred during the atiyear had occurred as of the beginning of theparable prior annual reporting per
only. ASU 201029 was effective for the Company prospectively fasiness combinations occurring after December2030. See tf

business combination disclosures in Note C.
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In April 2011, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBd (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdatASU”) No. 2011-02 A
Creditor's Determination of Whether a Restructuriisga Troubled Debt RestructuringThis updated guidance (ASC Topic 2
Receivableg is designed to assist creditors with determinivigether or not a restructuring constitutes a tredkdebt restructuring.
particular, additional guidance has been addecelp treditors determine whether a concession has gented and whether a debtc
experiencing financial difficulties. Both of thes®nditions are required to be met for a restrunturio constitute a troubled di
restructuring. The amendments in the update wdeetafe for the first interim period beginning on after June 15, 2011, and shoulc
applied retroactively to the beginning of the anmexriod of adoption. The amendment did not haveagerial impact on the Compangy’
financial statements.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03, tRasideration of Effective Control of Repurchasedgments.This guidance (AS
Topic 860, Transfers and Servicingliminates a requirement for entities to consideeter a transferor has the ability to repurchhs
financial assets in a repurchase agreement. Thisresnent was previously used to determine whetmetransferor maintained effect
control. The change could lead to more conclusibasa repo arrangement should be accounted farsasured borrowing rather than .
sale. ASU 20113 is effective for the first interim period beging on or after December 15, 2011. The Company dotexpect th
guidance will have a material impact on the finahstatements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-0OAnfendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measuren@it Disclosur
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRShis ASU is the result of joint efforts by the FASBd the International Accounting Standi
Board (“IASB”) to develop a single, converged fair value framewanmkhow (not when) to measure fair value and wilgtlasures abo
fair value measurements are required. This AS@rigely consistent with existing fair value measwatrprinciples in U.S. GAAP (AS
Topic 820, Fair Value Measuremen}. It does expand existing disclosure requiremdatsfair value measurements and elimin
unnecessary wording differences between U.S. GARPIBERS. ASU 201D4 is effective for interim periods beginning af@ecembe
15, 2011. The Company does not expect the guidaiicbave a material impact on the financial stagens and is evaluating the effect
the financial statement disclosures.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, sém&tion of Comprehensive Incomerhis guidance (ASC Topic 2:
Comprehensive Incon)aevises the manner in which entities present gehlmgmnsive income in their financial statementseduires entitie
to report components in either a continuous stat¢érmecomprehensive income or in two separate basecutive statements. The ite
that must be reported in other comprehensive incdoneot change. ASU 20105 is effective for fiscal years and interim pesdakginnin
after December 15, 2011. The Company believesdbpteon will impact only the presentation of thedncial statements.

In September 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011-0&nigibles — Goodwill and other (Topic 35Q)esting Goodwill for Impairmer
which simplifies how companies test goodwill fordairment by permitting an entity to assess qualiafiactors to determine whether i
more likely than not that the fair value of a repay unit is less than its carrying amount. The A8lldws the results of the assessme
become a basis for determining whether it is nesgs® perform the twatep goodwill impairment testing required by ASQpito350
The “more-likely-than-notthreshold is defined in the ASU as a likelihoodvadre than 50 percent. Under the amendments oAb, the
Company is not required to calculate the fair vadfia reporting unit unless the Company determthasit is more likely than not that
fair value is less than its carrying amount.
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The ASU is effective beginning with the Compamnyirst quarter of 2012, with early adoption petsdt The Company adopted
provisions of the ASU in the current year. The aawpof the ASU had an effect on how the Companyagums its test for impairment
goodwill, but the adoption of this ASU did not haane effect on the Comparsyoperating results, financial position, or liqtydfor the
year ended December 31, 2011. For additional infition on goodwill impairment testing, see Note 8y 10 to these consolida
financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11,4Be¢ Sheet (ASC Topic 210) Disclosures about QiffgefAAssets and Liabilities.

The ASU amends ASC Topic 210 by requiring additiomaproved information to be disclosed regardingaficial instruments a
derivative instruments that are offset in accordamdth the conditions under ASC 210-20-45 or ASG-8045 or subject to ¢
enforceable master netting arrangement or simgaeeanent. The amendments are effective for anmyarting periods beginning on
after January 1, 2013, and interim periods witliose annual periods. The disclosures required byathendments should be app
retrospectively for all comparative periods preednfThe Company does not believe the amendmenthavie a material impact on !
financial statements.

NOTE C— BUSINESS COMBINATION

On September 16, 2011 the Company completed thehase of seven (7) branches located on the Mippis&ulf Coast and one (
branch located in Bogalusa, Louisiana from Whithiational Bank and Hancock Bank of Louisiana (thehfiley branches”)As part o
the agreement, the Company purchased loans of $4iflii8n and assumed deposit liabilities of $17eBlion, and purchased the rela
fixed assets and cash of the branches. The Compaemates the acquired bank branches under the mhmé&irst, A National Bankir
Association. The acquisition allowed the Compangxpand its presence in South Mississippi as veeirger a new market in Louisia
The Companys condensed consolidated statements of incomedi@che results of operations of the Whitney braadnem the closin
date of the acquisition.

In connection with the acquisition, the Companyorded $8.7 million of goodwill and $2.4 million abre deposit intangible. The ¢
deposit intangible of $2.4 million will be expenseder 10 years. The recorded goodwill is deductfbletax purposes. The Comp:
acquired the $46.8 million loan portfolio at a faalue discount of $.7 million. The discount remts expected credit losses, adjustn
to market interest rates and liquidity adjustmemtge noncredit quality portion of the discount vak million and the credit quality porti
of the discount was $.6 million.

The amounts of the acquired identifiable assetdiabdities as of the acquisition date were asofek (dollars in thousands):

Purchase pric

Cash $ 9,10(
Total purchase pric 9,10(
Identifiable asset:
Cash 125,24
Loans, leases and interest receivi 46,11¢
Core deposit intangibl 2,40z
Personal and real prope! 7,481
Other assets 95
Total asset 181,33¢
Liabilities and equity
Deposits and interest payal 179,19¢
Other liabilities 1,70%
Total liabilities 180,89¢
Net assets acquire $ 44C
Gooduwill resulting from acquisitio $ 8,66(
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Interest income of $693,000 was recorded on loagsieed in the Whitney branch acquisition. The tartding principal balance and
carrying amount of these loans included in the obdated balance sheet at December 31, 2011 wdmdlaws (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding principal balan $ 39,42¢
Carrying amoun 38,83(

All loans obtained in the acquisition of the Whignlgranches reflect no specific evidence of crediedoration and very low probabil
that the Company would be unable to collect allt@tually required principal and interest payments

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortita presents the combined results of operatiorithe acquisition had been effect
January 1, 2010. These results include the impéacnwortizing certain purchase accounting adjustsientch as intangible ass
compensation expenses and the impact of the atiquigdn income tax expense. There were no matemarecurring pro forrr
adjustments directly attributable to the acquisitincluded within the following pro forma financialformation. The pro forma financ
information does not necessarily reflect the resaftoperations that would have occurred had tmebaoation constituted a single en
during such periods. Growth opportunities are etgmbto be achieved in various amounts at variausgiduring the years subsequel
the acquisition and not ratably over, or at theitr@gg or end of such periods. No adjustments Haeen reflected in the following [
forma financial information for anticipated growdpportunities.

Year Ended December 3

(In thousands) 2011 201(
(Unaudited)

Interest incomt $ 28,86( $ 27,83¢

Net income 3,32¢ 3,03¢

Acquisitiontelated expenses associated with the acquisitiatheMWhitney branches were $651,000 for the twehamth period ende
December 31, 2011, which are included in other eges of the income statement. Such costs includedigally system conversion a
integrating operations charges which have beenresqueas incurred.
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NOTE D - SECURITIES

A summary of the amortized cost and estimatedvaline of available-for-sale securities and heldr@turity securities at December

2011 and 2010, follows:

December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 43,474,93 216,22¢ $ 17,71: $ 43,673,45
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states ar
municipal subdivision 91,756,08 2,738,89 236,95: 94,258,03
Mortgage-backed securitie 58,534,12 959,01¢ 163,59¢ 59,329,54
Corporate obligation 16,678,67 26,61¢ 2,412,071 14,293,21.
Other 1,255,48, — 281,34( 974,14:
$ 211,699,29 3,940,76. $ 3,111,671 $ 212,528,38
Held-to-maturity securities
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 2,27¢ 121 % — 3 2,39¢
Taxable obligations of states and municipal
subdivisions 6,000,001 — — 6,000,001
$ 6,002,27 121 $ —  $ 6,002,39!
December 31, 201
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 22,886,88 169,38 $ 201,66: $ 22,854,60
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states ar
municipal subdivision 53,895,36 998,68¢ 221,15! 54,672,90
Mortgage-backed securitie 17,638,56 727,72¢ 47,86¢ 18,318,42
Corporate obligation 9,726,51i 12,16: 2,036,38 7,702,29
Other 1,255,48, — 269,46 986,02!
$ 105,402,81 1,907,96. $ 2,776,53 $ 104,534,24
Held-to-maturity securities
Mortgage-backed securities $ 2,64( 128 % — 3 2,768
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The scheduled maturities of securities at Decer8beP011, were as follows:

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity
Estimated Estimated
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Due less than one ye $ 13,843,45 $ 13,982,42. $ — 3 —
Due after one year through five ye 82,483,13 83,348,18 — —
Due after five years through ten ye 38,170,84 38,337,08 — —
Due after ten yeal 18,667,73 17,531,14 6,000,00! 6,000,00!
Mortgage-backed securities 58,534,12 59,329,54 2,27¢ 2,39¢

$ 21169929 $ 21252838 $ 6,002,27 $ 6,002,39!

Actual maturities can differ from contractual méties because the obligations may be called orgidepwith or without penalties.

A loss of $318 was realized from the sale of awdédor-sale securities in 2011. A gain of $50,715 wasizedlfrom the sale or call
available-for-sale securities in 2010. An othemthemporary impairment loss of $4,278 was recognifoedthe year ended 2011 ¢
$471,811 for the year ended 2010.

Securities with a carrying value of $135,394,139 63,692,752 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, rixeglgc were pledged to sect
public deposits, repurchase agreements, and fer ptirposes as required or permitted by law.

The details concerning securities classified afdaa-for-sale with unrealized losses as of Decendi, 2011 and 2010, were as follows:

2011
Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Obligations of U.S.

government agencie $ 914247 $ 17,71:  $ — 3 — $ 914247 $ 17,71:
Tax-exempt and tax- able

obligations of states and

municipal subdivision 6,451,14; 183,67¢ 598,85: 53,27: 7,049,99: 236,95
Mortgagebacked securitie 16,208,86 94,24( 236,42! 69,35¢ 16,445,29 163,59t
Corporate obligation 9,099,72i 240,68¢ 2,749,111 2,171,391 11,848,84 2,412,071
Other — — 974,14: 281,34( 974,14: 281,34

$ 40,902,200 $ 536,31¢ $ 455853 $ 257535 $ 45460,74 $ 3,111,67
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2010

Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S.
government agencie $ 13,340,46 $ 201,66: $ — % — $ 13,340,46 $ 201,66
Tax-exempt and tax- able
obligations of states and
municipal subdivision 9,144,23 204,95 257,16( 16,20: 9,401,39 221,15!
Mortgage-backed securitie 1,708,38! 3,331 310,61( 44,53¢ 2,018,99 47,86¢
Corporate obligation — — 3,199,65! 2,036,38 3,199,65! 2,036,38
Other — — 986,02: 269,46 986,02: 269,46:
$ 24,193,08 $ 409,94 $ 4,753,44. $ 2,366,581 $ 28,946,552 $ 2,776,53

Approximately 17.5% of the number of securities the investment portfolio at December 31, 2011,exd#d an unrealized lo
Management is of the opinion the Company has tliéyato hold these securities until such time he walue recovers or the securi
mature. Management also believes the deterioratioralue is attributable to changes in market egerates and lack of liquidity in t
credit markets. We have determined that these isiesuaire not other-than-temporarily impaired baggdn anticipated cash flows.

NOTE E - LOANS

Loans typically provide higher yields than the othges of earning assets, and thus one of the @oym goals is for loans to be
largest category of the Company's earning assé¢t®edember 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respctioans accounted for 62.
and 72.1% of earning assets. The Company contnalsratigates the inherent credit and liquidity egkrough the composition of its Ic

portfolio.

The following table shows the composition of thargortfolio by category:

Mortgage loans held for sa
Commercial, financial and agricultur
Real Estate
Mortgage-commercia
Mortgage-residential
Constructior
Consumer and other
Total loans

Allowance for loan losses
Net loans

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Percent of Percent of
Amount Total Amount Total
(Dollars in thousands
$ 2,90¢ 0.7% $ 2,93¢ 0.9%
48,38¢ 12.F 48,427 14.¢
138,94 35.¢ 109,07 32.¢
117,69: 30.2 102,42! 30.€
63,357 16.2 58,96: 17.7
16,64¢ 4.4 10,74¢ 3.2
387,92¢ 10C% 332,57 10(%
(451 _ (461)
$ 383,41 $ 327,95¢
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In the context of this discussion, a "real estatetgage loan" is defined as any loan, other théoaa for construction purposes, secure:
real estate, regardless of the purpose of the [Ba@.Company follows the common practice of finahgistitutions in the Company’marke
area of obtaining a security interest in real estahenever possible, in addition to any other awdél collateral. This collateral is taker
reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repaymehthe loan and tends to increase the magnitudbeofeal estate loan portfolio compon
Generally, the Company limits its loanialue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to mainéaiconservative philosophy regarding
underwriting guidelines and believes it will redube risk elements of its loan portfolio througrastgies that diversify the lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the Bank and sold into the secondary ma@@mmitments from investors
purchase the loans are obtained upon origination.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for Dedsan 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

(In thousands)

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of peric $ 4617 $ 4,76z
Loans charge-off:
Real Estatt (1,569 (81%)
Installment and Othe (97 (18¢)
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture (321) (367)
Total (1,987 (1,370
Recoveries on loans previously char-off:
Real Estatt 311 65
Installment and Othe 73 10€
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture 29 71
Total 412 242
Net Charg-offs (1,579 (1,12¢)
Provision for Loan Losses 1,46¢ 98¢
Balance at end of period $ 4,511 § 4,617

The following tables represent how the allowanaeldan losses is allocated to a particular loaretstp well as the percentage of the cate
to total loans at December 31, 2011 and Decemhe2BD.
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Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands

% of loans
in each
category
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 397 16.5%
Commercial Real Esta 3,35¢ 63.€
Consumer Real Esta 68C 15.7
Consume 78 4.2
Unallocated — —
Total $ 4,511 10(%
December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousand:s
% of loans
in each
category
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 757 15.%%
Commercial Real Esta 2,817 62.2
Consumer Real Esta 902 18.C
Consume 14C 2.9
Unallocated 1 1.C
Total $ 4,18 10(%

The following table represents the Companiyhpaired loans at December 31, 2011 and DeceBthe2010. This table excludes perforr
troubled debt restructurings.

December 31 December 31
2011 2010
(In thousands

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans without a valuation allowar $ 2,791 $ 2,40¢

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 2,33¢ 2,12z
Total impaired loans $ 512t $ 4,52¢
Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans atquband 73€ 73€
Total nonaccrual loar 5,12¢ 4,21z
Past due 90 days or more and still accn 49€ 1,071
Average investment in impaired log 4,18¢ 14,48¢
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The following table is a summary of interest redagd and caslbasis interest earned on impaired loans for DeceBthe2011 and Decemt
31, 2010:

2011 2010
Average of individually impaired loans during pet $ 48271 $ 4,28¢
Interest income recognized during impairm - -
Casl-basis interest income recogniz 287 15¢

The gross interest income that would have beerrdedain the period that ended if the nonaccruatddaad been current in accordance
their original terms and had been outstanding tijinout the period or since origination, if held fmrt of the twelve months for December
2011 and 2010, was $112,000 and $96,000, resphrctiVee Company had no loan commitments to borrewiernonaccrual status
December 31, 2011 and 2010 .

The following tables provide the ending balancesh@ Company's loans (excluding mortgage loans f@ldale) and allowance for lo
losses, broken down by portfolio segment as of Béxer 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. The tablespatvide additional detail as to -
amount of our loans and allowance that correspandndividual versus collective impairment evaluatioThe impairment evaluati
corresponds to the Company's systematic methoddtmggstimating its Allowance for Loan Losses.

December 31, 2011

Installment  Commercial,

and Financial ant
Real Estat Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatet $ 4841 $ 38 8 24¢ % 5,12¢

Collectively evaluated 301,27 16,107 62,51¢ 379,89
Total $ 306,11 $ 16,14F $ 62,76t $ 385,02:
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 66z $ 13 3 63 $ 73¢

Collectively evaluated 3,37¢ 64 334 3,77:
Total $ 4,037 $ 77 $ 397 $ 4,511
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December 31, 2010

Installment  Commercial,

And Financial ant
Real Estat Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatet $ 4,091 $ 48 $ 39C % 4,52¢

Collectively evaluated 266,50 9,08: 49,51¢ 325,10¢
Total $ 270,59! $ 9,131 $ 49,90¢ $ 329,63!
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 464 % 10 $ 264 $ 73¢

Collectively evaluated 3,254 132 49: 3,87¢
Total $ 3,71¢ $ 14z $ 757 $ 4,617

The following tables provide additional detail ofipaired loans broken out according to class asesfeihber 31, 2011 and 2010.
recorded investment included in the following tatdpresents customer balances net of any parteaeloffs recognized on the loans,
of any deferred fees and costs. As nearly all ofiopaired loans at December 31, 2011 are on nounakstatus, recorded investm
excludes any insignificant amount of accrued irsereceivable on loans Yays or more past due and still accruing. The whpalanc
represents the recorded balance prior to any pah#ge-offs.

December 31, 2011

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Related Investmen Recognizec
Investmen: Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands

Impaired loans with no related allowance:
Commercial installmer $ 121 % 121 % - $ 69 $ 5
Commercial real esta 2,42( 2,42( - 1,457 85
Consumer real esta 241 241 - 28¢€ 3
Consumer installment 9 9 - 11 -
Total $ 2,791 $ 2791 $ - % 1,828 $ 93
Impaired loans with a related allowance:
Commercial installmer $ 125 % 125 % 63 $ 12¢ $ -
Commercial real esta 1,53¢ 1,53¢ 574 1,462 23
Consumer real esta 647 647 88 74C 12
Consumer installment 29 29 13 29 6
Total $ 233¢ $ 233¢ $ 73 $ 2360 $ 41
Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer $ 24€ $ 24€ $ 63 $ 197 % 5
Commercial real esta 3,95¢ 3,95¢ 571 2,92( 10€&
Consumer real esta 88¢ 88¢ 91 1,02¢ 15
Consumer installment 38 38 13 40 6
Total Impaired Loans $ 512t $ 512t $ 736 $ 4,18t $ 134
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December 31, 2010

Impaired loans with no related allowance:;

Commercial installmer
Commercial real esta
Consumer real esta
Consumer installment
Total

Impaired loans with a related allowance:
Commercial installmer

Commercial real esta

Consumer real esta

Consumer installment

Total

Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer
Commercial real esta
Consumer real esta
Consumer installment
Total Impaired Loans

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Related Investmen: Recognizec
Investmen: Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands

12 $ 12 $ - 387 1
2,23( 2,23( - 7,88¢ 72
147 14¢ - 2,18t 8
15 15 - 18¢ 1
2,40¢ % 2,40¢ $ - 10,63¢ 82
113 $ 377 $ 264 481 17
96€ 1,37( 401 2,421 89
28C 348 63 79€ 20

23 33 10 14¢ -
1,382 $ 2,12: % 73€ 3,841 12€
128 $ 38 $ 264 86¢ 18
3,19¢ 3,60( 401 10,30¢ 161
427 49z 63 2,981 28
38 48 10 332 1
3,78¢ $ 4,52¢ $ 73€ 14,48¢ 20¢
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The following tables provide additional detail odubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2011.

Outstanding Outstanding
Recordec Recordec Interest
Investment Investment Number of Income
Pre-Modification Pos-Modification Loans Recognizec

(in thousands except number of loa

Commercial installmer $ 14 $ 10 19 1
Commercial real esta 1,21¢ 1,84z 3 86
Consumer real esta 2,97( 3,112 2 19¢
Consumer installment 22 18 2 1
Total $ 422( $ 4,982 8 $ 281

The balance of troubled debt restructurings at Béxeg 31, 2011 was $4.9 million, calculated for datpry reporting purpose. Of the
amounts, $4.2 million were performing in accordancéh the modified terms. The remaining $.7 milliare on noraccrual. There was
allocation in specific reserves established wilpeet to these loans as of December 31, 2011. Beoémber 31, 2011, the Company ha
additional amount committed on any loan classifiedroubled debt restructuring.

The recorded investment in loans for which thevedioce for loan losses was previously measured wadgeneral allowance for loan los
methodology and are now impaired under Section B85 was $4,201,000. The allowance for loan lossescisted with those loans on
basis of a current evaluation of loss was $-. @dins were performing as agreed with modified terms.

During the twelve month period ending December28l,1, the terms of 8 loans were modified as TDR® modifications included one
the following or a combination of the following: togity date extensions, interest only payments, réizaiions were extended beyond w
would be available on similar type loans, and payinveaiver. No interest rate concessions were genhese nor were any of these Ic
written down.

The following tables summarize by class our lodasgified as past due in excess of 30 days or fnoagdition to those loans classifiec
non-accrual:

December 31, 201
(In thousands

Past Due
Past Due 90 Days or Total

30 to 89 More and Past Due and Total

Days Still Accruing Non-Accrual Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 70 $ 22 % 94t $ 1,037 $ 63,357
Real Estat-mortgage 2,18¢ 311 984 3,48¢ 117,69:
Real Estai-non farm nonresidenti 1,662 144 2,871 4,68: 138,94
Commercial 13¢€ 19 24¢ 402 48,38¢
Consumer 214 - 73 287 16,64¢
Total $ 427 $ 49€ $ 512t $ 9,89/ $ 385,02:
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December 31, 201
(In thousands

Past Due 90
Past Due Days or More Total

30 to 89 and Still Past Due and Total

Days Accruing Non-Accrual Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 59 $ 1 3 143: $ 2027 $ 58,96
Real Estat-mortgage 3,67 15¢ 89z 4,71¢ 102,42¢
Real Estai-non farm nonresidenti 43¢ 737 1,452 2,627 109,07
Commercial 74C 144 38¢ 1,27C 48,42
Consumer 262 36 48 34¢€ 10,747
Total $ 5706 $ 1,071 $ 421z $ 10,98¢ $ 329,63!

The Company categorizes loans into risk categdr@sed on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, suct
current financial information, historical paymengperience credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. The Company uses the following diédins for risk ratings, which are consistent witke definitions used in supervisi
guidance:

Special Mention. Loans classified as specialtinarhave a potential weakness that deserves mareags close attention. If |
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may iagigterioration of the repayment prospects forltlae or of the Compang’credi
position at some future date.

Substandard. Loans classified as substandardadtequately protected by the current net worth @aying capacity of the oblig
or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so siféed have a welllefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardidathéation o
the debt. They are characterized by the distinasibdity that the institution will sustain somesk if the deficiencies are 1
corrected.

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have thé weaknesses inherent in those classified astessulzd, with the add
characteristic that the weaknesses make collectidiquidation in full, on the basis of currentlyisting facts, conditions, and valu
highly questionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describedcess are considered to be pass
loans.

As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010bardd on the most recent analysis performed, shecetegory of loans by class
loans (excluding mortgage loans held for sale) asafollows:
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(In thousands)
December 31, 2011

Pass
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful

Subtotal
Less:

Unearned Discount

Loans, net of unearned discount

December 31, 2010

Pass
Special Mentior
Substandar:
Doubtful

Subtotal
Less:

Unearned Discount

Loans, net of unearned discount

NOTE F - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation and amortization as follows:

Premises
Land

Buildings and improvemen

Equipment
Construction in progress

Commercial,
Real Estate Real Estate  Installment an Financial and
Commercial Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
$ 223,69: $ 57,83t $ 16,00 $ 60,74, $ 358,27
5,16¢ 71 45 3 5,28¢
16,81¢ 2,55¢ 99 1,84¢ 21,31:
- 104 - 17& 27¢
245,67¢ 60,56: 16,14¢ 62,76¢ 385,15:
94 34 - 2 13C
$ 24558 $ 60,52¢ $ 16,14¢ $ 62,76: $ 385,02:
Commercial,
Real Estate Real Estate  Installment an Financial and
Commercial Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
$ 187,65 $ 53,77¢ $ 8,76¢ $ 47,500 $ 297,69’
5,15¢ 12& 70 14 5,36¢
17,82( 6,13( 297 2,21¢F 26,46:
- - - 18C 18C
210,63: 60,03: 9,131 49,90¢ 329,70:
67 - - - 67
$ 210,56: $ 60,03. $ 9,131 $ 4990¢ $ 329,63!
2011 2010
$ 7,226,25. $ 4,970,955
15,729,04. 9,881,901
6,344,64. 4,504,54.
227,41« 1,329,26:
29,527,35 20,686,66
6,536,91. 5,692,74.

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

$ 2299044 $ 14,993,92

The amounts charged to operating expense for dagiecwere $858,342 and $655,608 in 2011 and 2@&Kpectively.
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NOTE G- DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denonainatof $100,000 or more as of December 31, 201d 2810 was $99,545,812 ¢
$100,328,380, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, the scheduled maturitieghtd tleposits included in interest-bearing depaséee as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount

2012 $ 126,67

2013 26,75¢

2014 6,06¢

2015 11,39¢

2016 6,22¢
$ 177,11!

NOTE H - BORROWED FUNDS

Borrowed funds consisted of the following:

December 31
2011 2010

Reverse Repurchase Agreem $ 15,000,000 $ 15,000,00
FHLB advances 12,031,83 15,106,89

$ 27,031,83 $ 30,106,89

Advances from the FHLB have maturity dates randiog January 2012 through August 2015. Intereptigable monthly at rates rang
from 1.296% to 3.813%. Advances due to the FHLB cokateralized by a blanket lien on first mortgdgans in the amount of t

outstanding borrowings, FHLB capital stock, and ante on deposit with the FHLB. At December 31, 20BHLB advances availat
and unused totaled $148,307,622.

Future annual principal repayment requirementsherbbrrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 201drenas follows:

Year Amount

2012 $ 3,261,05!

2013 1,770,77.

2014 4,000,001

2015 3,000,001
$ 12,031,83

Reverse Repurchase Agreements consisted of tht@8(%800 agreements. The agreements are securgethbsities with a fair value

$19,460,231 at December 31, 2011 and $18,193,1Deaember 31, 2010. The maturity dates are fromusu@2, 2012 throug
September 26, 2017, with rates between 3.81% &id4l.
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NOTE | — LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company is committed under several long-terarang leases which provide for minimum lease payts1 Certain leases contain
options for renewal. Total rental expense undesdtaperating leases amounted to $93,000 and $12&96f December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

The Company is also committed under one lterga capital lease agreement. The capital leasseagnt had an outstanding balanc
$1,540,000 and $at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (@&xun other liabilities). This lease has a remmajrterm of 10 yea
at December 31, 2011. Assets related to the cdpéak are included in premises and equipmenttenddst consists of $2.6 million I«
accumulated depreciation of approximately $86,500% at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Minimum future lease payments for the operating eequital leases at December 31, 2011 were as feilow
Operating

Leases Capital Least
(In thousands

2012 $ 79 $ 16€
2013 80 16€
2014 83 16€
2015 83 16€
2016 83 16€
Thereafter 104 93¢
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 512 1,76¢
Less: Amounts representing interest (228)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,54(

NOTE J- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary bank are subjectgalatory capital requirements administered byefatlbanking agencies. Failure
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate aiartmandatory and possibly additional discretionacyions by regulators that,
undertaken, could have a direct material effecttlom Companys financial statements. Under capital adequacy dajjniels and tr
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actitile Company and its subsidiary bank must meet peaipital guidelines that invol
gquantitative measures of assets, liabilities, anthhn offbalance sheet items as calculated under regulatmyunting practices. Capi
amounts and classifications are also subject tditgtiae judgment by regulators about componenik weightings, and other rela
factors.
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To ensure capital adequacy, quantitative measwaes heen established by regulators, and thesereetig Company and its subsidi
bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (sghfmm the table below) of total and Tier | capifabk defined) to riskveighted asse
(as defined), and of Tier | capital to adjustedltassets (leverage). Management believes, asadrbmer 31, 2011, that the Company
its subsidiary bank exceeded all capital adequagyirements.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the subsidiary lveask categorized by regulators as wilpitalized under the regulatory framework
prompt corrective action. A financial institutios ¢onsidered to be well-capitalized if it has altoisk-based capital ratio of 10% or mc
has a Tier | riskbased capital ratio of 6% or more, and has a Tiewvérage capital ratio of 5% or more. There arecanditions @
anticipated events that, in the opinion of managegmeould change the categorization. The actuaitale@mounts and ratios at Decernr
31, 2011 and 2010, are presented in the followadet No amount was deducted from capital for egerate risk exposure.

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 62,07 13.€% $ 60,91( 13.2%
Tier | risk-basec 57,56( 12.6% 56,39¢ 12.4%
Tier | leverage 57,56( 8.5% 56,39¢ 8.2%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 70,81¢ 19.6% $ 58,36¢ 16.2%
Tier | risk-basec 66,307 18.4% 53,867 15.(%
Tier | leverage 66,307 13.1% 53,86 10.7%

The minimum amounts of capital and ratios as eistaddi by banking regulators at December 31, 20812840, were as follows:

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 36,64¢ 8.C% $ 36,527 8.C%
Tier | risk-basec 18,32« 4.0% 18,26+« 4.C%
Tier | leverage 27,16« 4.0% 27,10 4.C%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 28,86( 8.0% $ 28,79¢ 8.C%
Tier | risk-basec 14,43( 4.0% 14,39¢ 4.C%
Tier | leverage 20,24¢ 4.0% 20,21: 4.C%

The Companys dividends, if any, are expected to be made frondehds received from its subsidiary bank. The O@@ts dividends of
national bank in any calendar year to the net fwafi that year combined with the retained netimdér the two preceding years.
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NOTE K- COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Company and its subsidiary bank report comprgkie income as required by ASC Topic 2€0mprehensive Incomin accordanc
with this guidance, unrealized gains and lossesemurities available-fosale are included in accumulated other compreheriaizome
(loss).

In the calculation of comprehensive income, certa&classification adjustments are made to avoidbogounting amounts that |
displayed as part of net income for a period tHab dad been displayed as part of accumulated atbmprehensive income. T
disclosure of the reclassification amounts is dsvis:

Years Ended December ¢

2011 2010
Unrealized holdings gains (losses) on avail-for- sale securities and loans held for ¢ $ 1,720,870 $ (1,141,86)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses redlin income 4,59¢ 421,09¢
Net unrealized gains (losse 1,725,47: (720,77()
Tax effect (586,66() 245,06:.
Net unrealized gains (losses), net of $ 1,13881L $ (475,709

NOTE L - INCOME TAXES
The components of income tax expense are as fallows

Years Ended December ¢

2011 2010
Current:
Federa $ 255,95! $ 832,60
State 47,19¢ 107,19¢
Deferred (benefit) 163,74t (84,605

$ 466,90 $ 855,19¢

The Company's income tax expense differs from theusts computed by applying the federal incomestatutory rates to income bef
income taxes. A reconciliation of the differenceas follows:

Years Ended December :

2011 2010
Amount % Amount %

Income taxes at statutory re $ 1,135,03! 34% $ 1,157,34 34%
Tax-exempt incoms (559,079 17% (492,989 (15)%
Nondeductible expens: 92,33¢ 3% 127,41: 4%
State income tax, net of federal tax efi 52,78¢ 2% 69,14( 2%
Tax credits (12,32Y) - - -
Other, net (241,859 (8)% (5,710 -

$ 466,90( 14% $ 855,19t 25%
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The components of deferred income taxes includélddrconsolidated financial statements were aevial]

December 31

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse $ 1,330,95 $ 1,331,48
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie - 295,31!
Net operating loss carryov 729,79¢ 807,53!
Other 603,03¢ 448,37"
2,663,79I 2,882,701
Deferred tax liabilities
Securities (97,749 (113,809
Premises and equipme (927,939 (700,625
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie (281,889 -
Core deposit intangibl (114,077 (148,63)
Goodwill (63,460) -
(1,485,10) (963,069
Net deferred tax asset, included in other as $ 1,178,669 $ 1,919,64

With the acquisition of Wiggins in 2006, the Compasssumed a federal tax net operating loss carryduds net operating loss
available to the Company through the year 2026.

The Company adopted the provisions of the ASC Ta@gig, Income Taxeswhich prescribes a recognition threshold and memsen
attribute for the financial statement recognitiord aneasurement of a tax position taken or expdotée taken in a tax return. ASC Tc
740 also provides guidance on derecognition, dlaatibn, interest and penalties, accounting iriiimh periods, disclosure and transit
As a result of the implementation of ASC Topic 785 Company did not identify any uncertain taxifiamss that it believes should
recognized in the financial statements. The taxgystill subject to examination by taxing authastiare years subsequent to 2006.

NOTE M - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company and its subsidiary bank provide a deflecompensation arrangement (401(k) plan) whershbployees contribute
percentage of their compensation. For employeeribotibns of six percent or less, the Company dadlbsidiary bank provide a 5!
matching contribution. Contributions totaled $14825n 2011 and $127,922 in 2010.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownerskip @ESOP) for employees who have completed one gkaervice for th
Company and attained age 21. Employees becomeviediied after five years of service. Contributitmshe plan are at the discretior
the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2011, tI8OP held 6,040 shares of Company common stock addhé debt obligation. 2
shares held by the plan were considered outstarfdinget income per share purposes. Total ESOPnesepeas $16,339 for 2011 ¢
$17,177 for 2010.
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NOTE N- STOCK PLANS

In 2007, the Company adopted the 2007 Stock Ineerfilan. The 2007 Plan provides for the issuarfcepoto 315,000 shares
Company Common Stock, $1.00 par value per shahareS issued under the 2007 Plan may consist ifevdran part of authorized t
unissued shares or treasury shares. Through #reeyeled December 31, 2009, no shares were issukt this Plan. During the ye
ended December 31, 2010, 12,353 nonvested restritbek awards were granted under the Plan. Duhiagyear ended December
2011, 33,850 nonvested restricted stock awards gengted under the Plan. The weighted average -geptfair value for these sha
was $8.27 per share. Compensation costs in the r@nodi$119,320, was recognized for the year endecdeber 31, 2011 and $12,
for the year ended December 31, 2010. Shares wicted stock granted to employees under this spdak are subject to restrictions a
the vesting period. The restricted stock award imes0100% vested on the earliest of 1) the threewesding period provided the Gran
has not incurred a termination of employment ptiothat date, 2) the Grantee’s retirement, or 8)@nantees death. During this peric
the holder is entitled to full voting rights andvidiends. As of December 31, 2011, there was apprataly $250,314 of unrecogniz
compensation cost related to this Plan. The castpected to be recognized over the remaining tdrtine vesting period (approximatel
years).

NOTE O- SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On June 30, 2006, the Company issued $4,124,00foating rate junior subordinated deferrable ins¢rdebentures to The Fi
Bancshares Statutory Trust 2 in which the Compamgsoall of the common equity. The debentures agestile asset of the Trust. ~
Trust issued $4,000,000 of Trust Preferred Seesri{TPSs) to investors. The Companpbligations under the debentures and re
documents, taken together, constitute a full ancbaditional guarantee by the Company of the Tsusbligations under the prefer
securities. The preferred securities were redeamiaplthe Company in 2011, or earlier in the evletdeduction of related interest
federal income taxes is prohibited, treatment a&s Ticapital is no longer permitted, or certainesticontingencies arise. The prefe
securities must be redeemed upon maturity of tHeemteires in 2036. Interest on the preferred seesris the three month Lond
Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.65% and is gagaguarterly. The terms of the subordinated debestare identical to those of
preferred securities. On July 27, 2007, the Compssiyed $6,186,000 of floating rate junior suboatinl deferrable interest debenture
The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 3 in whichGoenpany owns all of the common equity. The delrestare the sole asset of Trus
The Trust issued $6,000,000 of Trust Preferred &és1(TPSs) to investors. The Compangbligations under the debentures and re
documents, taken together, constitute a full ancbaditional guarantee by the Company of the Tsusbligations under the prefer
securities. The preferred securities are redeemaplihe Company in 2012, or earlier in the evemst deduction of related interest
federal income taxes is prohibited, treatment &3 Ticapital is no longer permitted, or certaineotbontingencies arise. The prefe
securities must be redeemed upon maturity of themteires in 2037. Interest on the preferred seéesiris the three month LIBOR p
1.40% and is payable quarterly. The terms of th®slinated debentures are identical to those optkérred securities. In accorda
with the provisions of ASC Topic 81CQonsolidationthe trusts are not included in the consolidatedrfaial statements.

NOTE P- TREASURY STOCK

Shares held in treasury totaled 26,494 at DeceBhe2011, and 2010.
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NOTE Q- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of business, the Bank makassldo its directors and executive officers anaddmpanies in which they have
significant ownership interest. In the opinion cimagement, these loans are made on substantialsathe terms, including interest i
and collateral, as those prevailing at the timeclmmparable transactions with other parties, arsistent with sound banking practic
and are within applicable regulatory and lendingititions. Such loans amounted to approximately, ¥82000 and $14,580,000
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Theigctivloans to current directors, executive offigeand their affiliates during the y:
ended December 31, 2011, is summarized as followthgusands):

Loans outstanding at beginning of y: $ 14,58(
New loans 1,422
Repayments (3,04
Loans outstanding at end of year $ 12,95t

NOTE R- COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS OFRCREDIT RISK

In the normal course of business, there are outstgrvarious commitments and contingent liabilitiesch as guaranties, commitment
extend credit, etc., which are not reflected indlbeompanying financial statements. The subsidiank had outstanding letters of cr
of $799,000 and $960,000

at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, amt rhade loan commitments of approximately $59,035,66d $52,083,000
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credilude some exposure to credit loss in the evémoaperformance of the custorr
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to teral customer as long as there is no violatiomrgf condition established in 1
contract. Standby letters of credit are conditioc@hmitments issued by the Bank to guarantee thierpeance of a customer to a tt
party. The credit policies and procedures for starmitments are the same as those used for leadingties. Because these instrumi
have fixed maturity dates and because a numbereempihout being drawn upon, they generally do msent any significant liquidi
risk. No significant losses on commitments weraiined during the two years ended December 31, 2@drlare any significant losses ¢
result of these transactions anticipated.

The primary market area served by the Bank is Barteamar, Jones, Pearl River, Jackson, HancookeStand Harrison Counties witl
South Mississippi as well as Washington Parish auitiana. Management closely monitors its crediicemtrations and attempts
diversify the portfolio within its primary marketesa. As of December 31, 2011, management doesonstder there to be any signific
credit concentrations within the loan portfoliot#dugh the Banls loan portfolio, as well as existing commitmemngdlects the diversity
its primary market area, a substantial portion bbeower's ability to repay a loan is dependemruihe economic stability of the area.

On October 8, 2007, The First Bancshares, Inc.“@oenpany”) and its subsidiary, The First, A Na@bBanking Association (the
“Bank”) were formally named as defendants and skwigh a First Amended Complaint in litigation sglNick D. Welch v. Oak Grove
Land Company, Inc., Fred McMurry, David E. JohnsbhrDouglas Seidenburg, The First, A National Bagkhssociation, The First
Bancshares, Inc., and John Does 1 through 10. TEetif seeks damages from all the defendantduthing $2,957,385, annual dividends
for the year 2006 in the amount of $.30 per shawaitive damages and attorneys’ fees and costsCbingpany and the Bank both denied
any liability to Welch.

On March 7, 2011 an Agreed Order of Dismissal wasred in the litigation as previously disclosedtfsy Company on Form R-filed on
March 8, 2011.
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NOTE S- FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic 8E8ir Value Measurements and Disclosuréisat establishes a framework
measuring fair value and expands disclosures afadutvalue measurements. This guidance has beeledpprospectively as of tl
beginning of the period.

The guidance defines the fair value as the priaéwlould be received to sell an asset or paidatasfier a liability in an orderly transact
between market participants at the measurement ldatiso establishes a fair value hierarchy whistpires an entity to maximize the
of observable inputs and minimize the use of undadde inputs when measuring fair value.

In accordance with the guidance, the Company grdatspnancial assets and financial liabilities reeged at fair value in three leve
based on the markets in which the assets anditiebibre traded and the reliability of the assuams used to determine fair value. Tt
levels are:

Level 1: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded inivactexchange markets, such as the New York Stoocgh&hge
Valuations are obtained from readily available imgcsources for market transactions involving idmaitassets «
liabilities.

Level 2: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded irslestive dealer or broker markets. Valuations dtained from thir
party pricing services for identical or comparabsets or liabilities which use observable inpukeothan Level
prices, such as quoted prices for similar asselislgiiities; quoted prices in markets that are adtive; or other inpu
that are observable or can be corroborated by wedisier market data for substantially the full terinttee assets ai
liabilities.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlmo@rmarket activity and that are significant to fag value of th
assets or liabilities

Following is a description of the valuation methlmdpes used for instruments measured at fair vatua recurring basis and recognized ir
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Available-for-Sale Securities

The fair value of available-fasale securities is determined by various valuati@thodologies. Where quoted market prices areablaiin a
active market, securities are classified within &leV. Level 1 securities include mutual funds. dbted market prices are not available, -
fair values are estimated by using pricing modelgjuoted prices of securities with similar chardstees. Level 2 securities include U
Treasury securities, obligations of U.S. governmeoriporations and agencies, obligations of stateks @olitical subdivisions, mortgage-
backed securities and collateralized mortgage atiigs. In certain cases where Level 1 or Levehfflis are not available, securities
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.

The following table presents the Compangssets that are measured at fair value on arirggirasis and the level within the hierarch
which the fair value measurements fall as of Deaam3i, 2011 and December 31, 2010 (in thousands):
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December 31, 201

Obligations of U.S
Government agencie

Municipal securitie:

Mortgage-backed securitie

Corporate obligation

Other

Total

December 31, 201

Obligations of U.S
Government agencie

Municipal securitie:

Mortgage-backed securitie

Corporate obligation

Other

Total

Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 43,67: $ - 8 43,67: $ -
94,25¢ - 94,25¢ -
59,33( - 59,33( -
14,29: - 12,04: 2,252
974 974 - -
$ 212,52t $ 974 $ 209,30 $ 2,252
Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 22,85 % - $ 22,85 % -
54,67 - 54,67 -
18,31¢ - 18,31¢ -
7,702 - 5,08t 2,61¢
98¢ 98€ - -
$ 104,53: $ 98¢ $ 100,92¢ $ 2,61¢
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The following is a reconciliation of activity foisaets measured at fair value based on significgastiservable (non-market) information.

Bank-
Issued
Trust
Preferred
(In thousands) Securities
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 2,61¢
Transfers into Level -
Transfers out of Level -
Othek-thar-temporary impairment loss included in earni (4)
Unrealized loss included in comprehensive income (369
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 2,252

Following is a description of the valuation methlmdpes used for assets and liabilities measurediatvalue on a nomecurring basis ar
recognized in the accompanying balance sheets,elisaw/ the general classification of such assetsliabilities pursuant to the valuati
hierarchy.

Impaired Loans

Loans for which it is probable that the Company wit collect all principal and interest due acéongdto contractual terms are measure(
impairment. Allowable methods for estimating fa@we include using the fair value of the collatdoalcollateral dependent loans or, whe
loan is determined not to be collateral dependesitg the discounted cash flow method.

If the impaired loan is identified as collaterapdeadent, then the fair value method of measuriegatimount of impairment is utilized. T
method requires obtaining a current independentadgrd of the collateral and applying a discourtda to the value. If the impaired loar
determined not to be collateral dependent, thenligeunted cash flow method is used. This metleqdires the impaired loan to be recol
at the present value of expected future cash fldissounted at the loasi’'effective interest rate. The effective interegerof a loan is tt
contractual interest rate adjusted for any netrdedeloan fees or costs, premiums or discountiegjstt origination or acquisition of the lo
Impaired loans are classified within Level 2 of thi& value hierarchy.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned consists of propertiesradtahrough foreclosure. The adjustment at the tirhforeclosure is recorded through
allowance for loan losses. Fair value of other esthte owned is based on current independentisglstaDue to the subjective nature
establishing the fair value when the asset is aeduihe actual fair value of the other real estataed or foreclosed asset could differ fi
the original estimate. If it is determined the featue declines subsequent to foreclosure, a vialuatiowance is recorded through nioteres
expense. Operating costs associated with the aaftetsacquisition are also recorded as mtarest expense. Gains and losses ol
disposition of other real estate owned and forezloassets are netted and posted to otherimierest expense. Other real estate o\
measured at fair value on a nmreurring basis at December 31, 2011, amounted # ®illion. Other real estate owned is classifigthin
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the fair value measanat of assets and liabilities measured at faineran a nonrecurring basis and the |
within the fair value hierarchy in which the famlue measurements fell at December 31, 2011 andrBleer 31, 2010 (in thousands).
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Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 201
Impaired loan $ 5128 $ - 8 5128 $ =
Other real estate own 4,35: - 4,35 -
December 31, 201
Impaired loan: $ 4,52¢ 3% - 8 452¢ $ -
Other real estate ownt 3,99t - 3,99t -

The following methods and assumptions were usestinate the fair value of each class of finanicisirument for which it is practicat
to estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents For such short-term instruments, the carryinguamé a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Investment in securities available-for-sale and Heto-maturity — The fair value measurement for securities avklédr-sale wa
discussed earlier. The same measurement approachsed for securities held-to-maturity.

Loans— The fair value of loans is estimated by discountimg future cash flows using the current rates latkvsimilar loans would t
made to borrowers with similar credit ratings aodthe same remaining maturities.

Deposits— The fair values of demand deposits are, as reqliyedSC Topic 825, equal to the carrying value wéhs deposits. Dema
deposits include noninterelsearing demand deposits, savings accounts, NOWuats;oand money market demand accounts. Th
value of variable rate term deposits, those remgicivithin six months or less, approximates the yeag value of these depos
Discounted cash flows have been used to value figéel term deposits and variable rate term deposjiscing after six months. T
discount rate used is based on interest ratesrtlyrtgeing offered on comparable deposits as towarhand term.

Short-Term Borrowings— The carrying value of any federal funds purchased other shortierm borrowings approximates their
values.
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FHLB and Other Borrowings— The fair value of the fixed rate borrowings areireated using discounted cash flows, based on ¢
incremental borrowing rates for similar types ofrdowing arrangements. The carrying amount of anyiabée rate borrowin
approximates its fair value.

Subordinated Debentures Fhe subordinated debentures bear interest at ablaniate and the carrying value approximatesahevélue.
Off-Balance Sheet Instruments- Fair values of ofbalance sheet financial instruments are based @ dbarged to enter into sim

agreements. However, commitments to extend credihat represent a significant value until such céments are funded or clos
Management has determined that these instrumemntstduave a distinguishable fair value and novalue has been assigned.

As of As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousand:)
Financial Instruments

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 23,18. $ 23,18. $ 33,970 $ 33,97:
Securities availab-for-sale 212,52¢ 212,52¢ 104,53: 104,53:
Securities hel-to-maturity 6,00z 6,00z 3 3
Other securitie 2,64 2,64~ 2,59¢ 2,59¢
Loans, ne 383,41¢ 396,90! 327,95t 339,92

Liabilities:
Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 107,12¢ $ 107,12¢ $ 48,31: $ 48,31.
Interes-bearing deposit 466,26! 467,19¢ 348,16 349,56!
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( 10,31( 10,31(
FHLB and other borrowing 27,03: 27,03: 30,10" 30,10"

NOTE T- SENIOR PREFERRED STOCK

On February 6, 2009, as part of the U.S. Departoefhteasury’s (“Treasury”) Capital Purchase Progi@CPP”),the Company receivi
a $5.0 million equity investment by issuing 5 thand shares of Series A, no par value preferreck dtothe Treasury pursuant to a Le
Agreement and Securities Purchase Agreement thapveviously disclosed by the Company. The Compsy issued a warrant to
Treasury allowing it to purchase 54,705 shareshef €Companys common stock at an exercise price of $13.71. Wagant can k
exercised immediately and has a term of 10 years.

The nonvoting Series A preferred shares issued, with aidation preference of $1 thousand per share, pall a cumulative ca
dividend quarterly at 5% per annum during the fiige years the preferred shares are outstandesgtting to 9% thereafter if r
redeemed. The CPP also includes certain restrctmn dividend payments of the Companyower ranking equity and the ability
purchase its outstanding common shares.
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The Company allocated the proceeds received frenTthasury, net of transaction costs, on a probasés to the Series A preferred si
and the warrant based on their relative fair valdése Company assigned $.3 million and $4.7 milliorthe warrant and the Serie:
preferred stock, respectively. The resulting distaan the Series A preferred stock is being acdrefe to the $5.0 million liquidatic
amount at the time of the exchange discussed ifotloaving paragraph.

On September 29, 2010, and pursuant to the terrtteedetter agreement between the Company and titedJStates Department of
Treasury (“Treasury”the Company closed a transaction whereby Treasuntyamged its 5,000 shares of Fixed Rate Cumul&erpetus
Preferred Stock, Series UST, (The “CPP Preferrearedfi) for 5,000 shares of a new series of preferred stiedignated Fixed Re
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series CPB (@DCI Preferred Shares"Pn the same day, and pursuant to the terms ofkeths
agreement between the Company and Treasury, the&umnissued an additional 12,123 CDCI Preferrededhm Treasury for a purchi
price of $12,123,000. As a result of the CDCI Temt®ns, the Company is no longer participatinthimn TARP Capital Purchase Progi
being administered by Treasury and is now partigigain Treasury’s TARP Community Development Caplnitiative (the “CDCI’).
The terms of the CDCI Transactions are more fudlyferth in the Exchange Letter Agreement and tivelfase Letter Agreement.

The Letter Agreement, pursuant to which the Pretei$hares were exchanged, contains limitationsherpayment of dividends on !
common stock to no more than 100% of the aggrguatshare dividend and distributions for the imragslprior fiscal year (dividends
$0.15 per share were declared and paid in 2010pante Company' ability to repurchase its common stock, and cweis to subject tl
Company to certain of the executive compensatimitdtions included in the Emergency Economic Sizdtilon Act of 2008 (EESA),
previously disclosed by the Company.

The most significant difference in terms between@DCI Preferred Shares and the CPP Preferred Sisatfee dividend rate applicable
each. The CPP Preferred Shares entitled the htwdar annual dividend of 5% of the liquidation \alf the shares, payable quarterl
arrears; by contrast, the CDCI Preferred Sharafiectite holder to an annual dividend of 2% of kiqeidation value of the shares, pay:
quarterly in arrears. Other differences in termsveen the CDCI Preferred Shares and the CPP Redfe8hares, include, withc
limitation, the restrictions on common stock divide and on redemption of common stock and otharrgies exist. The terms of t
CDCI Preferred Shares are more fully set forthtia Articles of Amendment creating the CDCI Prefér&hares, which Articles
Amendment were filed with the Mississippi Secretafstate on September 27, 2010.

As a condition to participation in the CDCI, the Mjpany was required to obtain certification as a @amity Development Financ
Institution (a “CDFI”) from Treasurg Community Development Financial Fund. On Septer@Be 2010, the Company was notified
its application for CDFI certification had been emyed. In order to become certified and maintasrcértification as a CDFI, the Compi
is required to meet the CDFI eligibility requirenteset forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b).

NOTE U - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated the effect of subseqwentson these financial statements through the thet financial statements w
issued.
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NOTE V- PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The balance sheets, statements of income and loaghfbr The First Bancshares, Inc. (parent companly) follow.

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Investment in subsidiary bai
Investments in statutory trus
Other securitie
Premises and equipme
Other

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:

Subordinated debentur
Other
Stockholders’ equity

Income:
Interest and dividenc
Dividend income
Other

Expenses
Interest on borrowed func
Legal
Other

Condensed Balance Sheets

Condensed Statements of Income

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity irigtriduted income of subsidia

Income tax benefit

Income (loss) before equity in undistributed incosheubsidiary

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary

Net income
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December 31

2011 2010
$ 6,391 $ 11,819,43
69,263,75 54,659,16
310,00( 310,00(
100,00( 100,00(
368,62: 368,62:
741,01: 204,36+
$ 70,789,77 $ 67,461,58
$ 10,310,000 $ 10,310,00
54,49¢ 53,50!
60,425,28 57,098,08
$ 70,789,77 $ 67,461,58
Years Ended December :
2011 2010
$ 5,62¢ $ 79¢
530,00( 650,00(
- 1,50(
535,62¢ 652,29¢
187,11° 187,16(
820,93 303,00:
313,75 135,02¢
1,321,80! 625,19:
(786,18() 27,10¢
691,84¢ 155,19
(94,339 182,30!
2,965,77. 2,366,43!
$ 2,871,431 $ 2,548,74.




Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December ¢

2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net income $ 2,871,431 $ 2,548,74
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used in) operating activitie

Equity in undistributed income of subsidic (2,965,77) (2,366,43)
Restricted stock expen 119,32( 12,61(
Other, net (542,58 (68,920
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (517,599 125,99!

Cash flows from investing activitie
Investment in subsidiary bank (10,500,00) -
Net cash used in investing activities (10,500,00) -

Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paid on common sto (452,98) (452,98()
Dividends paid on preferred sto (342,46() (261,819
Exercise of stock optior - -
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and wiarra - 12,123,00
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (795,44) 11,408,20
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (11,813,04) 11,534,20
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,819,43 285,23.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 6,391 $ 11,819,43

NOTE W- SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FESHARE AMOUNTS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ende
March 31 June 3( Sept. 3C Dec. 31
(In thousands, except per share amot

2011
Total interest incom $ 573t % 5941 $ 599¢ $ 6,80z
Total interest expense 1,482 1,43( 1,267 1,215
Net interest incom 4,251 4,511 4,732 5,68¢
Provision for loan losses 34¢ 30& 23C 58E
Net interest income after provision for loan los 3,90: 4,20¢ 4,50z 5,00(
Total nor-interest incomt 91t 1,02¢ 1,08¢ 1,57(C
Total nor-interest expens 4,52¢ 4,29: 4,47¢ 5,574
Income tax expense (207) 267 36E 42
Net income 501 67C 74¢€ 954
Preferred dividends and stock accretion 86 85 86 85
Net income applicable to common stockholc $ 415 $ 58t $ 66C $ 86¢
Per common shar:
Net income, basi $ A4 $ AS S 22 % .28
Net income, dilutet .14 ¢ .21 .28
Cash dividends declart .037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢
2010
Total interest incom $ 588/ % 594 % 584¢ $ 5,77¢
Total interest expense 2,094 1,86t 1,62: 1,53i
Net interest incom 3,79( 4,07¢ 4,22¢ 4,23¢
Provision for loan losses 16t& 217 372 22¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 3,62¢ 3,86% 3,85¢4 4,01(
Total nor-interest incomt 841 98¢ 1,05¢ 1,01¢
Total nor-interest expens 3,69¢ 3,89t 4,02¢ 4,22¢
Income tax expense 232 304 261 58
Net income 53¢ 64¢ 622 742
Preferred dividends and stock accretion 76 77 75 88

Net income applicable to common stockholc $ 46C $ 572 $ 547 $ 654




Per common shar

Net income, basi $ AE 3 AcS S A8 % 22
Net income, dilutet .15 ¢ .18 .22
Cash dividends declar .07k .02t .05 -

66







EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

The First, A National Banking Association
(A National chartered banking corporation)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 2
(Delaware statutory trust)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 3
(Delaware statutory trust)




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
The First Bancshares, Inc.
Hattiesburg, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The First Bancshares, Inc., as of iBleee 31, 2011 and 2010, and
related consolidated statements of income, chaimggeckholders' equity, and cash flows for thergehen ended. These financial staterr
are the responsibility of the Compasyhanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspnian on these financial statements based o
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversightulo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thetsitmiobtain reasonable assurance about whethéindreial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrimal control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtver financial reporting as a basis for designénudit procedures that are appropria
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esgimg an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comisamternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinién. audit includes examining, on a test basis, @@ supporting the amounts

disclosures in the financial statements. An auliib ancludes assessing the accounting principlesl wd significant estimates made
management, as well as evaluating the overall fii@hrstatement presentation. We believe that oditayrovide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@bove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated financial position of The F
Bancshares, Inc., as of December 31, 2011 and 20i0the consolidated results of its operationsignchsh flows for the years then en
in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississippi
March 29, 2012



EXHIBIT 31
CERTIFICATIONS

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The First Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements matightrof the circumstances under which such states@ere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaoresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiakhreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures as of the end of the period coveyebis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hatenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitatc@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions!

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrtbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 22, 2012
/sl M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The First Bancshares, Ir;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements matightrof the circumstances under which such states@ere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtf@ periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaones designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures as of the end of the period coveyebis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hatenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitatcmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasizd report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 22, 2012
/s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATIONS
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. Chief Executive Officeertify that

this periodic report containing financial statensefiolly complies with the requirements of secti@gal) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) #nad information contained in the periodic repaitlf presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rafjons of the issuer.

Date: March 22, 2012
/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office

I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certthyat

this periodic report containing financial statensefiolly complies with the requirements of secti@gal) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) #nad information contained in the periodic repaitlfy presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rafjons of the issuer.

Date: March 22, 2012
/s/ Dee Dee Lower

Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Officel




EXHIBIT 99.1
EESA CERTIFICATION

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify, based on mmolvledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatiddsenior risk officers at least
every six months during any part of the most rdgazdmpleted fiscal year that was a TARP period,ghnior executive officer (SEO)
compensation plans and the employee compensatois phd the risks these plans pose to The FirgtdBares, Inc.;

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bamgsh, Inc. has identified and limited during anxt pathe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh@®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banashanc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks
to The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited tfieagires to ensure that The First Bancsharesidmat unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeast every six months during any part of the mestmtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgti®n plan and identified any features of the pheat could encourage the
manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bdmazes, Inc. to enhance the compensation of anoge®mland has limited any such
features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SE@npensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)\eho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Banehanc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SE@aski® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowddtém the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysexpbe First Bancshares, Inc. to risks;

(C) Employee compensation plans that could encouragmtnipulation of reported earnings of The First&hares, Inc. to enhance
compensation of an employe

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mogstlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimelr section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the mpayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited galden parachute payment, as defined in the régataand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdhe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopayments to its applicable employees in accordaittesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(ix) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employemgltomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypoquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an
SEO, or an executive officer with a similar levéresponsibility were properly approved,;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nondédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiensaaid or accrued during any part of
the most recently completed fiscal year that was\RP period;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecaunt, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridaqice established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitegimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose whet The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of direaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshares hia& engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TA
period, a compensation consultant; and the seriieesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef ¢dbmpensation consultant provided
during this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited prayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the atiguk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyveuist highly compensated employees during anygfdtte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@iiyplied with all other requirements related to Eype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesahacTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted &a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOsraentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal yeittn,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order afllefannual compensation, and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢krtification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.§ee for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J
M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Principal Executive Office

Date: March 22, 201




EXHIBIT 99.2
EESA CERTIFICATION

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify, based on my knowledbat:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatiddsenior risk officers at least
every six months during any part of the most rdgezdmpleted fiscal year that was a TARP period,ghnior executive officer (SEO)
compensation plans and the employee compensatois phd the risks these plans pose to The FirgtdBares, Inc.;

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bameeh, Inc. has identified and limited during anxt pathe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh@®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banashanc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks
to The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited tfieagires to ensure that The First Bancsharesidmat unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeast every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgti®n plan and identified any features of the pleat could encourage the
manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bdrazes, Inc. to enhance the compensation of anoge®mland has limited any such
features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SE@mpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)\eho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Banehanc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SE@aski® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowddtém the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysexpbe First Bancshares, Inc. to risks;

(C) Employee compensation plans that could encouragmtnipulation of reported earnings of The First&hares, Inc. to enhance
compensation of an employe

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mogstlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimelér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the mpayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other nmaltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited galden parachute payment, as defined in the régataand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdhe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period,;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaiittesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(ix) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employemgltomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypoquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an
SEO, or an executive officer with a similar levéresponsibility were properly approved,;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nondédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiensaaid or accrued during any part of
the most recently completed fiscal year that was\RP period;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecaunt, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridaqice established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitegimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose whet The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of direaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshares hia& engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TA
period, a compensation consultant; and the seriieesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef ¢dbmpensation consultant provided
during this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited prayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the atiguk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyveuist highly compensated employees during anygfdtte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@iiyplied with all other requirements related to Eype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesahacTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted &a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOsraentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal yeittn,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order afllefannual compensation, and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢krtification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.§ee for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Principal Financial Office

Date: March 22, 201




